COUNCILMEMBERS ORTING CITY COUNCIL

Position No. Study Session Agenda
1. Tod Gunther Orting Multi-Purpose Center
2. John Kelly 202 Washington Ave. S, Orting, WA
3. Michelle Gehring September 18", 2019
4. Joachim Pestinger 6pm
5. Nicola McDonald

6. Greg Hogan Deputy Mayor Greg Hogan,

7. Scott Drennen Chair

-—

CALL MEETING TO ORDER, ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE

2. COMMITTEE REPORTS
Public Works
+ CM Drennen & CM Gunther
Public Safety
+ CM Kelly & CM Pestinger
Community and Government Affairs
+ CM McDonald & CM Gehring

3. STAFF REPORTS

4. AGENDA ITEMS
A. AB19-46- Ordinance No. 2019-1040, an Ordinance of the City Of Orting, Washington,
Relating To Land Use and Zoning; Adopting Amendments to the Comprehensive
Plan.
+ Mark Bethune/ Roger Wagoner

B. Discussion-Term Limits.
+ CM McDonald/CM Gehring

C. AB19-58-Grant Requests.

+ CM McDonald/ CM Gehring

e Chamber of Commerce/Orting Community Float

Farmers Market
Food Bank
Opportunity Center, DBA The Haven
Senior Center
Tacomal/Orting Recovery Café

D. AB19-60- Resolution No. 2019-25, A Resolution of the City of Orting, WA, Amending
The Contract With Pease Construction To Authorize A Contingency; Authorizing
The Mayor and or his designee to Execute Change Orders.

+ Scott Larson

E. AB19-61- Ordinance No. 2019-1050, Amending Ordinance No. 2018-1037 And
Ordinance 2019-1048, Adopting The City Of Orting 2019 Budget; Providing For

Appropriation And Expenditure Of Funds Received In Excess Of Estimated Revenues.
% Scott Larson

F. AB19-62- Ordinance 2019-1049, Adopting Interim Wireless Communication Facility
Design Standards.
% Mark Bethune

G. AB19-63- Resolution No. 2019-17, Declaring property as surplus and authorizing
disposal.
+ Mark Bethune

Americans with Disabilities Act — reasonable accommodations provided upon request (360) 893-2219

Upcoming Meeting: Next Regular Meeting: September 25, 2019, 7pm, (MPC)
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H. AB19-65- Cemetery Land Surplus- Boundary Line Adjustment.
+ Mark Bethune

. AB19-66- Whitehawk Extension- Design and Engineering Scope and Budget.
+ CM Drennen/CM Gunther

J. AB19-64-Appointment of Deputy Mayor — Committee Formation.
+ DM Hogan

5. ADJOURNMENT- Motion: To Adjourn.

Americans with Disabilities Act — reasonable accommodations provided upon request (360) 893-2219
Upcoming Meeting: Next Regular Meeting: September 25, 2019, 7pm, (MPC)
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City of Orting
Council Agenda Summary Sheet

SUbJ?Ct: ] Committee Study Session Council
Public Hearing on
Ordinance No. 2019-1040, An | Agenda Item #: N/A AB19-46 AB19-46
Ordinance Of The City Of For Agenda of: 7.17.19 9.11.19
Orting, Washington, Relating 9.18.19 9.25.19
To Land Use And Zoning;
Adopting Amendments To
The Comprehensive Plan. Department: Planning/Administration
Date Submitted: 07/02/2019 [Revision submitted 9/6/19]
Cost of Item: N/A
Amount Budgeted: N/A
Unexpended Balance: N/A
Bars #: N/A
Timeline: N/A
Submitted By: Mark Bethune, City Administrator; Roger Wagoner,
Interim City Planner; Charlotte A. Archer, City Attorney
Fiscal Note:
Attachments:

- Ex. A-0Ord. No. 2019-1040 (without its attachments, as described herein);
- Ex. B: Docket Requests Received by City (from outside sources);
- Ex. C: Transportation Improvement Program Update by Parametrix;
- Ex. D: Updated Land Use and Zoning Map to re-designate the RU-L zone to RU;
- Ex. E: Planning Commission Recommendations on Comprehensive Plan Amendment Docket and
corresponding Zoning Code Amendments:
- Ex. E.1: Planning Commission’s Recommended Changes to Comprehensive Plan Text;
- Ex. E.2: Planning Commission’s Recommended Changes to Zoning Code text;
- Ex. E.3: Comments Received by Planning Commission from the Public on the aforementioned
items.(Previously Provided)
- Ex. F: Staff Recommendations on Zoning Code Amendments;
- Ex. F.1: M. Bethune 8.22.19
- Ex. F.2: Public Comments Received by City Council- (Previously Provided)
- Ex. G: SEPA Checklist and other related documents

SUMMARY STATEMENT: Before the City Council for consideration are proposed amendments to the City’s
Comprehensive Plan and related amendments to the zoning code, OMC Title 13.

The results of this work are Ordinance No. 2019-1040, and its attachments which are:
(1) Transportation Improvement Program Update by Parametrix;
(2) Updated Land Use and Zoning Map to re-designate the RU-L zone to RU;
(3) Amendments to Comprehensive Plan text; and

(4) Amendments to OMC Title 13, zoning code.

The Planning Commission and staff are in agreement as to 1, 2, and 3, but differ on the text of item 4.




Background: In late 2018 and early 2019, the City received requests from DR Horton and the Wang family for
amendments to the City’s Comprehensive Plan; the former focused on amendments to the Comprehensive Plan
provisions governing the Mixed Use Town Center North zone while the latter focused on the Transportation
Element to the Comprehensive Plan (copies of those requests at Ex. A hereto). Staff also proposed amendments
to the Comprehensive Plan, including the Transportation Improvement Program and Land Use and Zoning, for
this process.

The City has undertaken a public involvement process and provided for early and continuous public participation
opportunities on the proposed amendments, including multiple Planning Commission workshops from
December 2018 to July 2019 including public meetings on the Comprehensive Plan amendments on December
3, 2018, January 7, 2019, January 22, 2019, February 14, 2019, March 4, 2019, March 21, 2019, April 1, 2019 and
May 6, 2019, and June 3, 2019; July 1, 2019; a public open house on April 26, 2019; a joint meeting with the
Orting City Council on April 20, 2019 and a public hearing on June 18, 2019 before the Planning Commission. An
environmental review of the proposed Comprehensive Plan amendments has been conducted in accordance
with the requirements of the State Environmental Policy Act (“SEPA”), and a SEPA threshold determination of
non-significance was issued on July 1, 2019. In accordance with WAC 365-196-630, a notice of intent to adopt
the proposed Comprehensive Plan amendments was sent to the State of Washington Department of Commerce
and to other state agencies with acknowledgement by the Department on July 2, 2019, to allow for a 60-day
review and comment period.

Process for Consideration: At OMC 15-12-5, the City Council adopted the standards by which an amendment to
the City’s Comprehensive Plan may be made:

Comprehensive plan amendments may include, but are not limited to, policy changes; land use designation
changes; level of service standard changes; addition of new analyses; addition of new elements; or other
changes that are mandated by state law or determined to be in the interest of the city.

A. Initiation Of Amendment: An amendment to the comprehensive plan may be initiated by:

1. The city council requesting the planning commission to set the matter for hearing and recommendations.
2. The planning commission.

3. One or more property owners or residents by petition to the city.

4. Citizen advisory committees or organizations through a petition to the city.

B. Docketing Process: The comprehensive plan shall be amended no more frequently than annually, except that
subarea plans may be adopted as amendments at any time. Amendment proposals shall be processed as
follows:

1. The city shall advertise the comprehensive plan amendment docketing process, inviting the public to
propose amendments. Docketing proposals shall be in the form of a letter simply stating the proposed changes.
The notice shall specify the deadline for submitting proposals. The notice shall also state that the city council
shall decide which proposed amendments will be carried forward during the current cycle.

2. At the close of the proposal period, the submittals shall be reviewed by the planning commission and the
proposals recommended for further processing sent to the city council. This list will include proposals submitted
by city departments, and boards and commissions as well as private parties.

3. The city council shall adopt a resolution directing the administrator to proceed with the selected amendments
for the current cycle. Proposed amendments that are eliminated from further consideration may be resubmitted
in the next cycle.




D. Staff Report: The administrator shall prepare a written report on each amendment pending before the
planning commission. The report shall be transmitted to the planning commission and to the applicant before
the public hearing. Each report shall contain:

1. Any factual findings pertaining to the amendment.

2. Any comments from city departments or other agencies with jurisdiction.

3. The environmental assessment, SEPA determination and/or final environmental impact statement.
4. The staff's recommendation.

E. Public Hearing By Planning Commission: The planning commission shall hold a public hearing prior to the
recommendation for adoption or amendment of any comprehensive plan amendment to the city council.

F. Adoption By City Council: Amendments to the comprehensive plan shall be adopted by the city council by
ordinance after a public hearing on the planning commission's recommendation.

Standards for Consideration of Proposed Amendments: Generally, in order to approve a proposed
comprehensive plan amendment (if proposed by the public, staff or council), the city council shall find all of the
following:

A. The amendment conforms to the requirements of the GMA, is internally consistent with the comprehensive
plan, is consistent with the county-wide planning policies and is consistent with any interlocal planning
agreements;

B. There is a demonstrable need for the amendment supported either by changed conditions or by new
information developed by the director or the proponent;

C. The public interest will be served if the amendment is approved.
D. The amendment does not include nor facilitate illegal zoning.

Planning Commission’s Recommendations:

The Planning Commission recommended approval of the following iteration of the 2019 Comprehensive Plan
Amendment Docket, including the following:

1. The Transportation Improvement Program Update by Parametrix, as well as the Transportation
Element of the Comprehensive Plan (attached as Ex. B) ;

2. Approval of the updated Land Use and Zoning Map to re-designate the RU-L zone to RU (attached as
Ex. C);

3. Approval, with conditions, of the requested amendments to the Comprehensive Plan text and maps
with respect to the MUTCN zone (attached as Exhibit E.1); and

4, Amendments to the corresponding zoning code text for the MUTCN zone (attached as Exhibit E.2).

The Planning Commission approved, with conditions, the request for consideration of a plan amendment from
DR Horton, as reflected in Exhibits E.1 and E.2 hereto. The Planning Commission denied the request for
consideration of a plan amendment from the Wangs, with the following caveat: the Planning Commission
recommends the City Council continue to pursue the extension of Whitehawk Boulevard through to Kansas
Street (the SW Connector) and asks that the City make all reasonable efforts to minimize the impact on the
Wang Property.




Staff Recommendations:

Staff proposes no changes to the Planning Commission’s recommendations as to:

1. The Transportation Improvement Program Update by Parametrix, as well as the Transportation
Element of the Comprehensive Plan (again, attached as Ex. B) ;

2. Approval of the updated Land Use and Zoning Map to re-designate the RU-L zone to RU (again,
attached as Ex. C);

3. Approval, with conditions, of the requested amendments to the Comprehensive Plan text and maps

with respect to the MUTCN zone (attached as Exhibit E.1); and

Staff proposes modifications the Planning Commission’s recommendations, on the following, based on the
information attached hereto and for the reasons expressed therein:

4, Amendments to the corresponding zoning code text for the MUTCN zone (attached as Exhibits F.1).

The Council, within the above referenced guidelines, will consider the proposed amendments.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Hold a public hearing on Staff’'s recommendations (which differ from those
proposed by the Planning Commission).

FUTURE MOTION: To Adopt Ordinance 2019-1040, An Ordinance Of The City Of Orting, Washington, Adopting
Amendments To The Comprehensive Plan And Corresponding Zoning Code, Adopting A Corrected Land Use
Map, And Adopting The 2019 Transportation Improvement Plan.

NOTE: Per Staff’'s Recommendation, the Council will consider two separate Ordinances at the Study Session
on 9/18 — Ordinance 2019-1040, Amending the Comprehensive Plan; and Ordinance No. 2019-XXXX,
Amending OMC Title 13 (the City’s Zoning Code).




Exhibit A



CITY OF ORTING
WASHINGTON

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-1040

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ORTING,
WASHINGTON, RELATING TO LAND USE AND ZONING;
ADOPTING AMENDMENTS TO THE COMPREHENSIVE

PLAN; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, as required by the Growth Management Act (Chapter 36.70A RCW), the City
adopted a comprehensive plan for the community on November 29, 2004, (the “Comprehensive
Plan”), which is updated frequently; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with RCW 36.70A.130, an adopted Comprehensive Plan shall
be subject to continuing evaluation and review, and amendments to the Comprehensive Plan shall
be considered no more frequently than once every year; and

WHEREAS, the City Council on December 13, 2017, adopted Ordinance No.2017-1019
including amendments to the Comprehensive Plan and development regulations pursuant to state
of Washington periodic review requirements; and

WHEREAS, in December 2018, the City initiated a review of the Comprehensive Plan to
address plan elements that require updating, and requested amendment proposals from citizens;
and

WHEREAS, in July 2018, the City determined that the adopted Land Use Map in the
Comprehensive Plan contained an error in which a Residential — Low Urban Zone was depicted
where none exists; and

WHEREAS, the RU-L zoned properties are property characterized as Residential Urban
zoned; and

WHEREAS, as part of the 2019 Comprehensive Plan amendment process, the City
prepared a detailed Transportation Improvement Plan which is a component of the proposed
amended Comprehensive Plan; and

WHEREAS, DR Horton company requested a comprehensive review of the Mixed Use
Town Center North zoning with a request to amend both the Comprehensive Plan Land Use
Element text and the corresponding implementing zoning code: and

WHEREAS, the City has undertaken a public involvement process and provided for early
and continuous public participation opportunities including multiple Planning Commission
workshops from December 2018 to June 2019 including public meetings on the Comprehensive



Plan amendments on December 3, 2018, January 7, 2019, January 22, 2019, February 14, 2019,
March 4, 2019, March 21, 2019, April 1, 2019 and May 6, 2019, and June 3, 2019; July 1, 2019;
a public open house on April 26, 2019; a joint meeting with the Orting City Council on April 20,
2019 and a public hearing on June 18, 2019 before the Planning Commission; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with WAC 365-196-630, a notice of intent to adopt the
proposed Comprehensive Plan amendments was sent to the State of Washington Department of
Commerce and to other state agencies with acknowledgement by the Department on July 2, 2019,
to allow for a 60-day review and comment period; and

WHEREAS, an environmental review of the proposed Comprehensive Plan amendments
has been conducted in accordance with the requirements of the State Environmental Policy Act
(“SEPA”), and a SEPA threshold determination of non-significance was issued on July 1, 2019;
and

WHEREAS, the full text of the amendments was provided to the Planning Commission,
posted on the City website, and described at the aforementioned public workshops; and

WHEREAS, on July 1, 2019 the Planning Commission, after considering the public
comments received and other information presented at the aforementioned public hearings and
public meetings, voted to recommend the adoption of the proposed amendments to the
Comprehensive Plan summarized in Exhibit A to this Ordinance to the City Council; and

WHEREAS, on July 17", 2019 and August 21%, 2019, the City Council reviewed the
Planning Commission’s recommendation; and

WHEREAS, On August 28", held a second public hearing to take public testimony
regarding the proposed amendments to the Comprehensive Plan; and

WHEREAS, having considered, among other things, the public testimony, the minutes of
the Planning Commission meetings, the preliminary and final staff reports, and the Planning
Commission recommendations, the City Council finds that the proposed amendments to the
Comprehensive Plan are consistent with and would serve to further implement the planning goals
of the adopted Comprehensive Plan and the Growth Management Act, bear a substantial relation
to the public health, safety or welfare, and promote the best long term interests of the Orting
community;

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Orting, Washington, do ordain as
follows:

Section 1. Incorporation of Recitals. The above stated recitals are incorporated as
though fully set forth herein.

Section 2. Adoption of Amendments to Comprehensive Plan. The City Council adopts
the proposed 2019 text amendments to the Comprehensive Plan, “Exhibit A”, which is
incorporated by reference herein.




Section 3. Adoption of Amendments to the Zoning Code (OMC 13-3-2 and OMC 13-
3-3). The City Council adopts the proposed 2019 amendments to the Orting Zoning Code (OMC
13-3-2 and 13-3-3), “Exhibit B”, which is incorporated by reference herein.

Section 4. Adoption of a Corrected Land Use Map, Figure L.U-12019. The City Council
adopts the corrected land use map, Figure LU-1 2019, “Exhibit C”, which is incorporated by
reference herein.

Section 5. Adoption of the Orting 2040 Transportation Plan. The City Council adopts
the Orting 2040 Transportation Plan, “Exhibit D”, which is incorporated by reference herein.
Section 7.1 of the Future Transportation Plan is amended as follows to add the following
paragraph:

Within the MUTCN Zone. development shall include an extension of Daffodil Avenue as
a city street with a connection to intersect with Whitehawk Boulevard and into the Orting School
District Property.

Section 6. Severability. Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this
Ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance, be declared unconstitutional or
otherwise invalid for any reason, or should any portion of this Ordinance be pre-empted by state
or federal law or regulation, such decision or pre-emption shall not affect the validity of the
remaining portions of this Ordinance or its application to other persons or circumstances.

Section 7. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be published in the official newspaper of
the City and shall take effect and be in full force five (5) days after the date of publication.

FIRST READING BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF ON
THE 11™, DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2019.

ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF ON THE
DAY OF , 2019

CITY OF ORTING

Joshua Penner, Mayor

ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:

Jane Montgomery, City Clerk, CMC

APPROVED AS TO FORM:



Charlotte A. Archer
Inslee, Best, Doezie & Ryder, P.S.
City Attorney

Filed with the City Clerk: 7.02.19
Passed by the City Council:
Ordinance No.2019-1040

Date of Publication:

Effective Date:
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11241 Slater Avenue NE, Surte 200, Kirkland, WA 98033 - Phone 425-821-3400 -

November 16, 2018

Mr. Mark Bethune
City Administrator
City of Orting

110 Train Street SE
Orting, WA 98360

Re: Mixed Use Town Center North — Comprehensive Plan Amendment Docket Request
Mr. Bethune,

D.R. Horton, on behalf of Ameri-Orting Development LLC and C&D Industrial LLC, hereby requests the City add
an amendment to the Mixed Use Town Center North Comprehensive Plan Designation to the current docket
request. Specifically, we are requesting the following changes to the Mixed Use Town Center North
designation:

1. Allow credit for construction of the City street grid within the site against traffic mitigation fees -
specifically Daffodil Avenue and Whitehawk Road.

2. Remove requirements for connection to and improvements associated with Rocky Road and High

School Road.

Allow all other internal roadways, other than Daffodil Avenue and Whitehawk Road, to remain private.

Maximum allowable dwelling units shall be based on 10 units per gross acre.

5. Reduce the portion of the site allocated Zone 1 to approximately 5 acres with 25,000 sf of
commercial/retail/office uses with pedestrian orientation to Highway 162.

6. Creation of a Zone 1 Reserve designation on approximately 5 acres with up to an additional 50,000 sf
of commercial/retail/office/self storage facility which can be converted to Zone 2 based on market
demand for commercial/retail/office/self storage uses. This Zone 1 Reserve designation would require
a corresponding zoning code text amendment to allow self storage uses.

7. Creation of a Zone 2A designation of approximately 15 acres of muiti-family uses at a maximum
density of 20 units per gross acre.

8. Creation of a Zone 2B designation of approximately 29 acres for single family, cottage, townhome, and
age restricted housing at a maximum density of 12 units per gross acre.

9. Reduce the portion of the site allocated Zone 3 to approximately 11 acres.

Ll

Attached hereto, is a proposed Comprehensive Plan Map depicting the docket request outlined above.
Should you have any questions regarding this request, please feel free to contact me.

Regards,

it f e

Katherine E. Orni
Forward Planning Manager
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August 15, 2018

Mr. Mark Bethune
City Administrator
City of Orting

110 Train Street S.E.
Orting, WA 98360

Dear Mr. Bethune,

We, Jung-San and Margaret Wang, own the property at 507 W. Calistoga Avenue and the
adjoining parcel that would be affected by the proposed Whitehawk Boulevard NW Extension
that appears in the 2015 Comprehensive Plan. We request that the city amend the plan to
restore the proposed route to Alternative 3 that is described and recommended in the planning
commission’s November 18, 2008, facts and findings. (The Orting City Council adopted the
planning commission’s recommendation in December 2008.) Alternative 3 would make the
Whitehawk Extension emerge to intersect with Calistoga Street at Skinner Way S.W.

In 2008, the planning commission found that Alternative 3:

e Resulted in “the highest rating for traffic mobility because it gives the quickest, most
direct route to move commuters through Orting while maintaining the sovereignty of
our existing neighborhoods”;

e Would “give commuters and citizens more alternatives to move inside the city, reducing
the impact for residents on Calistoga Av. W.”;

e Would remove only “one stand-alone older farm house and should not impact other
home sites”; and

e “[W]as the favored alighment of the citizens who gave testimony.”

In stark contrast, the planning commission found that the proposed routing that appears in the
2015 Comprehensive plan—described as Alternative 1 in the planning commission’s facts and
findings and intersecting with Calistoga Street at Kansas Street—would (A) “create an
“unfriendly corridor through a residential neighborhood, possibly making the lots less desirable
as home sites” and (B) “reduce the number of lots for development from 91 to 84[,)” which
would “reduce revenues collected by the City from building impact fees and cause possible
devaluation of the Wang family property.”

We respectfully request that, in the comprehensive plan, the City return the proposed routing
for the Whitehawk Extension to the Alternative 3 routing, which is clearly superior and was
supported by citizens, the planning commission and the city council.

Jung San & Margaret Wang
¢/o Carol Wang

2520 N. 55" Street

Omaha NE 68104
817-723-3279 cell

Enclosures
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CITY OF ORTING FACTS & FINDINGS

PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING
SW CONNECTOR — CALISTOGA ST. WEST CORRIDOR STUDY

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on November 18, 2008 regarding the Southwest Connector Calistoga St.
West Corridor Study. Parametrix Engineer, Devin Wolf gave a brief overview of the three proposed alternative routes;
weighing both the pros and cons of each. The Commission received letters from Jung-San & Margaret Wang and Dianna

. Kent. The Commission also received two conception layouts of the Wang Parcel provided by staff. After much discussion

and public testimony the Planning Commission makes the following FINDING OF FACTS:

:»[f ®

The intent of the Whitehawk connector is to filter traffic from SR 162 to Cemetery Hill on toward the Graham area.
Alternative 3, juncturing in at Skinner Way SW would keep traffic to the intended use, thereby keeping safety at a
maximum and noise at a minimum.

The intent of the Whitehawk connector is to allow the citizens of Orting alternatives to travel inside the city.

The Commission is concermned that traffic safety could become a problem and suggested that restriction of oversize
trucks may be necessary at somc point.

Alternative 1 will increase traffic on Kansas St. SW, creating more safety concerns. Currently South Prairie
comunuters use SR 162 all the way through town. With a connector alignment on Kansas St. SW those commuters

will bypass the downtown and now travel on a residential street.

Alternative 1, in regards to the Wang Property, will create an unfriendly corridor through a residential
nexghborhood possﬂ)ly making the lots less desirable as home sites.

Alternative 1 as shown in the concept Wang Parcel Layout will reduce the number of lots for development from 91
to 84. This will reduce revenues collected by the City from building impact fees and cause possible devaluation of

the Wang family prop'érty
Alterative 1 will causé'the T. Park property to becomc an lsland between the connector and the Puget Sound

Energy power facility. .~ - Cemete ten 0
Alternative 1 would impact the Cahstoga ne1ghborhood by the loss of two homes and the possible devaluation of

several others.

Alternative 1 was soundly rejected by five of the seven citizens that gave testimony.

Alternative 2 will make a major intersection too close to the Kansas St. SW and Skinner Way SW intersections,
possibly causing a mobility problem.

Alternative 2 does not address the needs of the city or her citizens.

Alternative 3 has the'highest rating for traffic mobility because it gives the quickest, most direct route to move
commuters through Orting while maintaining the sovereignty of our existing neighborhoaods.

Alternative 3 will give commuters and citizens more alternatives to move inside the city, reducing the impact for
residents on Calistoga Av. W.

Alternative 3 removes one stand-alone older farm house and should not impact other home sites.

Alternative 3 was the favored alignment of the citizens who gave testimony.

If Alternative 3 is constructed in tandem with the proposed setback levee project, it will have a beneficial impact to
threatened and endangered fish spemes in the Puyallup River. There is also a possibility of additional funding if the
projects were coordinated.

From the forgoing findings of facts the Planning Commission hereby makes the following Conclusion and
Recommendation to Ceuncil:

The Planning Commission recommends to the City Council Alternative #3 for the Southwest Connector. This alignment
will make only a nominal impact to the surrounding neighborhoods and best achieves the intended use of the corridor.

PREPARED BY: Kim Whitlock, November 19th, 2008

/
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Parametrix. 2019. Orting 2040 Transportation Plan.
Prepared by Parametrix, Seattle, WA. March 2019.



Orting 2040 Transportation Plan
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Orting 2040 Transportation Plan

City of Orting
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The Orting 2040 Transportation Plan defines the existing and future transportation vision for Orting and
will inform updates to the 2015 Transportation Element and Appendix from the Orting Comprehensive
Plan published in June 2015. This transportation plan contains a description of existing transportation
conditions, travel forecasts, service standards and analysis, and transportation recommendations. The
following analysis and conclusions will inform the City of Orting 2040 Comprehensive Plan.

The City of Orting has a unique configuration with respect to transportation. The community lies in the
Orting Valley between the Carbon and Puyallup Rivers. State Route (SR) 162 runs between the two rivers
and links Orting with Sumner and Buckley. Orting is a small rural community of just under 8,000
residents—more than twice the population just 20 years ago. Many of the local city streets are quiet,
tree lined, with low traffic volumes. The older portion of the City is laid out on a traditional grid system
and some recent developments feature a curvilinear circulation pattern.
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Maintain a transportation system that accommodates the
separation of through and local traffic, provides adequate internal
circulation, and interconnects effectively to the regional highway,
non-motorized, and public transportation systems is responsive to
the mobility needs of City businesses and neighborhoods, and
guides future developments.

Coordinate with local, regional, state, and federal agencies in the
development and operation of the transportation system. In
particular, support City, County, and state implementation of
comprehensive solutions to capacity, safety, and circulation
problems with SR 162,

Establish a safe and convenient pedestrian and bicycle circulation
system linking residential communities with key destinations.

Fund transportation facility improvements with federal, state, and
local public and private sources.

Realize the vision for Washington Avenue as Orting’s main street,
providing high quality aesthetic design in conjunction with multi-
modal mobility, pedestrian safety, and infill economic development.

Meet federal and state air quality requirements and work with
state, regional and other local agencies to develop transportation
control measures and/or mobile source emission reduction
programs that may be warranted to attain or maintain air quality
requirements.

Periodically update traffic forecasts and levels of service analysis on
all arterials in the City.

Provide adequate, system-wide capacity on arterial streets to avoid
diversion of excess traffic from congested arterials to neighborhood
streets.

Maintain truck routes on Principal Arterials and enforce truck use
accordingly.

Develop the local street system to ensure connectivity between
adjacent developments, and provide connections to arterials from
neighborhood collectors.

Existing non-through (dead-end) streets shall be linked together
whenever practical.
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Policy T6 Minimize the use of cul-de-sacs, dead-end streets and other designs
that reduce connectivity between neighborhoods.
Policy T7 Protect street rights-of-way from encroachment by structures,

fences, retaining walls, landscaping, or other obstructions to preserve
the public’s use of the right-of-way, and to ensure safety and
mobility.

Policy T8 Maintain a consistent classification of streets as Principal-, Minor-,
and Collector Arterials, Neighborhood Collector Streets and Local
Streets according to function, based on federal, state, and regional
guidelines so that needed traffic capacity may be preserved and
planned street improvements will be consistent with those functions.

Policy T9 Limit the number of residences that can be served by a dead end/
cul-de-sac street.

Policy T10 Maintain a comprehensive street improvement plan for city streets
that implements the desired streetscape for each functional
classification. Arterial street standards shall provide guidance on the
width of lanes, driveway access, right-of-way width, sidewalks
median treatments, setbacks, lighting, pedestrian facilities,
landscaping, or other improvements.

Policy T11 Design street improvements to fit the character of areas they serve.

Policy T12 Maximize and maintain the capacity of arterial streets through the
provision of turn lanes and other auxiliary lanes rather than street
widening solutions.

Policy T13 Encourage shared use of driveways served by arterials.

Policy T14 Use street design standards to minimize pavement widths while
accommodating on-street parking, and allowing cars to pass, thereby
slowing the speed of vehicles on local streets, improving pedestrian
safety and allowing for landscaping.

Policy T15 Require safe, attractive sidewalks on all streets.

Policy T16 Provide comprehensive street lighting, including lights for pedestrians
on sidewalks and trails, using such factors as adjacent land uses,
hazardous street crossings, transit routes, schools, and parks.

Policy T17 Monitor traffic accidents, citizen input/complaints, traffic violations,
and traffic growth to identify and prioritize locations for safety
improvements.

Policy 718 Consider the use of devices that increase safety of pedestrian

crossings such as flags, in-pavement lights, raised crosswalks, colored
and textured pavements.
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Policy T26

Policy T27

Policy 728
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Consider design options for application of neighborhood traffic
calming devices such as median barriers, speed humps, speed tables,
raised crosswalks, raised intersections, traffic circles, roundabouts,
chicanes, chokers, neckdowns, and textured pavements on local
streets where traffic and pedestrian safety is of concern.
Neighborhood Collectors shall receive the first priority followed by
other local streets. Installation of neighborhood traffic control
devices shall be avoided on arterials.

Minimize local property access on Principal and Minor arterials.
Consolidate existing access driveways on arterials when street
improvements are implemented, or redevelopment proposals are
made.

Participate in regional efforts to improve air quality by promoting
alternatives to the single occupant vehicles; use of cleaner fuels;
implementing transportation demand management goals and policies
and maintaining or improving the operating efficiency of the
transportation system.

Mitigate noise impacts when designing future roadway
improvements.

Reduce the amount of impervious surfaces (e.g., streets, driveways)
to the extent practicable.

Minimize harmful pollutants generated by transportation-related
construction, operations, and maintenance activities from entering
surface and groundwater resources.

Maintain intersection level of service (LOS) according to the following
standards:
e LOS E on arterial intersections in the Mixed-Use Town Center
e LOS D on all other arterial intersections
Transportation improvement projects, strategies and actions needed
to serve new developments shall be in place at the time new
development occurs or be financially committed and scheduled for
completion within six years of permit approvals.

Consider the effect of the City’s growth and transportation
improvement programs on other adjacent jurisdictions through
coordination with county, state, and regional agencies
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Policy T29 Maintain and apply standardized transportation impact mitigation
procedures and strategies, including payment of traffic impact fees.

Policy T30 Require dedication of right-of-way as a condition of development
approval when the need for such right-of-way is determined in the
permit approval process

Policy T31 Maintain a right-of-way use permit process to minimize
environmental and traffic impacts during construction.

Policy T32 Promote pedestrian and bicycle networks that safely access
commercial areas, schools, transit routes, parks, and other
destinations within Orting and connect to adjacent communities,
regional destinations and routes.

Policy T33 Require new development to ensure safety, comfort and
convenience of pedestrians and bicyclists.

Policy T34 Designate and construct segregated internal pedestrian circulation
systems in new or redeveloping commercial-retail districts. Provide
connectivity to nearby transit stops using sidewalks, landscaping,
covered walkways, or other treatments.

Policy T35 Promote a comprehensive and interconnected network of pedestrian
and bike routes within and between neighborhoods.

Policy T36 Require trail routes and/or sidewalks where appropriate in PUD, plat
and short plat approvals.

Policy T37 Work progressively to provide and maintain sidewalks in established
neighborhoods. Priority shall be given to all public facilities such as
transit routes, schools and parks, and multi-family housing,
commercial areas, and gaps in the existing sidewalk system.

Policy T38 Provide striped, on-street bicycle facilities on arterial streets on
paved shoulders or within wide curb lanes to ensure safety for
bicyclists.

Policy T39 Ensure that sidewalks meet requirements of the Americans with
Disabilities Act.

Policy T40 Identify non-motorized facility improvements on school walk routes
to increase pedestrian safety.

Policy T41 Require secure (racks and lighting) bicycle parking at commercial and
institutional facilities along with automobile parking.

eg

Policy T42 Ensure coordination and consistency with state, regional and local
transportation plans.

Policy T43 Coordinate the Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program with
adjacent jurisdictions’ where City projects have regional implications.

Policy T44 Participate in regional transportation planning to ensure that the

City’s interests are reflected appropriately.
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Maintain a street utility for the purpose of supporting preservation
and ongoing maintenance and operations of its transportation
systems pursuant to RCW 82.80.

Maximize outside funding from regional, County, State, or Federal
sources.

Emphasize multimodal enhancements to the transportation system in
funding transportation programs.

Ensure the adopted impact fee rate schedule reflects the current land
use and transportation forecasts and needs.

Update the six-year Transportation Improvement Program (TIP)
annually to implement the Long-Range Capital Facility Plan.

Maintain and monitor a scheduled street maintenance program
including regular street sweeping to ensure that all arterial and
neighborhood collector streets shoulders and/or designated bike
lanes are clear of sand, glass, and debris.

The City's transportation system shall conform to federal and state
Clean Air Acts by maintaining conformity with the Metropolitan
Transportation Plan of the Puget Sound Regional Council and by
following the requirements of Chapter 173-420 of the Washington
Administrative Code.

Travel in modes other than single-occupant vehicles shall be
encouraged. Transportation demand management strategies will be
employed to discourage the use of single-occupant vehicles and to
encourage non-motorized transportation.

Consider air quality effects of future development when considering
annexations, amendments to the Comprehensive Plan and
development regulations, and during project review processes.

Establish standards for the control of particulate matter on paved
public roads.
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This section summarizes the existing (2017) transportation system for all modes of travel in Orting. This
information supports the city’s comprehensive planning process, which must, among other things,
contain travel forecasts, a level of service standard, be regionally coordinated, and meet concurrency
requirements. The transportation element for the City of Orting must meet the requirements of the
GMA and will be certified by the Puget Sound Regional Council. The element will contain a description of
existing transportation conditions, travel forecasts, service standards and analysis, and transportation
recommendations, all of which will be coordinated with the county and the state.

The roadway network in Orting consists of corridors serving different travel needs. The main
thoroughfare is SR 162, which runs northwest/southeast through the center of Orting. Calistoga Street
W is the other significant arterial in the city that provides an east/west link across the Puyallup River and
to the Orting-Kapowsin Highway. There are minimal east/west regional connections into and out of
Orting.

As Orting continues to grow, the internal street network will continue to be developed. City streets are
classified into different categories to guide development and define the degree to which they provide
through movement and land access functions. Roadway classification is based upon guidelines prepared
by the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) and administered by the Washington State Department
of Transportation (WSDOT). City streets in Orting are classified into four functional classifications that
are accompanied by different land use policies and street standards. The four classifications are:

* Principal Arterials, which are streets and highways that carry the greatest portion of through or
long-distance traffic. Such facilities serve the high-volume travel corridors that connect major
generators of traffic. The selected routes provide an integrated system for complete circulation
of traffic, including ties to the major rural highways entering urban areas.

* Minor Arterials, which are streets and highways that connect with remaining arterial and
collector roads that extend into the urban area. Minor arterial streets and highways serve less
concentrated traffic-generating areas, serve as boundaries to neighborhoods, and collect traffic
from collector streets. Although the predominant function of minor streets is the movement of
through traffic, they also provide for considerable local traffic that originates or is destined for
points along the corridor.

* Collectors, which are streets that provide direct services to residential areas, local parks,
churches, and areas with similar land uses. To preserve the amenities of neighborhoods, they
are usually spaced at about 0.5-mile intervals in order to collect traffic from local access streets
and convey it to major and minor arterial streets and highways. Collector streets are typically 1
to 2 miles in length. Direct access to abutting land is essential.

* Local Access Streets, which are the remaining streets that allow access to individual homes,
shops, and similar destinations. They provide direct access to abutting land and to the higher
classification of roadways. Through traffic is discouraged.

Figure 3-1 shows the functional classification of the roadways within the City.
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Figure 3-1. Orting Roadway Functional Classification
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Staie-owned Transportation Facilities and Highways of Statewide Significance

In 1998, the Washington State Legislature enacted the “Level of Service Bill” (House Bill 1487) that
amended the GMA to include additional detail regarding state-owned transportation facilities in the
transportation element of comprehensive plans. PSRC, in 2003, adopted level of service standards for
regionally significant state highways. Regionally significant state highways are state transportation
facilities that are not designated as highways of statewide significance. Within Orting, no roadways
have been designated as a Highway of Statewide Significance in WSDOT’s Highway System Plan. SR 162,
which links Orting with Sumner and Buckley, is the only state-owned facility within the planning area
and is designated as a Regionally Significant State Highway. WSDOT completed a study of SR 162 in
June 2017 to identify strategies to increase mobility and improve safety in the corridor. Although the
scope of the study was outside of the Orting City limits, potential improvement options could improve
traffic flow and safety for vehicles exiting and entering Orting. Improvement strategies identified in the
study will be incorporated in WSDOT’s Corridor Sketch Phase Il for SR 162 and prioritized for funding on
a statewide basis.

The primary roadway network in Orting comprises the following:

e State Routes: SR 162 runs northwest/southeast through Orting, providing the primary connection
to SR 512 and Interstate 5. Outside of the city limits, SR 162 is a two-lane principal arterial with
limited shoulders and a posted speed limit of 50 miles per hour (mph). Within the city limits, the
roadway is known as Washington Avenue N and is a two-lane principal arterial with a narrow
painted median and paved shoulders and has parking on both sides of the road in the downtown
core. The posted speed limit is 35 mph, and reduces to 25 mph near Orting High School.

* Pierce County Roadways: Orting-Kapowsin Highway is a two-lane major arterial, with a posted
speed limit of 35 mph along most of its length. Shoulders have a gravel surface, with a walking
path along the east side of the road in some areas. It runs adjacent to the city limit line for a
short distance south of the Puyallup River before turning into Calistoga Street W.

* Local Transportation System: Calistoga Street W is the primary local street that provides
east/west travel. Calistoga Street W is a two-lane roadway with intermittently paved or graveled
shoulders and sidewalks on the north side. Other local streets in the city provide access to the
downtown area of Orting, and commercial and residential areas.

Table 3-1 provides an existing conditions inventory of many of the roadways in the area, including
functional classification, shoulder type, parking, sidewalks, bicycle lanes, and posted speed limits.

Table 3-1. Roadway Inventory — Existing Conditions

Speed
Functional Bicycle Limit
Roadway Classification Shoulder Parking Sidewalks Lane {mph)
5R-162/ Pioneer Way Principal arterial Paved No Interrupted No 50/35/25
Washington Avenue N Principal arterial Paved Yes Both No 25
O'rt ing-Kapowsin Principal arterial Gravel No No No 35
Highway
Varner Avenue NE Collector Gravel/grass Yes Both No Not posted
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Table 3-1. Roadway Inventory ~ Existing Conditions (continued)
Speed
Functional Bicycle Limit
Roadway Classification Shoulder Parking Sidewalks Lane {mph)
Calistoga Street W Principal arterial Paved/gravel Yes Both No 25
Whitehawk Boulevard Collector Paved Yes Both No 25
Whitesell
north—both
Eldredge Avenue Collector Gravel/grass Yes sides; No Not posted
Safeway
south—one
side
Whitesell Street Collector None No One side No Not posted
Yes {angle
Corrin Avenue Minor arterial Paved parking Both No Not posted
downtown)
Bridge Street Collector Gravel/grass Yes Both No Not posted
Kansas Street SW Principal arterial Paved Yes Both No Not posted
Harman Way Principal arterial Paved Yes Yes No Not posted

General purpose traffic volumes during the PM peak hour were collected at 19 intersections throughout

Orting in April 2017:

¢ Intersection A: Washington Avenue N and Williams Boulevard NW

* Intersection B: Washington Avenue N and Lane Boulevard NW

* Intersection C: Washington Avenue N and Rocky Road NE

* Intersection D: Washington Avenue N and Old Pioneer Way NW

* Intersection E: Washington Avenue N and Whitehawk Boulevard NW

¢ Intersection F: Washington Avenue N and Ammons Lane NE

* Intersection G: Washington Avenue N and Cardinal Lane

* Intersection H: Washington Avenue N and Whitesell Street §

* Intersection I: Washington Avenue S and Calistoga Avenue W

* Intersection J: Washington Avenue S and Train Avenue §

* Intersection K: Washington Avenue SE and Bridge Street S

* Intersection L: Bridge Street S and Harman Way S and Corrin Avenue F

* Intersection M: Harman Way S and Kansas Street SW

* Intersection N: Calistoga Avenue W and Corrin Avenue SW

* Intersection O: Calistoga Avenue W and Eldredge Avenue SW

34
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e Intersection P: Calistoga Street W and Kansas Street SW

¢ Intersection Q: Train Street SW and Van Scoyoc Avenue East

s Intersection R: River Avenue SE and Varner Avenue SE and Bridge Street SE
e Intersection S: Eldredge Avenue NW and Whitesell Street S

Figure 3-2 summarizes the intersection counts. Traffic volumes during the PM peak hour represent the
highest hourly volume of vehicles passing through an intersection during the 4:00 to 6:00 PM peak
period. Because the PM peak hour volumes represent the highest volumes of the average day, these
traffic volumes were used for the base year operations analysis, and as the basis for future year traffic
volume projections.

intersection level of service (LOS) is a term used to describe the operating conditions and amount of
delay a driver will experience while traveling through an intersection or along a roadway. LOS ranges
from A (very little delay) to F {long delays and congestion). Table 3-2 summarizes the amount of delay in
seconds associated with each LOS designation. The LOS/delay criteria for stop-sign-controlled
intersections are different than for signalized intersections because driver expectation is that a
signalized intersection is designed to carry higher traffic volumes and experience greater delay. For
signalized intersections, the LOS ranges from A with a delay of less than 10 seconds to F with a delay of
more than 80 seconds. For stop-sign-controlled intersections, LOS A also has a delay of less than 10
seconds, while LOS F has a delay of more than 50 seconds.
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Table 3-2. Vehicle Level of Service and Delay
Level of Signalized Intersection Delay Unsignalized Intersection
Service Description (sec/veh) Delay (sec/veh)

Some driver frustration; moderate

>35 and <55 >25 and <35
delay

For unsignalized intersections, delay is reported for the worst-operating approach (typically, the minor
street left turn). For signalized intersections, the average delay is reported for all vehicles. LOS D is the
concurrency standard adopted by the City of Orting. Figure 3-3 shows the overall existing intersection
LOS at the study intersections in Orting during the PM peak hour. Most of the intersections in the City
meet the concurrency standard adopted by the City of Orting. However, Washington Avenue N and
Rocky Road NE (intersection C) and Calistoga Street W and Kansas Street SW (intersection P) exceed the
threshold and operate at LOS E. At Washington Avenue N and Rocky Road NE (intersection C), the delay
is experienced by very few vehicles, approximately five vehicles during the PM peak hour as summarized
.in Figure 3-2. The Washington Avenue N and Whitehawk Boulevard NW intersection (intersection E)
operates acceptably but at the City’s concurrency threshold of LOS D.

March 2019 | 214-1711-020 (4002.05) 3-7



Orting 2040 Transportation Plan

City of Orting
taaTE N
/
‘m-bl"' \
N AN
- E, s s
ERE R ¥ ¢)
. e\ % 2\
o aV% %\
HIGH CEDARS c\v'a % %\
GOLF CLUB \ ] S \
I e = -
| h""lunm‘-‘ ‘g?" \
=2 * \
B | ““% % !‘ \
< i ; ‘ﬁx \\
e O ;
\\ : B, H
N C) i ' -
I 2 WETHETE ‘Q . : l,“\\
= & \ ..f"""““?o e /// N %
' ! - VB e -
> % | 4 L
] 3, Y S
\ E \.. + \\ »ﬁ‘

W AVE
7

anr, f
| ‘!‘,, . ‘ N N e E
[ 3 SRIODE 30 M
a 12680 57 0 \ . \
i L - T e \
- = L d
‘ : N \ "m%;hl A 0, )
z 3 'c‘ \ AJ’ % 5 E %q’% s . /]
3 % \ ':m " "5 ‘ s
E \ = a /
bt ¥ o
g N San vty o st am S
E WR3TH ST € >, K _f d]
: [ 2z 7
5 A r
S f &
£ 183TH ST ¢ I £ ;e |
g I i v I
| o CORRN ®
F I
E ORTING KAPOWSIN WY £ “5,‘5,‘*. e SW ' -
V? :
A .L' ! :
g 3 g | 3 =
g £ g | g
: 7, . i } :
g 40, o ] Aeees, | &
IS f: \’ q"z,‘ 199TR ST
% - M f'_{ ______ ' 2007 ST E
& 80T iEs o
E ° Not available - configuration not supported in HCM analysis, ICU LOS is provided e £
[=
Parametrixn souce ®Maptor, ©OpenstrestMap Orting, WA
Q L | Orting City Limit @ L0SAC
(O Unsignalized Intersection LosD
0 1,000 2,000 4,000 LOSE
feet [] signalized Intersection @ OSF
Figure 3-3. Existing (2017) PM Peak Hour Intersection Operations
322 Colision History

WSDOT provided a history of reported collisions that occurred within the city limits of Orting for the
period of January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2016. Figure 3-4 summarizes the locations where the
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collisions occurred in Orting. Total accidents averaged approximately 37 per year with a total of 186 over
the 5-year collision period. Nearly 70 percent of collisions were property damage only. There were no
fatal collisions and only three collisions were serious injury collisions. Five collisions involved non-
motorized users. Most accidents (approximately 60 percent) were at intersections or driveways.

Table 3-3 summarizes collisions by severity in the entire street network. As shown, most of the collisions
along the roadways resulted in property damage only (135 of 186 total collisions). The remaining 51
collisions resulted in an injury.

Table 3-3. Summary of Collisions by Severity for Entire Street Network
(January 2012 to December 2016)

Collision Severity

Property !

Location Fatality | Injuries Damage Only ! Total
SR 162 (Washington Avenue N) | 0 | 34 58 | 92
SR 162 (Bridge Street S and Harman Way 5} | 0 | 4 | 17 ! 21
Calistoga Street W | 0 | 5 [ 22 | 27
Kansas Street SW | 0 1 1 | 2
Other {minor, collector, local access streets) | 0 37 | 44
Total 0 51 135 186

Source WSDOT Transportation Data and GIS Office

Disclaimer: Under 23 U.S. Code § 409, safety data, reports, surveys, schedules, lists compiled or collected for the purpose of identifying,
evaluating, or planning the safety enhancement of potential crash sites, hazardous roadway conditions, or railway-highway crossings
are not subject to discovery or admitted into evidence in a Federal or State court proceeding or considered for other purposes in any
action for damages arising from any occurrence at a location mentioned or addressed in such reports, surveys, schedules, lists, or data.

In addition to summarizing the collision data by severity, the 51 injury collisions were summarized by type
in Table 3-4. For the entire roadway network, the majority of the injury collisions were rear end. Rear-end
collisions often occur in congested locations. The other collision types along the entire network were
entering at angle, fixed object, pedestrian and/or cyclist involvement, sideswipe, and turning (opposite
direction) and none of these had more than five collisions over the 5-year period.
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Source: 'WSDOT, City of Orting

Aerial: October 2018
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Figure 3-4. All Collisions in the City of Orting {January 2012 to December 2016)
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Table 3-4. Summary of Injury Collisions by Type for Entire Street Network (January 2012 to December 2016)

| Collision Type

] | 1 | -
® 3 E { v | g = o
a | L i c

' 8| =|E.% B % g-‘a‘g‘2§|
el 9! 58! g 3"23‘:- 2 | €E8% RE| %
£® ¢ £ % 38El s = | 58552 B
Location | o] & |0In. a0E « | @& |—9—D‘>5 =
SR 162 (Washington Avenue N) '3 | 31211 2 |20 2 | 1 0 34
SR 162 (Bridge Street S and Harman Way S} | o 0 |10 | 1 o0 ! o | o0 | 4
Calistoga Street W 1 T o!lo!l o] 1 1] 1 i 0 | s
Kansas Street SW | o 1 0| o0 0 0o 0| 0 0 1
Other (minor, collector, local access streets) T 0o | 2 I 1 | 1 1 0 1 7
Total S 4 3 3 5 24 q 2 1 51

Source: WSDOT Transportation Data and GIS Office

Disclaimer: Under 23 U.S. Code § 409, safety data, reports, surveys, schedules, lists compiled or collected for the purpose of identifying, evaluating, or
planning the safety enhancement of potential crash sites, hazardous roadway conditions, or railway-highway crossings are not subject to discovery or
admitted into evidence in a Federal or State court proceeding or considered for other purposes in any action for damages arising from any occurrence at
a location mentioned or addressed in such reports, surveys, schedules, lists, or data.

Additionally, the collision history was reviewed for the study area intersections by severity and type.
Table 3-5 summarizes the study area intersection collisions by severity. As shown, most of the collisions
at the study intersections resulted in property damage only (75 of 107 total collisions). The remaining 32
collisions at study area intersections resulted in an injury.

Table 3-5. Summary of Collisions by Severity at Study Intersections (January 2012 to December 2016)

! Collision Severity
[ Property

Location Fatality | Injuries | Damage Only | Total
Washington Avenue N and Williams Boulevard NW | 0 f 6 ' 12 | 18
Washington Avenue N and Lane Boulevard NW | 5
Washington Avenue N and Rocky Road NE
Washington Avenue N and Old Pioneer Way NW
Washington Avenue N and Whitehawk Boulevard NW
Washington Avenue N and Ammons Lane NE/Driveway
Washington Avenue N and Cardinal Lane
Washington Avenue N and Whitesell Street S
Washington Avenue S and Calistoga Avenue W
Washington Avenue S and Train Avenue S
Washington Avenue SE and Bridge Street S
Bridge Street S and Harman Way S and Corrin Avenue £ |
Harman Way S and Kansas Street SW '
Calistoga Avenue W and Corrin Avenue SW
Calistoga Avenue W and Eldredge Avenue SW
Calistoga Street W and Kansas Street SW |
Train Street SW/Train Avenue S and Van Scoyoc E
River Avenue SE/Verner Avenue SE and Bridge Street SE
Eldredge Avenue NW and Whitesell Street S

NiEinjnfolu,

=
o
—
w
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O|N|IO|O|N|R|R|R|AIN
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olo|lo|lo|lo|o|lo|o|o|o|0|o|O|O|O|O|O|C|C

w
~
~
«

Total 107

Source: WSDOT Transportation Data and GIS Office

Disclaimer: Under 23 U.S. Code § 409, safety data, reports, surveys, schedules, lists compiled or collected for the purpose of identifying,
evaluating, or planning the safety enhancement of potential crash sites, hazardous roadway conditions, or railway-highway crossings are not
subject to discovery or admitted into evidence in a Federal or State court proceeding or considered for other purposes in any action for
damages arising from any occurrence at a location mentioned or addressed in such reports, surveys, schedules, lists, or data.
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The 32 injury collisions that occurred at study intersections were summarized by type in Table 3-6. The
majority of the injury collisions were rear end, specifically on the main arterial, Washington Avenue
N/Bridge Street/Harman Way (SR 162). Rear-end collisions often occur at congested locations. The other
collisions types at study intersections were entering at angle, fixed object, pedestrian and/or cyclist
involvement, sideswipe, and turning (opposite direction). Other than rear-end collisions, there were no
more than five collisions of any type over the 5-year period.

Table 3-6. Summary of Injury Collisions by Type at Study Intersections (January 2012 to December 2016)

Collision Type :
< | §| * | | el w=| I
g g ) 'g T E 5 w G .5 @ §
EAREEEE: 3g%|f‘§\ggs 32
. o W g K - T U 5 © % = O g | -5 g -
i Location £ 2 B  S|ezz|leglF 208 58] &
Washington Avenue N and Williams
& ‘ Boulevard NW | 0 L 1 0 g 2 0 ! 0 8
Washington Avenue N and Lane |
B | Boulevagl::j o o fo oo 0 o | o 0 o | o
c Washington Avenue N and Rocky | 0 0 0 0 1 5 0 0 0 3
Road NE I
B | Washington Avenue N and Old Pioneer | B 0 0 0 0 5 0 R 0 0
| Way NW
Washington Avenue N and Whitehawk |
E Boulevard NW . 2 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 3
f [ Washington Avenue N/Ammons Lane | 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 5
NE and Driveway
G | Washington Avenue N/ Cardinallane | 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
H Washington Avenue N and Whitesell | 0 1 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 3
| Street$S
| f_Washington Avenue S and Calistoga 0 1 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 3
| Avenue W
, | Washington Avenue S and Train 1 0 i 0 0 0 0 5 i 1
Avenue S |
7 | Washington Avenue SE and Bridge | o 0 g 5 5 3 0 o 0 3
Street S '
L ‘ Bridge Street S/Harman Way S and . o L o 1 0 . 0 ) 2
Corrin Avenue E |
M | Harman Way S and Kansas StreetSW_ | 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Calistoga Avenue W and Corrin |
N | Avenue sw ] 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 2
0 | Calistoga Avenue W and Eldredge 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1
| Avenue SW i
Calistoga Street W and Kansas
P | Street SW l 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
a [ Train Street SW/Train Avenue S and | 0 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
| van Scoyoc E
["River Avenue SE/Verner Avenue SE and |
g | Bridge Street SE | 0 0 0 0 0 0 g 0 0 i__
| Eldredge Avenue NW and Whitesell | o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
| StreetS |
Total 3 3 2 0 3 17 2 2 0 32

Source: WSDOT Transportation Data and GIS Office

Disclaimer: Under 23 U.S. Code § 409, safety data, reports, surveys, schedules, lists compiled or collected for the purpose of identifying,
evaluating, or planning the safety enhancement of potential crash sites, hazardous roadway conditions, or railway-highway crossings are not
subject to discovery or admitted into evidence in a Federal or State court proceeding or considered for other purposes in any action for damages
arising from any occurrence at o location mentioned or addressed in such reports, surveys, schedules, lists, or data.
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Providing freight access to and through Orting is important in supporting economic activity and
providing goods to residents. In Orting, the primary freight routes are along SR 162 and Calistoga Street
to the Orting-Kapowsin Highway. WSDOT uses the County Road Freight and Goods Transportation
System (FGTS) to classify state highways, county roads, and city streets according to the tons of freight
that are carried on them each year. SR 162, between the northern city limits and Calistoga Street, is
classified as a T-2 Route, carrying 4 million to 10 million tons per year. To the southeast of Calistoga
Street, SR 162 is a T-3 Route, carrying 300,000 to 4 million tons per year. Calistoga Street W and the
Orting-Kapowsin Highway are classified as T-3 Routes.

In June 2017, the City of Orting adopted the Non-Motorized Transportation Plan (NMTP), which includes
detailed information on non-motorized facilities, volumes, and policies for the City of Orting. For
additional information on non-motorized travel in Orting, please see the NMTP.

There is no public fixed-route transit service in Orting. Pierce County Transit does provide vanpool
services that serve groups traveling to and from work, whose trip origin or destination is within Pierce
County.

Sound Transit Sounder commuter rail service is provided nearby in Puyallup and Sumner with service
south to Lakewood and north to Seattle and Everett. Fixed-route bus transit is also provided in nearby
Sumner and Puyallup to other destinations.

There are no public or private airports or rail lines within the city of Orting or the surrounding area.
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This section summarizes the planned transportation improvements that would affect travel in Orting.

The prioritization process for transportation projects in unincorporated Pierce County is implemented
through the Pierce County Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). The 2017-2022 TIP does not
include projects within Orting. However, the following projects are included in the TIP and are located
near the city of Orting:

176th Street E Extension: Construct a new roadway and roadway improvements between
Calistoga Avenue E and Sunrise Boulevard E.

Orting-Kapowsin Highway E/200th Street E: Construct a traffic signal and provide turn lanes.

112th Street S/112th Street E: Widen roadway to provide turn lanes, pedestrian facilities, and
illumination.

The City of Orting’s Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program 2016-2022 includes regrading,
paving, parking, curb/gutter, sidewalks, and water, sewer, and storm improvements in the city of Orting.
The following projects, listed in order of priority, are included in the Orting 2016-2022 TIP:

SR 162 (Washington Avenue) Two-Way Left-Turn Lane: Provide a two-way left-turn lane and
complete minor widening on SR 162 between Cardinal Lane and Leber Street beginning in 2017.

Kansas Street SW Regrade: Complete regrading, and storm, sewer, and sidewalk improvements
on Kansas Street between Harman Way S and Calistoga Street W beginning in 2019.

Calistoga Street W: Complete regrading, curb and gutter, parking, and sewer, storm, and water
improvements, and provide sidewalks and planter strips between Corrin Avenue NW and the
Puyallup River Bridge beginning in 2020.

Eldredge Avenue NW Regrade: Complete regrading, paving, parking, storm, sewer, and sidewalk
improvements between Whitesell Street NW and Calistoga Street W beginning January 2018.

Whitehawk Boulevard/SR 162 Intersection Improvement: Signalize intersection with existing
lane configurations beginning in 2020.

Bridge Street Regrade: Complete regrading, paving, parking, and curb and gutter improvements;
provide sidewalks; and replace water main between Washington Avenue S and the River Avenue
SE curve beginning in 2022.

River Avenue SE Regrade: Complete regrading, paving, parking, sewer, and storm
improvements; provide sidewalks; and repiace the water main beginning in 2023.

Orting Emergency Evacuation Bridge System at Gratzer Avenue NW: Construct pedestrian bridge
over SR 162/Washington Avenue beginning in 2020.
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e Southwest Connector: Construct bypass road from Groff Avenue NW to Orting Avenue NW
beginning in 2020.

e Whitehawk Extension: Construct two- to three-lane arterial from Groff Avenue NW to Calistoga
Street at Skinner Way SW including water, sewer, storm, curb and gutter, and sidewalks
beginning in 2020.

The remaining projects included in the TIP are chip seal projects on various streets in Orting.

The following projects in or near Orting are included in WSDOT's Statewide Transportation
Improvement Program (STIP) during the 2018-2021 planning timeframe:

e Whitehawk Boulevard Extension: This project will extend Whitehawk Boulevard NW between
Orting Avenue NW to the intersection of Calistoga Street W and Kansas Street SW. The roadway
will be one lane in each direction with a median in some locations and turning lanes at each end.
A sidewalk or trail will also be provided along the length of the corridor and a signal will be
installed at the intersection with SR 162. This project is scheduled to begin preliminary
engineering in 2019. This is the same project that is included in the City’s TIP.

e Orting-Kapowsin Highway E: This project includes resurfacing and restoring approximately
3.4 miles of the Orting-Kapowsin Highway E from Orville Road E to 246th Street E. The project is
scheduled to start preliminary engineering in 2018 and construction in 2020.

The Rhodes Lake Road East project would widen 128 Street East from SR 162, north of Orting, and
would construct a new arterial roadway from the Puyallup River to Falling Water Boulevard East. The
purpose of the project is to improve east-west mobility in the plateau area of Bonney Lake and east of
the Puyallup River. The new roadway will accommodate travel to and from the planned community
called the Cascadia Employment-Based planned Community, which calls for nearly 10,000 jobs and over
6,000 homes. It’s possible that some of the traffic traveling to and from the Bonney Lake Plateau will
also travel through Orting. It is anticipated that the project will be complete in 2030.
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The City of Orting requires that the capacity of public facilities and services is equal to or greater than
the capacity required to maintain the LOS standards established by the City. The test for concurrency is
not passed and a proposed project may be denied if the capacity of the public services or facilities is less
than the capacity required to maintain the adopted LOS D standards after the impacts associated with
the requested permit are added to the existing capacity utilization. The City will prohibit approval of any
development that causes the level of service to fall below adopted standards, unless necessary
improvements are made concurrently with the development. This concurrency requirement means that
improvements or strategies must be in place at the time of the development or that a financial
commitment must be in place to complete the improvements or strategies within 6 years. Methods for
the City to monitor these commitments include:

o Annual monitoring of transportation facilities within updates to the Six-Year TIP
e Assessing level of service

e Reviewing the comprehensive transportation plan and other related studies for necessary
improvements

» Making appropriate revisions to the Six-Year TIP
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This section summarizes the future year (2040} transportation system for all modes of travel in Orting.

Traffic forecasting is a means of estimating future traffic volumes based on the expected growth in
population and employment within an area. To estimate future traffic volumes resulting from growth,
forecasts were prepared using current traffic counts, traffic growth described in the 2015 Orting
Comprehensive Plan, and estimates of population and employment developed for the City's
Comprehensive Land Use Plan. Future transportation conditions were evaluated for the year 2040.

The projected 2040 PM peak hour traffic volumes are provided on Figure 6-1.

Most intersections within the city are unsignalized (controlled by a stop sign). As traffic increases in
Orting, turning onto the major streets from a side street will become increasingly difficult. As described
earlier, the LOS criteria for stop-controlled intersections is typically determined by the minor street left-
turn movement.

The LOS results for the study intersections are provided for the year 2040. Similar to existing conditions,
LOS is described for the worst approach for unsignalized intersections. For signalized intersections, the
average delay for all vehicles is reported.

Figure 6-2 shows the 2040 PM peak hour traffic operations for the study intersections in Orting. The
same two study intersections that surpass the threshold under existing conditions are forecast to exceed
the threshold in 2040. Washington Avenue N and Rocky Road NE (intersection C) and Calistoga Street W
and Kansas Street SW (intersection P) are forecast to operate at LOS F in 2040. Similar to existing
conditions, the side street delay at Washington Avenue N and Rocky Road NE (intersection C) would be
experienced by very few vehicles as summarized in Figure 6-1. Four other study intersections (D, H, M,
and O) are expected to operate acceptably but at the LOS threshold in 2040. It should also be noted that
traffic operations at Washington Avenue N and Whitehawk Boulevard NW (intersection E) would
improve because of the planned signal (see Section 4.3).
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Freight travel corridors would be expected to remain similar in 2040 compared to existing conditions.

SR 162 and Calistoga Avenue W would be expected to carry most freight traffic through Orting.
Intersection operations in 2040 along both major freight routes would operate at LOS D or better except
for Calistoga Street W and Kansas Street SW (intersection P). Although the intersection at Washington
Avenue N and Rocky Road (intersection C) is located along a freight corridor and is expected to operate at
LOS F, the delay would not be experienced by freight traffic traveling on SR 162/Washington Avenue N.

The future non-motorized transportation network is described in the NMTP. It is anticipated that non-
motorized facilities would be similar to existing conditions except in locations where there are planned
improvements to the sidewalk system, as identified in Section 4.3 and the NMTP.

Transit is expected to be similar in Orting in 2040. No public fixed-route transit service would be
provided within Orting. Vanpool services would continue to be provided by Pierce Transit.

Pierce Transit and Sound Transit would continue to provide nearby transit service, including higher
frequency transit to Puyallup and Sumner. Both agencies have developed long-range plans that describe
future transit growth in Pierce County, which could include additional service for fixed-route bus service
as well as commuter rail in nearby communities, such as Sumner and Puyallup.

There would continue to be no public or private airports or rail lines within the city of Orting or the
surrounding area.
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To address the identified deficiencies in 2040, a list of potential improvements has been identified.
Improvements are summarized by transportation mode.

Deficiencies for general purpose traffic were identified at intersections that would fail to meet the City
of Orting’s level of service goal of LOS D. Constructing a traffic signal is a common method for improving
the LOS at a stop-controlled intersection. However, traffic signals should not be constructed unless
certain factors are present, such as sufficient traffic volumes over long periods of the day, high levels of
pedestrian traffic, or preventable accident history.

As summarized in Section 6.2, Washington Avenue N and Rocky Road NE (intersection C) and Calistoga
Street W and Kansas Street SW (intersection P) are forecast to exceed LOS D in 2040. No improvements
are recommended for Washington Avenue N and Rocky Road NE (intersection C) because this delay
would be experienced by very few vehicles (approximately five) on the stop approach.

At Calistoga Street W and Kansas Street SW (intersection P), a roundabout intersection control is
recommended. The roundabout would improve traffic operations from LOS F to LOS A in 2040
conditions. Calistoga Street W and Kansas Street SW (intersection P) will also become the eastern
terminus of the Whitehawk Boulevard Extension. It is estimated that a roundabout at Calistoga Street W
and Kansas Street SW (intersection P} would be approximately $1.7 million to construct.

Although Harman Way S and Kansas Street SW (intersection M) is forecast to operate acceptably at the
City’s LOS D threshold, it is recommended that an eastbound left-turn lane be constructed on Kansas
Street SW to improve intersection operations on the stop-controlled approach. This improvement would
improve intersection operations from LOS D to LOS C in 2040 conditions. This improvement would cost
approximately $450 thousand to construct.

The school district has also indicated that Ammons Lane NE and Washington Avenue N (intersection F),
the entrance to the Orting High School and Orting Primary School, gets congested during pick up and
drop off times. Congestion in the school property can create traffic queues on SR 162/Washington
Avenue N for vehicles attempting to turn right and left into the school property. To address this issue,
the City could convert Ammons Lane NE (intersection F) to an exit only. Vehicles entering the school
property could use Whitesell Street S or other neighborhood streets to then access the schools. This
improvement would reduce queuing onto SR 162/Washington Avenue N and potentially improve safety
along SR 162/Washington Avenue N. This improvement would cost approximately $530 thousand to
construct and likely would be funded primarily by Orting School District.

Figure 7-1 shows the LOS at study intersections following these proposed improvements to the study
intersections.

Deficiencies for freight traffic were identified at intersections along freight corridors that would fail to
meet the City of Orting’s level of service goal of LOS D. The improvements described in Section 7.1
would improve operations for freight traffic traveling through Orting.
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Deficiencies in the non-motorized transportation system have been identified using Pedestrian Level of
Stress (PLOS)! and Bicycle Level of Stress (BLOS)2. Future improvements to the non-motorized network
in Orting to address deficiencies are described in more detail in the NMTP.

As described in the NMTP, the City will work to address areas with high PLOS (scores 4 to 5) by
completing gaps in the sidewalk and trail system. Pedestrian improvements would be prioritized in areas
where pedestrian activity is higher and where pedestrian-oriented land use and destinations are
located. Other pedestrian improvements include:

e Widen evacuation route along Calistoga Street W towards Soldiers home
e Widen the sidewalks on Calistoga Bridge
¢ Improve City’s crosswalk safety

s Pursue opportunities to work with Pierce County to provide Americans with Disabilities Act
(ADA) access to the levee system

e Complete the Orting Emergency Evacuation Bridge System

Also described in the NMTP, BLOS is low for most facilities in Orting. Improvements to the bicycle
network would include the following:

e Improve connectivity to the Foothills Trail at Calistoga Street w

e Improve connectivity to the Foothills Trail at Kansas Street SwW

e Construct bicycle lanes on Calistoga Street W and Kansas Street SW
e Restripe trail with ‘fast’ and ‘slow’ lanes for bicycle and foot traffic

e Relocate intersection crossings with the Foothills Trail to be in front of the stop bar at
intersections

1 pedestrian Level of Stress is a measure used to evaluate how well a transportation system accommodates pedestrian travel.
Facilities are evaluated based on a number of different criteria, such as sidewalk width, curb presence, and vehicle speed, and
assigned a score from 1 to 5 with 1 being low level of stress to 5 being high level of stress.

2 Bicycle Level of Stress is a measure used to evaluate how well a transportation system accommodates bicycle travel {also
called Level of Traffic Stress, or LTS). Similar to Pedestrian Level of Stress, facilities are evaluated based on different criteria,
such as street width, presence of on-street parking, and number of lanes, and assigned a score from 1 to 5 with 1 being low
level of stress to 5 being high level of stress.

7-2 March 2019 | 214-1711-020 (4002.05)
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There are no recommended improvements for transit service.

There are no recommended improvements for air and rail service.

Other strategies and programs can be used to help improve travel in Orting include Transportation
Demand Management.

Transportation Demand Management (TDM) strategies can be implemented to decrease the amount of
drive-alone vehicle trips, which can help to reduce congestion and delay. Viable travel alternatives help
to mitigate impacts of growth in vehicular traffic and provide feasible options for more people. TDM
strategies include:

7-4

Improving land use accessibility by promoting mixed-use zoning with housing, shopping, schools,
and employment within localized areas to encourage short vehicle trips and/or use of other
travel modes, such as bicycling and walking.

Encouraging ridesharing and vanpooling to reduce drive-alone vehicle trips.

Working with the Orting School District to implement School Trip Management; School Trip
Management includes promoting and implementing strategies to encourage non-vehicle travel
to and from school.

Encouraging bicycle and pedestrian travel by providing inviting, safe, convenient, and connected
routes; education and incentive programs; and support services such as bicycle racks, showers,
and lockers.

Maintaining and improving a network of highways, streets, and roads that moves people, goods,
and services safely and efficiently; minimizes social and environmental impacts; and supports
various modes of travel.

Providing adequate connections and access among all transportation modes, especially non-
motorized and transit.

Limiting the number of access points and driveways on major streets in Orting.

March 2019 | 214-1711-020 (4002.05)
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The GMA requires that a jurisdiction’s transportation plan contain a funding analysis of the
transportation projects it recommends. The analysis should cover funding needs and funding resources,
and it should include a multi-year financing plan. The purpose of this requirement is to ensure that each
jurisdiction’s transportation plan is affordable or achievable. If a funding analysis reveals that a planis
not affordable or achievable, the plan must discuss how additional funds will be raised, or how land use
assumptions will be reassessed.

Table 8-1 summarizes the proposed 2040 improvement Program as was described in Chapter 7.

Table 8-1. 2040 Improvement Program

Improvement 5
Roadway Cost Estimate Funding Source
Type Description ($1,000)
Calistoga Street W/Kansas . Construct .
Street SW Roundabout SaPadlly roundabout 52,380 Y Craes
Construct left-
Harman Way S/Kansas Safety and .
Street SW Left-Turn Lane Circulation gunplanegn S715 City/Grants
Kansas Street SW
Ammons Lane Safety and Convert Ammons
NE/Washington Avenue N ) v R Lane NE to exit $635 City/WSDOT/OSD
; Circulation
Exit Only only

Federal funding for transportation projects includes FHWA's Surface Transportation Block Grant
Program funded through the Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act. Many types of projects
are eligible, including bicycle/pedestrian, safety, traffic monitoring/management, and planning projects
along with more traditional road and bridge projects. These funds are distributed by PSRC through a
competitive grant application process.

PSRC also distributes Surface Transportation Program funds through the Rural Town Centers and
Corridors {(RTCC) program. The RTCC program was established to recognize and support the needs of the
region’s rural areas. Funds are distributed through a competitive grant process that includes two stages:
a Countywide stage and a Regional stage.

March 2019 | 214-1711-020 (4002.05) 8-1
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EXHIBIT E.1 - PLANNING COMMISSION'S RECOMMENDED COMP PLAN AMENDMENTS

Land Use Element

Goal LU 8

Discussion:

Pol. LU 8.1

Pol. LU 8.2

City of Orting Comprehensive Plan

2019 Comprehensive Plan Text Amendments

The Mixed-Use Town Center North area is intended to take advantage of the large
lots and land area between the Orting High School and Rocky Road NE for
development of new economic, residential and recreational opportunities that
support a sustainable community by providing jobs and increasing the tax base.

The MUTCN is a 65.6-acre area located east of Washington Avenue N, south of Rocky
road NE, west of the Carbon River, and north of the Orting High School property.
Development in this area is expected to include a mix of commercial, residential and
recreational uses.

Development in the MUTCN shall be planned according to the following principles:

Access should be consistent with adopted City policies and strategies. Access from SR
162/Washington Avenue North should be limited to locations where intersections can
be designed to handle increased traffic and turning movements.

internal vehicular and pedestrian circulation throughout the area should be organized
by a street grid that connects with the highway intersections and the residential
neighborhood to the north, and also enables connections between different
development projects and phases. This will also provide corridors for utilities.
Development project approvals will include dedication of new public street rights-of-
way in the MUTCN.

Blocks created by the street grid can simplify planning and permitting for
development, particularly when phasing is anticipated.

Pedestrian amenities can be located and designed within the blocks and coordinated
throughout the area as development plans are drafted.

All development in the MUTCN shall be approved through a Master Development Plan
as defined in OMC 13-3-2-E and shall be subject to Architectural Design Review.

Transportation Appendix

Roadway Improvements

R1:

Whitehawk Blvd NW Extension — Construct a two/three-lane minor arterial roadway
extending Whitehawk Blvd NW from the current terminus at Orting Circle south to
Calistoga St. W mear at Kansas St. SW. The existing portion of Whitehawk Blvd NW
may need upgrading to minor arterial status.



Existing 2017 Comprehensive Plan Provisions for MUTCN Zone
(to be deleted and replaced by the Planning Commission’s recommended language above, if Council approves)
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13-3-2: ZONE CLASSIFICATIONS:
E. MUTCN Mixed Use-Town Center North Zone:

1. Purpose And Intent: The intent of the MUTCN Zone is to take advantage, if desirable
opportunities are presented to the City, of the large lots and land area between Orting High
School and Rocky Road for the development of new economic opportunities including a mix of
residential, non-residential, open space and recreational uses that support a sustainable
community by providing jobs and increasing the tax base. Pedestrian amenities, public
transportation, and architectural design review will be considerations throughout master
planning and development approvals for projects in this zone.

2. Master Development Plan Required: Development in the MUTCN (Mixed Use Town
Center North) requires approval of a master development plan that shall include a planned unit
development and an approved development agreement with site specific design guidelines, a
parcel map if future phases are anticipated. The development agreement shall set forth the
conditions for development, public improvements, and phasing, if applicable. The master
development plan approval process is a Type 4 permit per section 15-4-1 of this Code. All
development and uses shall be in accordance with the adopted master development plan.
Provisions for allowed and conditional uses, site specific locations of public streets, parks and
open spaces, and design standards described in this section shall be interpreted and modified as
appropriate during the master plan review and planned unit development approval process based
on evidence provided by the applicant.

3. Master Plan Elements: The master development plan shall contain, at a minimum, the
following:

a. A master site plan showing the location of:

(1 Buildings;

2) Streets, alleys, and major driveways;

3) Off street parking areas;

(4)  Open spaces (plazas, squares, courtyards, and other spaces intended for public
enjoyment) based on the proposed uses and whether they are intended to serve
the public;

(5) Critical areas and buffers;

6) Shorelines;

N Floodplains;

® Pedestrian walks and paths;

) Landscaping;

(10)  Proposed Phases: and

(11)  Other site features;

b. A unified parking management plan showing potential shared parking areas;

c. Subdivision or Binding Site Plan proposals per titlc 12 of this Code, if applicable; and
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d. Other materials as required for planned development or binding site plan approval and
architectural design review per this title.

4.  Principal Uses: Section | i-3- 1, Table 1, of this chapter, shows the allowed prmcnpal and

condltlonal uses in the MUTCN Zone sndsumm
Plsin —con ges s sissiaia aaaivaaa oz .\I-‘..,\...JA..AA.-. Allnesond 3o NATTTONT 18 lamand

T IIC IRRALZfisEses I TIUIITTY T

ten(10)-dwelling units per aere. Uses not listed are prohibited. All develonment within the

MUTCN is subiect to Architectural Design Review.

5. Bulk and Dimensional Requirements: The following bulk and dimensional requirements
apply to the MUTCN district:

a. Non-Residential Space: A minimum of 15 acres of dedicated non-residential space
(Commercial. Industrial. Cultural and/or Public Uses per OMC 13-3-3. Table 1) located
primarily along Washington Avenue N/SR 162 but may also be located adjacent to Rocky
Road. the Orting Wastewater Treatment Plant or the Orting School District property. Prior
to_certificates of occupancy for anv residential dwellings. a minimum of 50% of the
required commercial space shall be constructed as commercial shells ready for tenant
improvement and occupancy.

b. Public Open Space: In addition to the required commercial plazas and courtyards (OMC
13-3-2-E-7-f) and the residential open space (OMC 13-3-2-E-7-g). the district shall
contain a minimum of 5 acres of useable open space that is not part of a critical areas
buffer or shoreline buffer, required landscaping or perimeter buffering. part of a required
easement. or part of a stormwater facility. This 5 acres of open space may not be
subdivided into smaller tracts. Public access shall be provided to the levy.

c. Residential Density: The minimum residential density is 4 dwelling units per gross acre.
The maximum residential densitv for anv residential development parcel is 9 dwelling
units per acre. Senior housing and residential over retail have no maximum density
restrictions and do not count toward the density total.

Each of the above totals shall be proportionate in acreage to the parcel size for each lot of record
existing as of the date of adoption of this code. This provision shall run with the land and be in
effect whether the parcels remain in their existing configuration or are subsequently divided.
Adjacent landowners mav pav market value to allow the provision of a contiguous 5-acre tract
of Public Open Space in the MUTCN zone or to aggregate commercial acreage into one portion
of the zone.

Height is restricted to 35-feet.

6.  Project Design: The design, layout and distribution of uses such as buildings, landscaping,
parking areas, signs, open spaces, public areas, and streetscapes shall comply with the approved
master development and guidelines. Proposed design features shall be reviewed by the Planning
Commission in accordance with section |3-6-7 of this title and the MUTCN design guidelines.
The following design features shall be addressed during the review of all project proposals:
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a. Architectural character illustrated by building elevations and renderings showing design
features, building orientations, and relationships to parking, pedestrian areas, and open
spaces;

b. Public plazas and open spaces;

c. Relationships to adjacent properties, uses, and buildings;
d. Pedestrian walkways and paths;

e. Construction materials and colors;

f. Coordinated signage and lighting;

g. Streetscape design for improvements in public rights-of-way including sidewalk finishes,
street trees, lighting, and street furniture;

h. Landscaping of parking areas, open spaces, and project perimeters; and
i. Use of low impact design techniques for stormwater management.

7. MUTCN Design Guidelines: The following guidelines are supplementary to other adopted
design standards and guidelines:

a. Pedestrian Oriented Street Frontage: Buildings shall provide pedestrian entries along
streets. Sidewalks along SR 162/Washington Avenue North and in the non-residential
shall be a minimum of eight feet (8') in width with greater widths at entries. Sidewalks
along all other roadwavs must be a minimum of five feet (5°) in width. All streets shall
have street trees spaced no more than thirty feet (30) apart. All streets shall be public
streets built to the City of Orting Public Works standards. Buildings on public street
frontages shall provide at least two (2) of the following pedestrian amenities:

(1) Window displays along at least seventy five percent (75%) of the frontage;
(2) Pedestrian weather protection;

(3) Street furniture such as benches, drinking fountains, trash receptacles, public art,
or site maps;

(4) Open spaces including cafe seating, plazas, play structures, fountains, or
gardens;

(5) Perimeter landscaping; and/or
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(6) Sidewalk "bulb-outs" at street intersections may be allowed depending upon
traffic study findings.

b. Off Street Parking Access: Off street parking between streets and buildings shall be
minimized. Curb cuts providing driveways to off street parking lots shall be minimized.
The building street frontage facade shall not be broken by parking lots for more than sixty-
five feet (65') at any location.

c. Service Areas: Loading areas, outdoor storage, waste facilities, and other services shall
be located and screened from public views and adjacent properties with a combination of
location. landscaping and solid fencing.

d. Building Design: All buildings shall be designed in compliance with the architectural
design review (ADR) standards set forth in section [3-6-7 of this title. Further, all
buildings more than three (3) stories in height or larger than ten thousand (10,000) square
feet of footprint area shall provide at least two (2) of the following features to reduce their
visual bulk as viewed from public streets:

(1) Upper story setbacks;

(2) Horizontal modulation in the form of setbacks or projections. The maximum
facade length without modulation shall be one hundred feet (100"). The
minimum depth of setbacks or projections shall be six feet (6);

(3) Roofline modulations in the form of fascias, parapets, gables, hips, or shed forms
with a minimum pitch of three to twelve (3:12); and/or

(4) Facade articulation in the form of windows, bays, porches, entries, material
changes, lighting, trellises, landscaping and other features.

e. Signage: The master development plan shall include a signage plan including a unifying
theme, and details for all typical signs such as monument signs, major building signs,
projecting signs, storefront signs, lighting, and directional signs.

f. Plazas and Courtyards: Plazas and courtyards are required in all non-residential areas,
except for light industrial use areas. Plazas are major open space features intended to
provide significant opportunities for public use and enjoyment including special events.
Courtyards are smaller open space features intended to provide quiet spaces for resting
and relaxing. For each ten thousand (10,000) square feet of building area, a combination
of plazas and/or courtyards totaling one thousand (1,000) square feet is required. The
minimum area of a courtyard is two hundred fifty (250) square feet. The minimum area
of plaza is one thousand (1,000) square feet. At least twenty five percent (25%) of all
plazas and courtyards shall be landscaped with trees, shrubs, and ground cover at grade
or in planters. At least twenty five percent (25%) shall be paved with decorative materials.
Seating (1 linear foot of seating area for each 60 square feet of plaza or courtyard area),
trash receptacles, public art, water features, and other furnishings shall be provided.
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g. Residential Open Space: Small scale, usable open space is required in all residential areas.
All residential open space areas must be relatively level; located on useable space that is
not part of a critical areas or shoreline buffer and must provide access and inclusive uses
for all persons, including those with mobility issues and other disabilities. Areas required
for perimeter buffering, landscaping, screening, utilities or storm water facilities may not
be counted as residential open space. For every 50 dwelling units, a combination of open
space areas including tot lots, pedestrian amenities, picnic areas, etc. totaling two
thousand (2,000) square feet is required. The minimum area of an individual open space
is one thousand (1,000) square feet. No side dimension of the open space may be less than
30 feet. At least 50% of all residential open space shall be landscaped with trees, shrubs,
and ground cover at grade or in planters. At least twenty five percent (25%) shall be
improved with play structures, unless the development is predominantly senior housing.
Seating (1 linear foot of seating area for each 60 square feet of residential open space),
trash receptacles, public art, water features, and other furnishings shall be provided.

h. Low Impact Design: In conjunction with standard stormwater management practices, site
design for stormwater conveyance, detention, and treatment shall include measures such
as biofiltration, irrigation reuse, and other techniques integrated with the overall landscape
desigh to minimize high volumes of discharge and pollution, where reasonably
practicable.

i. LEED Certification: All new construction shall be certified as LEED certified or higher
by the leadership in energy and environmental design (LEED) U.S. Green Building
Council rating system.
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13-3-3: USES:

TABLE 1 CITY OF ORTING LAND USE

RC: Residential-
Conservation Zone

|
|
| = ———— ‘
RU: Residential-Urban |
Zone '

'RMF: Residential-Multi-
Family Zone

i
Residential uses': |

Cottage P

Cottage
development
o _
Duplex

|

MUTC: Mixed Use-Town
Center Zone

i Center North Zone

' LM: Light Manufacturing
' Zone

Group
residences:

 Adult family | P
- " homes ‘

' Attached
‘ ground
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residences

Single room
| occupancy
 sleeping
' units

' MUTCN: Mixed Use-Town

|
|

0S: Open Space and
Recreation Zone

o !

o i

I 3
i ¥

PFE: Public Facilities
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.
|
1
|
i
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11
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Notes:

1. Residential planned unit developments (PUD) may allow increases in underlying density
except in the MUTCN.

All development subiect to Master Development Plan and MUTCN Bulk and
Dimensional Requirements. See sections 13-3-2-E-2 and E-5 of this code.

Subject to architectural design review.

As a binding site plan.

Not located along retail street frontages.

Housing more than 12 unrelated individuals.

On a legal lot with permanent foundation.

On upper floors above ground floor commercial only.

On upper floors above ground floor commercial, or in freestanding residential buildings.
0. Duplexes and townhouses are not allowed on flag lots in the RU zone.

g
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13

11.
12.
13.
14.
5.
16.

In planned retail centers when building area is less than 10,000 square feet.
See section 13-5-4 of this title.

On site sales of agricultural products allowed.

Food stores only.

On upper floors above ground floor retail.

Including outdoor display or sales yards.

17. Not including overnight kennels or treatment facilities.

18.

19.

20.
21.
22.

23.
24.

25.

Machine shops, incinerators, wrecking yards, and feedlots may be permitted subject to
appropriate mitigation of impacts on surrounding nonindustrial areas. Significant adverse
noise, air quality, or other impacts caused by manufacturing processes shall be contained
within buildings.

When entirely located in a building, not producing adverse noise or air quality impacts,
and not located along retail street frontage. Ground floor area limited to 10,000 square
feet maximum.

Private facilities.

Subject to all other City regulations regarding livestock.

Redevelopment of the Orting Soldiers' Home subject to site plan and architectural design
review approval.

Three or more units per building.

Mayv not have frontage along SR 162/Washington Avenue N. Must be screened from all
adiacent residences with sight obscuring landscaping. 6-foot tall solid fencing.
For Senior Housing (aged 55+) only.
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13-3-2: ZONE CLASSIFICATIONS:
E. MUTCN Mixed Use-Town Center North Zone:

1.~ Purpose And Intent: The intent of the MUTCN Zone is to take advantage, if desirable
opportunities are presented to the City, of the large lots and land area between Orting High
School and Rocky Road for the development of new economic opportunities including a mix of
residential, non-residential, open space and recreational uses that support a sustainable
community by providing jobs and increasing the tax base. Pedestrian amenities, public
transportation, and architectural design review will be considerations throughout master
planning and development approvals for projects in this zone. The zone is comprised of two
parcels. Parcel #0519301081will be referred as “Gratzer” and parcel 0519301703 will be
referred to as “Engfer”.

2. Master Development Plan Required: Development in the MUTCN (Mixed Use Town
Center North) requires approval of a master development plan that shall include a planned unit
development and an approved development agreement with site specific design guidelines, a
parcel map if future phases are anticipated. The development agreement shall set forth the
conditions for development, public improvements, and phasing, if applicable. The master
development plan approval process is a Type 4 permit per section 15-4-1 of this Code. All
development and uses shall be in accordance with the adopted master development plan.
Provisions for allowed and conditional uses, site specific locations of public streets, parks and
open spaces, and design standards described in this section shall be interpreted and modified as
appropriate during the master plan review and planned unit development approval process based
on evidence provided by the applicant.

3. Master Plan Elements: The master development plan shall contain, at a minimum, the
following:

a. A master site plan showing the location of®

(D) Buildings;

(2) Streets, alleys, and major driveways;

3) Off street parking areas;

“4) Open spaces (plazas, squares, courtyards, and other spaces intended for public
enjoyment) based on the proposed uses and whether they are intended to serve
the public;

%) Critical areas and buffers;

(6) Shorelines;

7 Floodplains:

(8) Pedestrian walks and paths;

9 Landscaping;

(10)  Proposed Phases: and

(11)  Other site features;

b. A unified parking management plan showing potential shared parking areas;
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c. Subdivision or Binding Site Plan proposals per title 12 of this Code, if applicable; and
d. Other materials as required for planned development or binding site plan approval and
architectural design review per this title.

4.  Principal Uses: Section 13-3-3, Table 1, of thlS chapter shows the allowed prmc1pal and
condltlonal uses in the MUTCN Zone

fren{l el s peraeres Uses not 11sted are prohibited. All development within the
MUTCN is sub|ect to Architectural Design Review.

5. Bulk and Dimensional Requirements: The following bulk and dimensional requirements
apply to the MUTCN district:

a. Non-Residential Space: A minimum of 15 acres of dedicated non-residential space
(Commercial, Industrial, Cultural and/or Public Uses per OMC 13-3-3. Table 1) located
primarily along Washington Avenue N/SR 162 but may also be located adjacent to Rocky
Road. the Orting Wastewater Treatment Plant or the Orting School District property. Two
types of commercial property shall be recognized. The first is retail. hotel. and office
space. The second includes light industry and storage facilities and recreational facilities
such as bowling alleys. Buildings that front SR162 are limited to retail, hotel and office
space. Prior to certificates of occupancv for any residential dwellings. a minimum of 50%
ofthereguired commercial spaeed.000 square feet of retail. hotel and/or professional
office space for every 1-100 residential units shall be constructed facing SR162 as
commercial shells ready for tenant improvement and occupancy. A minimum of 1.000
square feet of any type of commercial buildings will be completed for every 1-100
residential units in areas that are at least 100" east of SR162 (the east ROW boundary of
the highwav) as commercial shells ready for tenant improvement.

b. Public Open Space: In addition to the required commercial plazas and courtyards (OMC
13-3-2-E-7-f) and the residential open space (OMC 13-3-2-E-7-g), the district shall
contain a minimum of 5 acres of useable open space that is not part of a critical areas
buffer or shoreline buffer, required landscaping or perimeter buffering, part of a required
easement, or part of a stormwater facility. This—S—seres of open—space—may—not-be
subdivided-inte-smallertraets PublieThis 5 acres of open space will be divided into two
contiguous parks. proportioned upon the size of the two parcels. A minimum of three (3)
acres of contiguous park will be developed upon the Engfer parcel and a minimum of two
(2) contiguous acres will be developed upon the Gratzer parcel. All park and recreational
equipment shall have ADA accessible features. - Public ADA _access shall be provided to

the levy.

c. Residential Density: The minimum residential density is 4 dwelling units per gross acre.
The maximum residential density for any residential development parcel is 912 dwelling
units per acre. Senior housing and(55+) residential density shall be a minimum of 4
dwelling units per acre and a maximum of 20 units per acre. Residential over retail
have no maximum density restrictions and do not count toward the density total.




EXHIBIT F.1 — Staff Recommendation
Amended by Mark Bethune 8/22/19

(Each of the above totals shall be proportionate in acreage to the parcel size for each lot of record
existing as of the date of adoption of this code. This provision shall run with the land and be in
effect whether the parcels remain in their existing configuration or are subsequently divided.
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Height is restricted to a maximum of thirty five (35) feet and a maximum of two stories to
buildings fronting SR162 and Rockv Rd and a maximum of forty five (45) feet for all other
buildings., except adiacent to the Shoreline jurisdiction where buildings are limited to a
height of thirty-five (35) feet. —The number of occupied floors for anv building shall not
exceed three (3).- Development shall not be allowed that raises the height of the ground
above the site plan elevations as approved bv the citv.

6. Project Design: The design, layout and distribution of uses such as buildings, landscaping,
parking areas, signs, open spaces, public areas, and streetscapes shall comply with the approved
master development and guidelines. Proposed design features shall be reviewed by the Planning
Commission in accordance with section 13-6-7 of this title and the MUTCN design guidelines.
The following design features shall be addressed during the review of all project proposals:

a. Architectural character illustrated by building elevations and renderings showing design
features, building orientations, and relationships to parking, pedestrian areas, and open
spaces;

b. Public plazas and open spaces;

c. Relationships to adjacent properties, uses, and buildings;

d. Pedestrian walkways and paths;

e. Construction materials and colors;

f. Coordinated signage and lighting;

g. Streetscape design for improvements in public rights-of-way including sidewalk finishes,
street trees, lighting, and street furniture;

h. Landscaping of parking areas, open spaces, and project perimeters; and
i. Use of low impact design techniques for stormwater management.

7. MUTCN Design Guidelines: The following guidelines are supplementary to other adopted
design standards and guidelines:
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a. Pedestrian Oriented Street Frontage: Buildings shall provide pedestrian entries along
streets. Sidewalks along SR 162/Washington Avenue North, Oone side of Daffodil, and
one side of Rocky Rd, and adjacent to all non-residential uses #+the{ron-residentiall)
shall be a minimum of eight feet (8') in width with greater Wldths at entries. Sidewalks
along all other roadways must be a minimum of five feet (5°) in width. All streets shall
have street trees spaced no more than thirty feet (30") apart. All streets shall be public
streets built to the City of Orting Public Works standards. Buildings on public street
frontages shall provide at least two (2) of the following pedestrian amenities:

(1) Window displays along at least seventy five percent (75%) of the frontage;
(2) Pedestrian weather protection;

(3) Street furniture such as benches, drinking fountains, trash receptacles, public art,
or site maps;

(4) Open spaces including cafe seating, plazas, play structures, fountains, or
gardens;

(5) Perimeter landscaping; and/or

(6) Sidewalk "bulb-outs" at street intersections may be allowed depending upon
traffic study findings.

b. Off Street Parking Access: Off street parking between streets and buildings shall be
minimized. Curb cuts providing driveways to off street parking lots shall be minimized.
The building street frontage facade shall not be broken by parking lots for more than sixty-
five feet (65') at any location. No more than 50% of the total frontage along SR 162 may
be occupied by parking areas.

c. Service Areas: Loading areas, outdoor storage, waste facilities, and other services shall
be located and screened from public views and adjacent properties with a combination of
location. landscaping and solid fencing.

d. Building Design: All buildings shall be designed in compliance with the architectural
design review (ADR) standards set forth in section 13-6-7 of this title. Further, all
buildings more than three{35two (2) stories in height or larger than ten thousand (10,000)
square feet of footprint area shall provide at least two (2) of the following features to
reduce their visual bulk as viewed from public streets:

(1) Upper story setbacks;
(2) Horizontal modulation in the form of setbacks or projections. The maximum

facade length without modulation shall be one hundred feet (100'). The
minimum depth of setbacks or projections shall be six feet (6');
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(3) Roofline modulations in the form of fascias, parapets, gables, hips, or shed forms
with a minimum pitch of three to twelve (3:12); and/or

(4) Facade articulation in the form of windows, bays, porches, entries, material
changes, lighting, trellises, landscaping and other features.

e. Signage: The master development plan shall include a signage plan including a unifying

i

theme, and details for all typical signs such as monument signs, major building signs,
projecting signs, storefront signs, lighting, and directional signs.

Plazas and Courtyards: Plazas and courtyards are required in all non-residential areas,
except for light industrial use areas. Plazas are major open space features intended to
provide significant opportunities for public use and enjoyment including special events.
Courtyards are smaller open space features intended to provide quiet spaces for resting
and relaxing. For each ten thousand (10,000) square feet of building area, a combination
of plazas and/or courtyards totaling one thousand (1,000) square feet is required. The
minimum area of a courtyard is two hundred fifty (250) square feet. The minimum area
of plaza is one thousand (1,000) square feet. At least twenty five percent (25%) of all
plazas and courtyards shall be landscaped with trees, shrubs, and ground cover at grade
or in planters. At least twenty five percent (25%) shall be paved with decorative materials.
Seating (1 linear foot of seating area for each 60 square feet of plaza or courtyard area),
trash receptacles, public art, water features, and other furnishings shall be provided.

Residential Open Space: Small scale, usable open space is required in all residential areas.
All residential open space areas must be relatively level; located on useable space that is
not part of a critical areas or shoreline buffer and must provide access and inclusive uses
for all persons, including those with mobility issues and other disabilities. Areas required
for perimeter buffering, landscaping, screening, utilities or storm water facilities may not
be counted as residential open space. For every 50 dwelling units, a combination of open
space areas including tot lots, pedestrian amenities, picnic areas, etc. totaling two
thousand (2,000) square feet is required. The minimum area of an individual open space
is one thousand (1,000) square feet. No side dimension of the open space may be less than
30 feet. At least 50% of all residential open space shall be landscaped with trees, shrubs,
and ground cover at grade or in planters. At least twenty five percent (25%) shall be
improved with play structures, unless the development is predominantly senior housing.
Seating (1 linear foot of seating area for each 60 square feet of residential open space),
trash receptacles, public art, water features, and other furnishings shall be provided.

Low Impact Design: In conjunction with standard stormwater management practices, site
design for stormwater conveyance, detention, and treatment shall include measures such
as biofiltration, irrigation reuse, and other techniques integrated with the overall landscape
design to minimize high volumes of discharge and pollution, where reasonably
practicable.
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Couneil rating systesa—Mt Rainier View Site Lines: The siting of buildings and their
heights shall not impede the substantial view of Mt. Rainier from the corner of
SR162 and Rocky Rd and from the interior contiguous parks.
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13-3-3: USES:

TABLE 1 CITY OF ORTING LAND USE

RC: Residential- MUTC: Mixed Use-Town OS: Open Space and
Conservation Zone Center Zone Recreation Zone
RU: Residential-Urban MUTCN: Mixed Use-Town PF: Public Facilities
Zone Center North Zone Zone

RMF: Residential-Multi- LLM: Light Manufacturing
Family Zone Zone

RC RU RMF MUTC MUTCN? | LM OS PF
Residential uses':

Cottage P P P

| o

Cottage p34  p34
development

=]

Duplex | pl® ; P P p%

Group L c . c c? e
residences: ; ‘

|~

Adult family = P P P p
homes i 1

Attached
ground
related
residences

Single room | C
occupancy

sleeping

units

o |
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i

Other®

Manufactured

“home park

Mobile/manufac

tured home

Multiple-
family

Single-family
detached

Temporary
lodging:

Bed and
breakfast

'Hotel/motel
Rooming
house

|
C

P7W

C

c :

o

p7

Townhouse

Commercial
uses:

e

Adult
businesses

PlO '

: .P,3

o

g C3_

Arcades

Clubs and
lodges

Communication
facilities
Communication
services

Daycare
facilities:

Centers -
commercial
i

Mo
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r

A

Offices

e ——————

l Provider
! home
facilit

i

Eating and
drinking places

Health services

Home
occupations!?

Liquor stores

. P3“

o)

1o

o

o | 1o

C3

Personal p3 P
services
Retail fuel c? P p3 :
sales ! '
L R S —— S — S
Retail sales c p3 P c’ c
| - o o [ 3
Theaters p3 P | |
Veterinary P |
clinics
P | B . S , . SR S
Veterinary p3 P p3 i
facilities I
Industrial uses:
Manufacturing'® |i|
. i
i I 3 = — i S #
Assembly/fab c# p I
rication 1"
Food c p F
processing
~ Light i
' manufacturin
g
Petroleum P |
products f
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"Cultural and

Wineries and
 breweries

| Wood
products

Storage and
shipping:

Construction
business

Equipment
rental

P
- U S e = N S - === Cz;‘_ -

.C24; ,

Freight
facilities
warehousing

storage

Self-service
storage

Wholesale
trade

recreational uses:

Cultural:
Art galleries
| Churches

Community
centers

| facilities
Libraries

Museums

Outdoor
theaters

Community

C24 :

624

24

e

o mm] 5, PR . _P_3
o e e oo, S P3
- = 153'

o | 1o
| |

Q-

oN
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Recreation:

Athletic
fields

Golf
facilities
Parks
Parks, plazas,
courts

RV parks

Resorts
(including
lodging)

Campgrounds |

|
1 CZO

i CZO

‘CZO

;‘ Céb

=

!
| |
|C20-
|

| Czo -

C2()

e S,

Shooting
ranges

Spas and
health clubs

Stables/riding
clubs

Trails

Public uses:

B

C20

C20

CZO
’.CZO

o

P
'C'z'o’ Cio B N C
C C C
c ! c
!
Ll e W L o S g P g ; P R _g PR
- |
— U — - S m—a— e i

| Animal
shelters

Colleges and
universities

Correctional
facilities
Emergency
services

Government
offices

BB

of

o |

e



EXHIBIT F.1 — Staff Recommendation
Amended by Mark Bethune 8/22/19

- - - e
Hazardous C C
materials
Hospitals c | c c? C C C P
Justice | P
facilities |
K - 12 schools C c | C P C i P
Landfills . C | C C
Public safety C C C C | p P
facilities
School support C P P
facilities . _

' Shared off street C P ! }
parking | ;
Solid waste C | P
facilities
Transit C C C C C C C P
facilities
Utility | C C C C C P i C P
facilities ! |
Vocational C C C C C P
schools : £

o o ! !
Wastewater | [ P
treatment 1 ’

Watersupply = C ~ C | C C C cC C | P
facilities
Resource uses:
Agricultural: C
| ; Agricultural C C P C
2 research,
testing and
% training
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Growing i P
crops

|

Livestock . p2!
and small
animals

!

Fish and

wildlife

management:

Aquaculture  C - C
wildlife - C i c | C
shelters | 1

Forestry: C

Growing i P
trees

Mills P
Research and C P C
testing ;

Mineral:

Batch plants P

Extracton | C  C = C P e
and 3 1)
processing ‘

Notes:

1. Residential planned unit developments (PUD) may allow increases in underlying density
except in the MUTCN.

2. All development subject to Master Development Plan and MUTCN Bulk and
Dimensional Requirements. See sections 13-3-2-E-2 and E-5 of this code.

3. Subject to architectural design review.

4. As a binding site plan.

5. Not located along retail street frontages.

6. Housing more than 12 unrelated individuals.

7

8

9.

1

. On a legal lot with permanent foundation.

On upper floors above ground floor commercial only.

On upper floors above ground floor commercial, or in freestanding residential buildings.
0. Duplexes and townhouses are not allowed on flag lots in the RU zone.
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11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.

19.

20.
21.
22.

23.
24.

25.

In planned retail centers when building area is less than 10,000 square feet.

See section 13-5-4 of this title.

On site sales of agricultural products allowed.

Food stores only.

On upper floors above ground floor retail.

Including outdoor display or sales yards.

Not including overnight kennels or treatment facilities.

Machine shops, incinerators, wrecking yards, and feedlots may be permitted subject to
appropriate mitigation of impacts on surrounding nonindustrial areas. Significant adverse
noise, air quality, or other impacts caused by manufacturing processes shall be contained
within buildings.

When entirely located in a building, not producing adverse noise or air quality impacts,
and not located along retail street frontage. Ground floor area limited to 10,000 square
feet maximum.

Private facilities.

Subject to all other City regulations regarding livestock.

Redevelopment of the Orting Soldiers’ Home subject to site plan and architectural design
review approval.

Three or more units per building.

May not have frontage along SR 162/Washington Avenue N. Must be screened from all
adiacent residences with sight obscuring landscaping. 6-foot tall solid fencing.

For Senior Housing (aged 55+) only.
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Department of Commerce

Notice of Intent to Adopt Amendment
60 Days Prior to Adoption

Indicate one (or both, if applicable):

[l Comprehensive Plan Amendment

[Z’ Development Regulation Amendment

Pursuant to RCW 36.70A.106, the following jurisdiction provides notice of intent to adopt a
proposed comprehensive plan amendment and/or development regulation amendment under

the Growth Management Act.

Jurisdiction:

City of Orting

Mailing Address:

110 Train Street SE
Orting, WA 98390

Date:

June 18, 2019

Contact Name:

Emily Terrell, AICP

Title/Position:

City Planner

Phone Number:

253.709.6044

E-mail Address:

Emily@soundmunicipal.com

Brief Description of the
Proposed/Draft Amendment:

If this draft amendment is provided to
supplement an existing 60-day notice
already submitted, then please provide
the date the original notice was
submitted and the Commerce Malerial
ID number located in your Commerce
acknowledgement letter.

The City of Orting is performing its annual
Comprehensive Plan Amendments. Amendments

include:

1.

2

a new Zoning Map (to correct a scrivener’s

adoption of an update to the Transportation
Improvement Plan; and
text amendments to the Comprehensive
Plan, specifically to:

a. Section R1 of the Roadway

Improvements section of the
Transportation Element Appendix
and

. to the Mixed Use Town Center

portion (Goal LU 8) of the Land Use
Element.

The City is also adopting corresponding
implementing legislation in sections 13-3-2-F

Rev 03/2015




OMC Mixed Use Town Center North Zone and 13-
3-3 OMC Uses.

Is this action part of the _

scheduled review and update? Yes: __

GMA requires review every 8 years _

under RCW 36.70A.130(4)-(6). No: _X_

Public Hearing Date: Council: June 18, 2019

Proposed Adoption Date: July 31, 2019

REQUIRED: Attach or include a copy of the proposed amendment text or document(s).
We do not accept a website hyperlink requiring us to retrieve external documents,
Jurisdictions must submit the actual document(s) to Commerce. If you experience
difficulty, please contact reviewteam@commerce wa.dov.

Rev 03/2015



SEPA ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST
Orting 2019 Comprehensive Plan Update
A. Background
1. Name of proposed project, if applicable:
Orting Comprehensive Plan Update

2. Name of applicant: Town of Orting

3. Address and phone number of applicant and contact person:

Emily Terrell, AICP
Orting City Hall

110 Train Street SE
Orting, WA 98360

4. Date checklist prepared: June 11, 2019
5. Agency requesting checklist: City of Orting
6. Proposed timing or schedule (including phasing, if applicable):

Not applicable.

7. Do you have any plans for future additions, expansion, or further activity related to or
connected with this proposal? If yes, explain.

Not applicable.

8. List any environmental information you know about that has been prepared, or will be
prepared, directly related to this proposal.

Not applicable.

9. Do you know whether applications are pending for governmental approvals of other
proposals directly affecting the property covered by your proposal? If yes, explain.

There are no other approvals pending for specific land use actions.
10. List any government approvals or permits that will be needed for your proposal, if known.

None.

SEPA Environmental checklist {(WAC 197-11-360) May 2014 Page 1 of 4



11. Give brief, complete description of your proposal, including the proposed uses and the size
of the project and site. There are several questions later in this checklist that ask you to
describe certain aspects of your proposal. You do not need to repeat those answers on this
page. (Lead agencies may modify this form to include additional specific information on project
description.)

The City of Orting is performing its annual Comprehensive Plan Amendments.
Amendments include:

1. anew Zoning Map (to correct a scrivener’s error);
2. adoption of an update to the Transportation Improvement Plan; and
3. text amendments to the Comprehensive Plan, specifically to:
a. Section R1 of the Roadway Improvements section of the Transportation
Element Appendix and
b. to the Mixed Use Town Center portion (Goal LU 8) of the Land Use
Element.

The City is also adopting corresponding implementing legislation in sections 13-3-2-E
OMC Mixed Use Town Center North Zone and 13-3-3 OMC Uses.

12. Location of the proposal. Give sufficient information for a person to understand the precise
location of your proposed project, including a street address, if any, and section, township, and
range, if known. If a proposal would occur over a range of area, provide the range or
boundaries of the site(s). Provide a legal description, site plan, vicinity map, and topographic
map, if reasonably available. While you should submit any plans required by the agency, you
are not required to duplicate maps or detailed plans submitted with any permit applications
related to this checkiist.

The proposal would amend the Comprehensive Plan and the municipal code for the City of
Orting and its urban growth area (UGA). The City of Orting is located in Pierce County, on
SR 162 between the City of Sumner and the Town of South Prairie.

Section B EXCLUDED, SEE ANSWERS in Section D below.

C. Signature

The above answers are true and complete to the best of my knowledge. | understand that the
lead agency is relying on them to make its decision.

¢
[P A

Signature: e SR A

A\
Name of signee Emily Tertell

Position and Agency/Organization City Planner. Citv of Orting
Date Submitted; __ June 11, 2019

SEPA Environmental checklist (WAC 197-11-360) May 2014 Page 2 of 4



D. supplemental sheet for nonproject actions

1. How would the proposal be likely to increase discharge to water; emissions to air; pro-
duction, storage, or release of toxic or hazardous substances; or production of noise?

The proposal will not increase discharge to water, emissions to air or affect toxic or
hazardous substances or noise. Subsequent development and projects could affect these

issues, but each will be addressed at the individual project approval stage.

Proposed measures to avoid or reduce such increases are:

Not applicabie.

2. How would the proposal be likely to affect plants, animals, fish, or marine life?

The proposal in itself will not affect plants, animals, fish or marine life. Implementing
projects may have an effect on each of these issues, but each implementing project will

be reviewed at the project application and review stage.
Proposed measures to protect or conserve plants, animals, fish, or marine life are:

All applicable SMP, Critical Areas, Flood Hazard and development standards will be

applied to any implementing project.

3. How would the proposal be likely to deplete energy or natural resources?

Not applicable.

Proposed measures to protect or conserve energy and natural resources are:

Not applicable.

4. How would the proposal be likely to use or affect environmentally sensitive areas or
areas designated (or eligible or under study) for governmental protection; such as parks,
wilderness, wild and scenic rivers, threatened or endangered species habitat, historic or

cultural sites, wetlands, floodplains, or prime farmiands?

All applicable SMP, Critical Areas, Flood Hazard and development standards will be

applied to any implementing project.

Proposed measures to protect such resources or to avoid or reduce impacts are:

Page 3 of 4

SEPA Environmental checklist (WAC 197-11-960) May 2014



Not applicable.

5. How would the proposal be likely to affect Jland and shoreline use, including whether it
would allow or encourage land or shoreline uses incompatible with existing plans?

The proposed new zoning will promote public access to the shoreline while protecting
critical areas and their buffers. The proposed new zoning will reduce the impact on
shoreline uses by requiring useable open space preservation and decreased intensity of
uses near the shoreline.

Proposed measures to avoid or reduce shoreline and land use impacts are:
Not applicable.

6. How would the proposal be likely to increase demands on transportation or public
services and utilities?

Implementing projects will have an effect on transportation services and utilities.
However, all implementing projects will be required to pay transportation impact fees and
general facility charges.

Proposed measures to reduce or respond to such demand(s) are:
Not applicable.

7. ldentify, if possible, whether the proposal may conflict with local, state, or federal laws or
requirements for the protection of the environment.

The proposal will not conflict with local, state, or federal laws or requirements for the
protection of the environment.

SEPA Environmental checktist (WAC 197-11-960) May 2014 ' ' Page 4 of 4




City Of Orting
’ Council Agenda Summary Sheet

) Committee Study Session Council
Subject: 2020 Grant
Requests Agenda item #: N/A AB19-58 AB19-58
For Agenda of: 9.18.19 9.25.19
Department: Administration
Date Submitted: | 9.10.19
Cost of Item: [ 5
Amount Budgeted: E
Unexpended Balance: 5
Bars #: 001.571.20.31.09
Timeline: N
Submitted By: : | City Clerk
Fiscal Note:
Attachments: Resolution No’s. 2019-18, 19,20,21,22, and 23.
SUMMARY STATEMENT:

The City received applications for grants from the Orting Chamber of Commerce, Orting Farmers
Market, Orting food bank, Opportunity Center, (DBA the Haven), Orting Senior Center, and the
Orting Valley Recovery Café. All have either non-profit corporation or 501C3 status. City Policy
requires that the City Council review and approve all applications for a grants, and determine
whether an applicant qualifies for a grant (after review and approval of the application by the
Community & Government Affairs Committee). The enclosed proposed Resolution No.’s 2019-
18 thru 2019-23, reflect findings by the CGA Committee that the proposed applicants qualify for
grants, and authorizes the issuance of a grants, pursuant to a contract entered into between the
Mayor and each of the applicants. :

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Move forward to the consent agenda of the next meeting.

FUTURE MOTION: To approve Resolution No’s 2019-18, 19, 20, 21, 22, and 23, to
Grant applicants as prepared, for a total of $




GRANT REQUESTS-2020

GRANT APPLICANT REQUESTED AMOUNT | RECEIVED IN
2020 2019

CHAMBER OF COMMERCE $15,000 $2,500
FARMERS MARKET $4,000 $3,000
FOOD BANK $3,000 $3,000
OPPORTUNITY CENTER $7,500 $10,000
RECOVERY CAFE $15,000 $10,000
SENIOR CENTER 15,000 $13,000




Grant Application FOR CITY CLERK USE ONLY:

City of Orting - Office of the City Clerk ECEE
5] PO Box 489-110 Train St., Orting, WA 98360 RECEIVE
| J/Phone: (360) 893-2219 ext.133 - Fax: (360) 893-6809

; www_cityoforting.org AUG 1 6 2019
CiTY OF ORTING
Budget Year: 2020
Name of Organization: Orting Chamber of Commerce UBI #: 20-8140176

Contact Person’s Name and Title: Dr. Troy Munson/Steve Rodrigues
Mailing Address: PO Box 1418 * Orting, WA 98360
Phone: 253.988.8769/253.312.6144  Email Address: chiroman@dr.com/steve.rodrigues@baxtermfg.com

Amount Requested: $_15,000.00

— A

How the City Grant will be used (This information can be provided in a letter, attached to this
application):

The Orting Chamber of Commerce acquired a new float in 2019 and are excited about it. We not only
participated in the Daffodil Festival, we also were asked to participate in the 2019 Seafair Torchlight
Parade. In the Daffodil parade, we won the main “Grand Sweepstakes” award and in the Seafair parade
we won the Boeing-Innovation and Technology Award. With the help of the City Grant we will be able to
build/decorate the float and represent Orting in the parades for 2020. This year's theme was: A Heart for
Service (Daffodil Parade) and Bringing Traditions together (Seafair Parade)

Who does the grant serve (This information can be provided in a letter, attached to this
application):

This grant will serve the Orting Community as it travels in the parades representing Orting. We like to

include the Orting High School students and Orting community members to be involved to help build it and
ride the float.

What City Facilities will you be requesting for usage with this grant. (May not use facilities for
fundraising)

We are asking for a space to store the float in a covered area if the city has one available. The grant will
help secure a cover to protect the float and storage shed for all the purchased materials. If a storage area
is supplied, then $10,000 of this grant would not be necessary.

ro itv of

- Submit one (1) original and one (1) electronic copy of this application, along with the folowing
attachments, to the City no later than August 1%, at 3:00pm, (for grants to be issued in the following
year).

The attachments that shall be included with the application include:
1. Previous year's annual financial statement
2. Current year's budget

3. Proof of non-profit status, including but not limited to 501(c) (3) identification number.
4. Copy of Liability Insurance with rider for the City. (may be provided after approval)

- Arepresentative of the applicant shall attend the City Council's Community and Government Affairs
Committee Meeting to discuss the contents of the application.

- If selected, an authorized representative of the applicant shall execute a contract with the City

~hefore the%u;p/hail receive the funding.
UL O Pl i /
;}%ture of Adthorized Representative of Applicant Date
< ase return completed form and any additional information to:

City of Orfing - Attn: City Clerk 110 Train St. SE, PO Box 489, Orting, WA 98360 360.893.2219




2018 Daffodil financial report

Beginning Balance $ 2,402.01

Expenses $(3,034.39)
Donations $5,371.91

Flowers $(2,200.00)
Fuel S  {34.64)

Ending Balance S 2,504.89



2019 BUDGET
ibutedihetiaghen i R o o _
|
i s b o e L= S | . |
DAFFODIL PARADE SEA FAIR PARADE  TOTAL BALANCE
i '_-_ " Income B Expe‘nses Income | Expenses |___.___ -
| |Checking1/1/2019 |$  2,504.89 | o I
"~ Donations '$ 698603 R 7
-~ pPamts 'S 41856, $ 3515 M
__ DOLRegistration 5 20550 | B = ) B
] Decorations  $1,24484 | 8107961 B
Flowers ~1'$1,800.00 s - | 7
" linsurance [ ' S 8200 $ 14500 o
Expenses s 40640 S 10.80 | -
" Hotel 18 34116 [s1089.a3 -
~ lFood s - B A
'Costumes 181,223.92 ! |$ 511.93
T ey ST [ rom00 :
i 'ﬁEIec&Transpor«t ‘ L S o ' | $ 750.00 | N
o ‘ E 9,490.92 $5,72238 'S -  $376854 §




INTERNAL REVENUR SERVICE DEPARTMENT OF 'THE THEAST
P. O. BOX 2508 :
CINCINNATI, OH 45201

MAY 25 zﬂa? E§§>}g}lf§;1Ergentuflcjtjcr Nunmer .

DL .
17053905:0050137
ORTING CHAMBER OF COMMERCE Contact Verson-
PG RBOY 1418 214 WASHINGTON AVE § PAULZ \J MOLL- MALONE In# 31242
ORTING, wa 98350- 1418 Contact Telnpn 2 Number .
(877) 8u9- 1G

Accounting Pellod Ending:
December 21

Form 990 Recuired:
Yeg

Effective Pate of gy aemption:
December 29, 2006
Contribution Dednctibi
No

ity

Dear Applicant:

We are pleased to inform you that upen review of vour application for tax-
exempt status we have determined that You are exempt from Federal income tax
under section 501{c} (6) of the Internal Revenue Code. Bpﬂaust this lettexr
could help resolve any questions regarding vour EXempt status, you should keen
it in vour bermanent records.

Please see encleosed Information for Organizatione Mt Under Sec
Than 501 () (2} for some helpful information about your respongibil
exXemph organization.

=
it 2

Roher‘ Cheoi
DlrecLor Exempt ﬂ'ganizations

X
Rulings and Agreement

iosure: Information for Organizationg Exempt Under Sesctiong Ot henr
Than 501 () (3)




501(c)(6)

Qualifications for exemption

A business league may qualify if it is an association of persons having a common business interest,
whose purpose is to promote the common business interest and whose activities improve business
conditions rather than actually conduct the business itself. Members of the organization must be of the
same trade, business, occupation, or profession in order to qualify. A chamber of commerce or board of
trade could qualify for similar reasons except that they may promote the tommon economic interests of
all the commercial enterprises in a given trade or community.

An association would not qualify if its principal activities consist of securing benefits and performing
particular services for members.

its members.
Contributions and activities

Much like 501(c)(4) and 501(c)(5) Organizations, 501(c)6) organizations may also perform some political
activities. 501(c)(6) Organizations are allowed to attempt to influence legislation that is related to the
common business interests of its members.

contributions, and any other information, is required to be made available for public inspection unless it
clearly identifies the contributor. The U.S. Chamber of Commerce is a large political spender, and
Freedom Partners uysed its status as a 501(c}(6} organization to raise and distribute over $250 million
during the 2012 election Campaigns without disclosing its donors. The group's existence was not publicly
known until nearly a year after the election. )

A business' membership dues paid to a 501(c)(6) organization are generally an ordinary and necessary
business expense. The membership dues are tax-deductible in full unless a substantial part of the
501(c)(6) organization's activities consists of political activity, in which case a tax deduction is alloweg
only for the portion of membership dues that are for other activitjes.



History

The predecessor of IRC 501(c)(6) was enacted as part of the Revenue Act of 1913 likely due to a U.S.
Chamber of Commerce request for an exemption for nonprofit "civic" and "commercial" organizations,
which resulted in IRC 501(c)(4) for nonprofit "civic" organizations and IRC 501(c)(6) for nonprofit
"commercially-oriented"” organizations. The Revenue Act of 1928 amended the statute to include real
estate boards. In 1966, professional football leagues were added to the described organizations,

The Revenue Act of 1913 related to professional football leagues had both antitrust and tax provisions:
The antitrust provision was enacted to permit the merger of the National and American Football
Leagues to go forward without fear of an antitrust challenge under either the 1914 Clayton Antitrust Act
or the 1914 Federal Trade Commission Act. IRC 501(c){6) amendment was enacted in 1966 to ensure
that a professional football league’s exemption would not be jeopardized because it administered a
players' pension fund. Additionally, a professional sports league's exemption is not to be jeopardized
because its primary source of revenue is the sale of television broadcasting rights to its games because

the broadcasting of games increases public awareness of the sport.

In 2013, Senator Tom Coburn introduced legislation to disallow a tax exemption for the National
Football League, the Professional Golfers' Association, and other professional sports organizations.



THE HARTFORD

BUSINESS SERVICE CENTER

THE 3600 WISEMAN BLVD

HARTFORD  SAN ANTONIO TX 78251 August 16, 2019

The Clty of Orting
PO BOX 489
ORTING WA 98360-0489

Account Information: \(D Contact Us
ontac

ORTING CHAMBER OF . _
COMMERCE Business Service Center

Business Hours: Monday - Friday

(7AM - 7PM Central Standard Time)
Phone: (866) 467-8730

Fax: (888) 443-6112

Email: agency.services@thehartford.com
Website: https://business.thehartford.com

Policy Holder Details :

Enclosed please find a Certificate Of Insurance for the above referenced Policyholder. Please contact us if you have any
questions or concerns.

Sincerely,
Your Hartford Service Team

e e e T e T
WLTRO005
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MWDD/YYYY)

08/16/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE
HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE
AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE

ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATIONIS WAIVED,
subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does

not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

METLIFE AUTO & HOME INS AGENCY INC

33708725

9797 SPRINGBORO PIKE

MIAMISBURG OH 45342

CONTACT NAME:

PHONE
{AIC, No, Ext):

(866) 467-8730

FAX
(AIC, No):

(888) 4436112

E-MAIL ADDRESS:

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

NAIC#

INSURER A : Sentinel Insurance Company Lid.

11000

INSURED

ORTING CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

PO BOX 1418
ORTING WA 98360-1418

INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURERE :

INSURER F :

COVERAGES

CERTIFICATE NUMBER:

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE

TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR] ADDL [SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP
) TYPE OF INSURANCE pisel oo POLICY NUMBER oy W Pl LIMITS
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $2,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
ICLAEMS-MADE e PREMISES (Ea accurrence) $1,000,000
¥ |General Liability MED EXP (Any one person) $10,000
A 33 SBA AC2923 03/16/2019 | 03/16/2020 | PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $2,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $4,000,000
] PRO-
POLICY Loc .
- | I:I JECT PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $4,000,000
OTHER:
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY POMBINEDISINGIEEEIMIl] $2,000,000
e (Ea accident)
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person)
— WNE =
A | |AoaNER | | SCHEDULED 33SBAAC2023 | 03/16/2019 | 03/16/2020 |B0DILY INJURY (Per accident
;‘ HIRED x| NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
| AuTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE
EXCESS LIAB ACAI/—\P;'\E/'S- AGGREGATE
DEDI |ReTenTion $
WORKERS COMPENSATION IPER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY STATUTE ER
ANY YIN E.L. EACH ACCIDENT
PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE NIA
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED? l: E.L. DISEASE -EA EMPLOYEE
(Mandatory in NH)
If yes, describe under E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
Each Claim Limit $50,000
A | EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES 33 SBA AC2923 03/16/2019 | 03/16/2020 .k
LIABILITY Aggregate Limit $50,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)
Those usual to the Insured's Operations.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

The Clty of Orting
PO BOX 489
ORTING WA 98360-0489

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED
BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. Allrights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



o
ACORE?
|

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DDIYYYY)
08/16/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE OF
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW.
INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE

ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the
terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

PRODUCER GONIACT BRANDI HEINZMANN
VIRGIL MCLAGAN COMPANY A o, Exti: 253-862-3610 | TA oy 253-862-3265
PO BOX 7950 EW¥iess: brandi@®mclaganins.com
BONNEY LAKE, WA 98391 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
INSURER A: PROGRESSIVE 16322
INSURED INSURER B:
ORTING CHAMBER OF =
COMMERCE '
PO BOX 1418, INSURER B
ORTING, WA 98360 RSURER B2
INSURER F.
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 105097 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INGR TYPE OF INSURANCE A R POLICY NUMBER RS | e AT LiMTS

| GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY %g;{ll\%%g%?zo’gﬁr?ence) $

| CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) $

] PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | §

|| GENERAL AGGREGATE | $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | §

_| POLICY B LOC $

A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 00586348 04/05/2019]04/05/2020] €2 seideny s 1,000,000

| ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | §

() QH’FCCJ)\SNNED §S1HggULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident)| $

 |nmepautos || NOpRWNED g MAGE s

$

_|UMBRELLALIAB | | occur EACH OCCURRENCE $

EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

pen| | ReTenTion's v S
e T T

ANY PROPRIETORIPARTNEREXECUTIVE i E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 5

(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $

DS RIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMT | §

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

CITY OF ORTING
110 TRAIN ST SE
ORTING WA
98360

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WiLL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Bronde Perremoann

ACORD 25 {(2010/05)

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




CITY OF ORTING
WASHINGTON

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-18

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF ORTING,
WASHINGTON, DECLARING A PUBLIC PURPOSE AND
AUTHORIZING A CITY GRANT OF FUNDS TO THE
ORTING CHAMBER OF COMMERCE.

WHEREAS, the City of Orting has adopted a Grant Policy (the “Policy”) to provide
grant funding to organizations which the City Council determines bring significant value to the
citizens of Orting and which serve valid municipal purposes; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Policy, grant funding is provided to organizations
upon application, evaluated by the City Council pursuant to the Policy on a case-by-case basis
and at various levels of support depending on the value the applicant provides to the community;
and

WHEREAS, the City received an application for grant funding from the Orting Chamber
of Commerce, a nonprofit corporation registered with the State of Washington; and

WHEREAS, the City Council’s Community & Government Affairs Committee reviewed
the application on September 5%, 2019, and recommended approval of the application; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the Orting Chamber of Commerce sponsors the
Orting Community Float which is a volunteer community group that puts together an Orting
Daffodil Float for the Daffodil Festival every year; and

WHEREAS, the applicant has represented that this grant shall be used by the applicant
to help purchase a new float chassis, and a contract between the City and the applicant shall be
executed to that effect prior to the applicant’s receipt of the grant funding described herein; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that funding the aforementioned
organization/activity serves the valid municipal purposes of promoting community participation
and providing an opportunity for strengthening the City’s sense of community; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the Orting Chamber of Commerce’s application
meets the requirements of the City’s Policy, and qualifies for grant funding as an organization
serving valid municipal purposes; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Orting, Washington, do resolve as
follows:

Section 1. Declaration of Public Purpose. The City Council declares that the Orting
Chamber of Commerce serves the valid municipal purposes described herein, and that the




described intent for the requested funding is instrumental in ensuring that the organization meets
those purposes.

Section 2. Authorization for Sponsorship of Event. The City Council authorizes the
City’s grant funding Orting Chamber of Commerce, pursuant to the City’s Policy, in the amount
of $ . The Mayor is authorized to enter into a contract with the Orting Chamber of
Commerce to memorialize the City’s grant funding described herein.

Section 3. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force
immediately upon its passage.

PASSSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF ON
THE 25" DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2019.

CITY OF ORTING

Joshua Penner, Mayor
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:

Jane Montgomery, City Clerk, CMC

Approved as to form:

Charlotte Archer, City Attorney
Inslee, Best, Doezie & Ryder, P.S.



Grant Application-2020 FoR cITY R RIVER onty:
City of Orting - Office of the City Clerk
=+ PO Box 489-110 Train St., Orting, WA 98360 AUG 14 2019
Phone: (360) 893-2219 ext.133 - Fax: (360) 893-6809 ‘
www_cityoforting.org CITY OF ORTI.N—G i
Name of Organization: __ () 21 NG VAWSY FARMEYS MARKET uBl# 03436579

Contact Person’s Name andTitle: _ DU GRAVES - MARKET MANAGER
Mailing Address: PO, BOx 1665 L ORVING , LUA. 9% 360
Phone:. 2 GO ~ £72 - 6836 EmailAddress: OVFMC ONTACTE GMALL, COM

~

Amount Requested: $§ 4000 22 ‘

How the grant will be used (This information can be provided in a letter, attached to this application):
FONDS Wil BE VSED FOR OPERAIONNAL AND PROGRAM EXPEMNIES (K]
2020 7O TdLdE S OPPLI ES; ACNYITY EXPEN SS9, PROGRAM

COSTS AND MARKETING . SEF ADDITIONAL I1LFORLWMATIOL

AN CLODED /N COUER LETTER,

Who does the grant serve (This information can be provided in a letter, attached to this application):
AL MEUMGARS OF THE ORTING COMWMOA) ity (Ll BE SERVED TNCLLDING

CHOILDREN , [ 812 TACAWME HOUSERCLPS i or N FARMS AND FRAMEDS, SMALL (el Budhesies

N ANDO ARoun) CRTIVG,
What city facilities will you be requesting for usage with this grant (May not use facilities for fundraising):

ORTING STIRTION AND NORTH PARK .

1. Submit one (1) original and one (1) electronic copy of this application, along with the following
attachments to the City no iater than August 1%, at 3:0upm, (for grants to be issued in ihe foiiowing year).
Grants will be approved and distributed at the City’s discretion.

1. Previous year’s annual financial statement
2. Current year's budget
3. Proof of non-profit status, including but not limited to 501(c)(3) identification number.

4. Copy of Liability Insurance with rider for the City (rider may be provided afterapproval).

2. Arepresentative of the applicant shall attend the City Council’'s Community and Government Affairs
Committee Meeting to discuss the contents of the application.
The attachments that shall be included with the application include:

3. If selected, an authorized representative of the applicant shall execute a contract with the City
before the group shall receive the funding.

G - —— 081 0l 1 49

i

Signature of Authorized Representative of Applicant Date

Please return completed form and any additional information to: City of Orting — Attn: City Clerk 110 Train
St. SE, PO Box 489, Orting, WA 98360 For more information, please call (360)893-2219.



Request for Funding for Orting Valley Farmers’ Market (OVFM)

To: City Administrator, City Council Members, and Mayor

On behalf of the OVFM, | am submitting a request for funding for 2020.

The total dollar amount requested is $4,000. Funds would be used to operate the OVFM in 2020. I'm induding a good
faith budget projection in this package, though it has not yet gone through the budget adoption processwith the board
of directors. (This application is due prior to OVFM fiscal budget adoption).

The OVFM has been good for Orting. We continue our promotion throughout the state of not only the market, but this
entire area, with both our Ag-Tourism brochure and map in the annual farm guide. A good number of participants
respond that they’ve had great results from this promotion. Many new faces are coming to visit our market, farms, and
events in town and throughout Pierce County because of this.

This year, as in previous years, we are growing the farmers market substantially. Vendor sales are again up over
last year (despite having severe weather on opening day). We were still able to draw shoppers, ncrease foot
traffic in the downtown core, and support many local small businesses.

We proudly offered matching dollars this year for SNAP beneficiaries (formerly food stamp program), which
increased the consumption of and improved access to fresh focal foods. This program has helped expand the
draw for use of EBT benefits at the market. $300 in matching funds were made possible by a private grant
donor. While the market doesn’t gain financially from this program, the benefits to the community are
substantial- including the benefits to our local farmers and producers. We are confident that this program will
continue into 2020 and beyond.

We are also preparing to roll out a privately funded program to provide “Fresh Bucks” to the Orting Food Bank
allowing food bank patrons to spend vouchers for good and healthy food products at the OrtingValley Farmers
Market.

We again offer educational opportunities to children and adults- cooking classes and demos, chidren’s story and
activity times, fun games, and entertainment at the market free of charge.

I thank you for your consideration of this request, and also thank you again for your prior support.

Please contact me if you have questions.

Doug Graves

Orting Valley Farmers Market - Manager

(253) 509-3609 Personal cell

(360) 872-6836 OVFM line



Orting Valley Farmers Market

Projected 2018 Budget

(Template-Needs updating of all info)

Projected Income

Vendor Fees $6,000
Fundraiser (TBD) $1,000
Donations S 400
Pierce County Grant $1,000
City of Orting grant $3,000

*QOther Grants/Sponsorships 82,225

Total $13,625

Projected Expenses

Permits & Fees- County/State S 500

WSFMA membership&seminar $ 250

Supplies/Storage S 875
Promotion/Marketing $1,800
EBT (SNAP) program exp. S 200
Webpage expenses S 100

Activities & Entertainment S 875
Manager Stipend $7,450
Insurance S 275

Telephone & Hot Spot service S 300

Mileage reimbursement $ 1,000
Total $13,625

Orting Valley Farmers Market

Actual 2018 Income & Expenses

Actual Income

Carryover from 2017 $1,000
Vendor Fees $6,458
Fundraiser (TBD) $1,250
Pierce County Grant $1,000
City of Orting grant $3,000
Sponsorships S 0
Donations S 819
Total $13,527

Actual Expenses
Permits & Fees- County/State S 430

Permits & Fees-Orting S 100

WSFMA membership&seminar $ 250

Supplies/Storage S 656
Promotion/Marketing $2,350
EBT (SNAP) program exp. S 266
Webpage expenses S 0

Activities & Entertainment S 207
Manager Stipend $7,450
fnsurance S 275
Telephone & Hot Spot service S 259
Mileage reimbursement $ 1,000

Total $13,243



Orting Valley Farmers Market- Projected 2019 Budget year end

Projected Income

Vendor Fees $11,475
Fundraiser (TBD) $2,921
Donations $3,350
Specified Donations $500
Pierce County Grant $1,000
City of Orting grant $3,000

Other Grants/Sponsorships $2,500

Total $22,746

Projected Expenses

Unpaid Token Reimbursements $ 738
Permits & Fees- County/State  § 600
Permits City of Orting S 100

WSFMA membership&seminar S 933

Supplies/Storage 51,400
Promotion/Marketing 82,375
EBT (SNAP) program exp. S 350
Webpage expenses S 180

Activities & Entertainment $1,200
Manager Stipend $10,500
Insurance S 500

Telephone & Hot Spot service S 320

Mileage reimbursement $ 1,000
Market Bag Purchase $ 700
Post Office Box fee S 100

Misc Stipend&assistance fees  $1,240
Eat Fresh Orting fees S 175

Total $22,286

The above data reflects 2019 year end projections and may vary due to actual conditions.



Orting Valley Farmers Market- Projected 2020 Budget

Projected Income

Vendor Fees $13,500
Fundraisers $3,000
Donations $3,350
Specified Donations $500
Pierce County Grant $1,000
City of Orting grant $4,000

Other Grants/Sponsorships $2,500

Total $27,850

Projected Expenses

Unpaid Token Reimbursements S 500
Permits & Fees- County/State S 600
Permits City of Orting S 100

WSFMA membership&seminar $ 800

Supplies/Storage $2,000
Promotion/Marketing $2,800
EBT (SNAP) program exp. S 50
Webpage expenses S 180

Activities & Entertainment $2,785
Manager Stipend $13,500
Insurance S 500
Telephone & Hot Spot service $ 320
Manager Assistant Stipend S 1,500
Market Bag Purchase S 700
Post Office Box fee S 100

Misc Stipend&assistance fees  $1,240

Eat Fresh Orting fees S 175
Total $27,850

in addition to the support from the City of Orting, other grants, donations and sponsorships are sought
after to cover annual Farmers Market expenses. Projected Income from vendor fees is based on2019

vendor statistics and reflects the customary annual vendor fee increase.



INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE |

SERVIQR DEPARTMENT OF THE TREAEZURY
P. O. BOX 2508 e -
CINCINNATI, OH 45201

Employer Identification Mumber.

vate: MARZ & {119 47 1671216
DLN:
26053482003435
ORTING VALLEY FARMERS MARKET Contact Person:
19220 196 ST B CUSTOMER SERVICE TDH 31954
ORTING, WA 98360-0000 Contact Telephone Number :

{877) 829-5500
Accounting Period Ending:
December 31
Public Charity Status:

170 (b) (1) (R) (vi)
Form 990/990-EZ/990-N Required:

Yes
Effective Date of Exemption:

August 28, 2014
Contribution Deductibility:
Yes
Addendum Applies:

No

Dear Applicant:

We're pleased to tell you we determined you're exempt from federal income tax
under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(c) (3). Donors can deduct
contributions they make to you under IRC Section 170. You're also qualified to
receive tax deductible bequests, devises, transfers or gifts under Section
2055, 2106, or 2522. This letter could help resolve questions on your exempt

gtatus. Please keep it for your records.

organizations exempt under IRC Section 501(c) (3) are further classified as
either public charities or private foundations. We determined you're a public
charity under the IRC Section listed at the top of this letter.

If we indicated at the top of this letter that you're required to file Form
990/990-E%/990-N, our records show you're required to file an annual
information return (Form 990 or Form 990-EZ) or electronic notice (Form 5%0-N,
the e-Postcard). If you don’t file a required return or notice for three
consecutive years, your exempt status will be automatically revoked.

If we indicated at the top of this letter that an addendum applies, the
enclosed addendum is an integral part of this letter.

Por important information about your responsibilities as a tax-exempt
organization, go to www.irs.gov/charities. Enter "4221-PC" in the search bar
to view Publication 4221-PC, Compliance Guide for 501 (c) (3) Public Chavrities,
which describes your recordkeeping, reporting, and disclosure requirements.

Letter 5436
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

ORTIN- OP ID: LS

DATE (MMDD/YYYY)
03/07/2019

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED 8Y THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

PRODUCER

Pro Insur,Inc. dba

Campbell Risk Management
9595 Whitley Drive, Suite 204

CONTACT | arry Spilker ext 203
N, Exti; 317-848-9075

EMAL ss: Ispilker@campbellrisk.com

[ F2X \o; 317-848-9093

Indianapolis, IN 46240
Larry Spitker ext 203 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
nsurer A : HANOVER INSURANCE GROUP 22292
INSURED Orting Valley Farmers Market INSURER B :
PO Box 1665
Orting, WA 98360 INSURERICy:
INSURER D
INSURERE :
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT 70 ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR DD Fumi POLICY EFF_ | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE iINSD |wvD POLICY NUMBER (MM/DD/YYYY) |(MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 2,000,000
| cLams.mape OCCUR X | X |AA2528 LHW D481967 03/01/2019 | 03/01/2020 | PRV AEL (s ovcurence) | 100,000
] MED EXP (Any one person) | $ 5,000
| PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § 2,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 4,000,000
X | roLicy FEe D Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | § 4,000,000
OTHER: _|®
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLELINIT |5
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | §
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED
AT oD BODILY INJURY (Per acciden)| $
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE 3
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
$
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
pep | | RETENTIONS $
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER QT H-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY o Starure | | e
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE £.L. EACH ACCIDENT $
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? D NIA
{Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below £.L DISEASE - POLICY LIMT | $

|per coverage form 421-2915 06 15.

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES {(ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space Is required)

Those usual to the Insured’s operation. Blanket additional Insured applies

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

EVIDENC

Evidence of Insurance

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BECANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
/ C ({/(_/

ACORD 25 (2014/01)

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. Al rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




CITY OF ORTING
WASHINGTON

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-19

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF ORTING,
WASHINGTON, DECLARING A PUBLIC PURPOSE AND
AUTHORIZING A CITY GRANT OF FUNDS TO ORTING
VALLEY FARMERS MARKET.

WHEREAS, the City of Orting has adopted a Grant Policy (the “Policy”) to provide
grant funding to organizations which the City Council determines bring significant value to the
citizens of Orting and which serve valid municipal purposes; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Policy, grant funding is provided to organizations
upon application, evaluated by the City Council pursuant to the Policy on a case-by-case basis
and at various levels of support depending on the value the applicant provides to the community;
and

WHEREAS, the City received an application for grant funding from the Orting Valley
Famers Market, a nonprofit corporation registered with the State of Washington; and

WHEREAS, the City Council’s Community & Government Affairs Committee reviewed
the application on September 5™, 2019, and recommended approval of the application; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the Orting Valley Farmers Market operates the
Orting Famers Market in Orting, which provide an annual, every Friday Event for farmers and
crafters to be able to share their goods, produce and wares with the Orting Community and
visiting tourists; and

WHEREAS, the applicant has represented that this grant shall be used by the applicant
for the running of these events, and a contract between the City and the applicant shall be
executed to that effect prior to the applicant’s receipt of the grant funding described herein; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that funding the aforementioned
organization/activity promotes community participation and the health, safety and welfare of the
community’s citizens and their families, and serves the valid municipal purposes of attracting
business to the community, promoting volunteerism, and community participation; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the Orting Valley Famers Market’s application
meets the requirements of the City’s Policy, and qualifies for grant funding as an organization
serving valid municipal purposes; and



NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Orting, Washington, do resolve as
follows:

Section 1. Declaration of Public Purpose. The City Council declares that the Orting
Valley Famers Market serves the valid municipal purposes described herein, and that the
described intent for the requested funding is instrumental in ensuring that the organization meets
those purposes.

Section 2. Authorization for Sponsorship of Event. The City Council authorizes the
City’s grant funding Orting Valley Famers Market, pursuant to the City’s Policy, in the amount
of § . The Mayor is authorized to enter into a contract with the Orting Valley Famers
Market to memorialize the City’s grant funding described herein.

Section 3. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force
immediately upon its passage.

PASSSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF ON
THE 25" DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2019.

CITY OF ORTING

Joshua Penner, Mayor
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:

Jane Montgomery, City Clerk, CMC

Approved as to form:

Charlotte Archer, City Attorney
Inslee, Best, Doezie & Ryder, P.S.



Grant Application-2020

City of Orting - Office of the City Clerk
PO Box 489-110 Train St., Orting, VWA 98360
Phone: (360) 893-2219 ext.133 - Fax: (360) 893-6809
www.cityoforting.org

FOR CITY'CLERK USE ONLY:

&

| ﬁw 20-95090 33
Name of Organization:_ Of'g“w\(,\ Rw'] &/N)’\ UBI # (0 ;‘70)—4#46‘

Contact Person's Name and Title: yﬁAL\MM& me/) Pft‘:e. /LAASX—
Mailing Address: PO I:Z'OX /377 Oﬂf\m }/\/‘V;’ 75360 (5271

J
Phone:_%ﬁ -5 (042 Email Address: S’}'e/)w'& /oCnlmp ey,
e COQS- i T
Amount Re(:q%egjd:g; 300 e orh Y\?’W N @ya,kw. o

How the grant will be used (This information can be provided in a letter, attached to this application):

ple&‘é& Coe mé‘{'&‘c/lrﬁl z'@(’g’f"

does the grant sepve (This mformatnon can be provided in a letter, attached to this application):
o 5C afz&b e b~

Wi)la/lfr city facilities will you be requesting for usage with this grant (May not use facilities for fundraising):
on~e_

1. Submit one (1) original and one (1) electronic copy of this application, along with the following
attachments to the City no later than August 1%, at 3:60pm, (for grants to be issued in the following year).
Grants will be approved and distributed at the City’'s discretion.

1. Previous year's annual financial statement

2. Current year's budget

3. Proofof non-profit status, including but not limited to 501(c)(3) identification number.

4. Copy of Liability Insurance with rider for the City (rider may be provided after approval).

2. Arepresentative of the applicant shall attend the City Council's Community and Government Affairs
Committee Meeting to discuss the contents of the application.
The attachments that shall be included with the application include:

3. If selected, an authorized representative of the applicant shall execute a contract with the City
before the group shall receive the funding.

éuéiﬁfxb W‘TQ/ 7 131 139

Signatu?e of Authorizedé’?epresentative of Applicant Date

Please return completed form and any additional information to: City of Orting — Attn: City Clerk 110 Train
St. SE, PO Box 489, Orting, WA 98360 For more information, please call (360)893-2219.



o R

RECENED
= FowD o CLEg;(
o K UL 31 2019
Orting Food Bank
224 Washington Ave S TY OF ORT’NG
PO Box 1877

Orting, WA 98360-1877

July 31, 2019
We are requesting a grant of $3000.00 from the City of Orting for the 2020 fiscal year.

This grant is divided into two parts. Up to $1,500 will be used to provide assistance with paying utility
bills to restore water service to customers of the City of Orting. What is not used of this $1,500 can be
used by the food bank to pay for day to day expenses. The remaining $1,500 will be used for dayto day
expenses. The following is the policy for utility assistance payments:

e Customers will be referred by the Orting Food Bank to the City of Orting. The City of Orting will
make the determination to accept or deny referrals.

*  When a referral is accepted for grant assistance, the Orting Food Bank will pay the customer’s
outstanding bill with the City of Orting, up to the amount approved by the City.

e Customers can receive grant assistance once per year.

e The Orting Food Bank will maintain records of customers whose bills have been paid out of this
grant.

The Orting Food Bank serves over 400 families a month in our community with emergency food

assistance. We accept anyone in the community that needs assistance. We also provide referral services
to other agencies to assist community members with receiving needed services.

Respectfully submitted

Stephanie Lathrop /

President, Orting Food Bank

“Putting an end to hunger in Ortingl”
The Orting Food Bank is a registered 501(c)3 charity.
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A PROFESSIONAL SERVICE CORPORATICON

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' COMPILATION REPORT

To the Board of Trustees of
Orting Food Bank
Orting, Washington

Management is responsible for the accompanying financial statements of Orting Food Bank (the
Organization) which comprise the statements of financial position as of December 31, 2018 and
2017, the related statements of activities functional expenses and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. We have performed a compilation
engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services
promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA. We did not audit
or review the financial statements nor were we required to perform any procedures to verify the
accuracy or completeness of the information provided by management. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any assurance on these financial statements.

' -
Batloehete & Vahoty
¢
Puyallup, Washington
June 12, 2019



Orting Food Bank
Statements of Financial Position
December 31, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017
Assets
Current Assets
Cash $ 83,970 §$ 98477
Food inventory 72.007 104582
Total Current Assets 155,977 203,089
Property and Equipment
Furniture and equipment 110,492 110,492
Buildings 388,890 388,890
Land 68.378 68378
567,760 567,760
Accumulated depreciation (125.527) (97.687)
Total Property and Equipment 442 233 470073
Total Assets $ 598210 673132
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities
Accrued payroll and taxes $ 2,457 $ 2411
Amounts held on behalf of others 131 1214
Total Current Liabilities 2,588 3625
Net Assets
Without Donor Restrictions:
Undesignated 595,622 669,507
Total Net Assets 595,622 669,507
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 598210 $ 673,132

See accompanying notes and independent accountants' compilation report.
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Orting Food Bank
Statements of Activities

For the Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

Changes in Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions
Revenue and Support
General contributions
Noncash contributions of food
Fundraising income
Interest income
Total Revenue and Support
Net assets released from restrictions
Total Revenue, Gains, and Other Support Without Donor
Restrictions

Expenses
Program
General and Administration
Facilities
Fundraising
Total Expenses

(Decrease)in Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

Changes in Net Assets With Donor Restrictions
Temporarily restricted contributions
Net assets released from restrictions
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets With Donor
Restrictions

(Decrease) in Net Assets
Net Assets, Beginning of Year

Net Assets, End of Year

See accompanying notes and independent accountants' compilation report.

3

2018 2017
$ 48,379 45,489
893,580 949,881
35,373 47,149
40 41
977,372 1,042,560
18.525 21,043
995,897 1,063,603
1,018,437 1,029,970
25,901 23,228
15,880 20,537
9.564 13,555
1.069.782 1,087.290
(73.885) (23.687)
18,525 17,146
(18,525) (21,043)
0 (3.897)
(73,885) (27,584)
669.507 697,091

$ 595622 669,507
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Orting Food Bank
Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Cash received from general contributions
Cash received from restricted contributions
Cash received from fundraising income
Cash received from interest and other income
Cash disbursed for program expenses
Cash disbursed for general supporting expenses
Cash disbursed for facility expenses
Cash disbursed for fundraising expenses
Net Cash Flows (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Investing Activities
(Decrease) Increase in amounts held on behalf of others
Net Cash Flows (Used) Provided by Investing Activities

Net (Decrease) in Cash
Cash - January 1, 2018 and 2017

Cash - December 31, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017
$ 48379 $ 45,489
18,525 17,146
35,373 47,149
40 41
(2,402) (64,593)
(87,895) (20,439)
(15,880) (20,537)
(9.564) (13.555)
(13.424) (9.299)
(1.083) 1.213
(1.083) 1.213
(14,507) (8,086)
98.477 106.563

$ 83970 % 98477

Reconciliation of Changes in Net Assets to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Operating
Activities:
(Decrease) in Total Net Assets
Adjustments to Reconcile (Decrease) in Total Net
Assets to Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Decrease (Increase) in Food inventory
Increase in Accrued payroll and taxes
Total Adjustments

Net Cash Flows (Used) by Operating Activities

$ (73,885) $ (27,584)
27,840 27,894

32,575 (10,508)

46 899

60.461 18,285

See accompanying notes and independent accountants’ compilation report.
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$  (13424) $ (9.299)



Orting Food Bank
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

Note 1 - Nature of Activities and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Activities

Orting Food Bank is located in Orting, Washington and is organized for the purposes of collecting
food donations and distributing them to those in need. The Organization also provides referral
services as available to help people. The Organization was incorporated as a non-profit
corporation under the laws of the State of Washington in 2007 as a 501(c)(3) charity.

Basis of Accounting

The Organization presents financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. This basis of accounting involves the application of
accrual accounting; consequently, revenues and gains are recognized when earned, and
expenses and losses are recognized when incurred.

Basis of Presentation

The Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to two classes of net assets: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with
donor restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions are resources available to support operations. The only
limits on the use of this type of assets are the broad limits resulting from the nature of the
Organization, the environment in which it operates, the purposes specified in its coporate
documents and its application for tax-exempt status, and any limits resulting from contractual
agreements with creditors and others that are entered into in the course of its operations. It is
the policy of the Board of Directors of the Organization to review its plans for future property
improvements and acquisitions from time to time and to designate appropriate sums of net
assets without donor restrictions to assure adequate financing of such improvements and
acquisitions.

Net assets with donor restrictions are resources that are restricted by a donor for use for a
particular purpose or in a particular future period. The Organization's unspent contributions
are reported in this class if the donor limited their use.

Contributions of property and equipment or cash restricted to acquisition of propety and
equipment are reported as net assets with donor restrictions if the donor has restricted the use of
the property or equipment to a particular program. If donors specify a length of time over which
the property or equipment must be used, the restrictions expire evenly over the required period.
Absent that type of restriction for use, the Organization considers the restriction met when the
assets are placed in service.

When a donor's restriction is satisfied, either by using the resources in the manner specified by
the donor or by the passage of time, the expiration of the restriction is reported in the fnancial

statements by reclassifying the net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor
restrictions.

Net assets with permanent donor restrictions that do not expire are resources whose use is

See accountants' compilation report.
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Orting Food Bank
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

limited by donor-imposed restrictions that neither expire by being used in accordance with a
donor's restriction nor by the passage of time.

The Organization had no net assets with permanent donor restrictions at December 31, 2018 and
2017.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts
and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. Significant
estimates include useful lives of property and equipment and allocation of expenses to programs.

Cash

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash includes time deposits, certificates of deposit,
and all highly liquid debt instruments with original maturities of three months or less which are not
restricted by donors for capital or long-term purposes.

Buildings, Equipment, Improvements, and Depreciation

Buildings, equipment, and improvements purchased are stated at cost. Donated assets are stated
at fair market value at date of receipt. Donated services that enhance non-financial assets are
capitalized at fair market value at the date the services are provided. Depreciation is provided by
use of the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets ranging from
three to fifteen years for equipment and thirty nine years for buildings and improvements. All
acquisitions of property and equipment in excess of $5,000 and all expenditures for repairs,
maintenance, renewals, and betterments that materially prolong the useful lives of assets are
capitalized. Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 was $27,840
and $27,894, respectively.

Food Inventory

Inventory consists of donated food and is stated at $1.67 per pound and $1.73 per pound as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, as determined by the Washington Food Coalition. The
price per pound is determined by the average price of food listed in the consumer price index and
is revalued every two years.

Allocation of Costs to Programs and Supporting Activities

The Organization allocates personnel and facilities costs including depreciation to programs based
upon time spent directly on program activities as well as the square footage of facilities used for
program activities.

Federal Income Tax

The Organization is exempt from federal income tax under Internal Revenue Code Section
501(c)(3) except to the extent of unrelated business taxable income, if any.

See accountants' compilation report.
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Orting Food Bank
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

Contributions Received

Contributions received are recorded as without donor restrictions or with donor restrictions
depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions. Gifts received of long-lived
assets, in the absence of donor-imposed use restrictions, are reported as without donor
restrictions.

Contributions and donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in net assets with donor
restrictions, depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a
stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the Staternent
of Activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Donated Services and Materials

The Organization recognizes donated services that create or enhance nonfinancial assets.
Donated services that require specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing those
skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation are also recognized.

A large number of people have contributed significant amounts of time to the activities of the
Organization without compensation. The financial statements do not reflect the value of those
contributed services because, although clearly substantial, the services do not meet the
recognition criteria required by generally accepted accounting principles and no reliable basis
exists for determining an appropriate value for those services. Donated materials are incided in
the financial statements at their estimated fair market values as of the date of their receipt.

Note 2 - Change in Accounting Principle

On August 18, 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic
958)—Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The Organizaton has
adjusted the presentation of its financial statements accordingly, applying the changes

retrospectively to the comparative period presented. The new standards change the following
aspects of the Organization's financial statements:

« The temporarily restricted and permanently restricted net asset classes have been combined into
a single net asset class called net assets with donor restrictions.

« The unrestricted net asset class has been renamed net assets without donor restrictions.

« The financial statements include a new disclosure about liquidity and availability of resources
(Note 4).

Note 3 - Concentration of Credit Risk

The Organization maintains cash balances at financial institutions located in Washington.
Accounts at each institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to

See accountants’ compilation report.
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Orting Food Bank
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

$250,000 per institution. The organization did not have any balances on deposit in excess of
insurance limits as of the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.

Note 4 - Liquidity and Funds Available

The following reflects Orting Food Bank's financial assets as of the statement of financial position
date. The balance would be reduced by amounts not available for general use because of
contractual or donor-imposed restrictions within one year of the statement of financial position
date, if such restrictions were in place. Examples of amounts not available include amounts set
aside for long term purposes that could be drawn upon if the governing board approved that
action. As of the date of the financial statements, no funds were designated by the board as not
available for current operating purposes.

Financial assets: 2018 2017
Cash $ 83.970 $ 98.477
Financial assets, at year end $ 83,970 $ 98,477

Less those unavailable for general expenditures
within one year, due to:
Contractual or donor-imposed restrictions:

None 0 0
Board designations:
None 0 0
Financial assets available to meet cash needs for
general expenditures within one year $ 83,970 $ 98,477

The Organization is partially supported by restricted contributions. Because a donor's restriction
requires resources to be used in a particular manner or in a future period, the Organization must
maintain sufficient resources to meet those responsibilities to its donors. Thus, financial assets
may not be available for general expenditure within one year. As part of the Organization's iquidity
management, it has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its general
expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations come due. In addition, the Organization may invest
cash in excess of daily requirements in short-term investments. Occasionally, the board may
designate a portion of any operating surplus to a liquidity reserve, which was $0 as of December
31, 2018. In the event of an unanticipated liquidity need, the Organization could draw upon
$10,000 of it's available line of credit (as further discussed in Note 5).

Note 5 - Line of Credit

The Organization has a line of credit for $10,000 with a bank which is due on demand. As of
December 31, 2018 and 2017, the balance was $0 and $0, respectively. The line of credit bears
interest at an adjustable rate of the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (5.50% and 4.50% perannum
as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively) plus 2% and is secured by equipment and
fixtures.

See accountants' compilation report.
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Orting Food Bank
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

Note 6 - Contingency

On May 5, 2015 the Organization entered into an agreement with Pierce County, Washington,
through its Department of Community Connections to renovate and expand the property, which
currently houses the food bank facility, for $120,450. The Organization gave a promissory note to
Pierce County for the full amount and is not required to make payments on this note provided that
it complies with the following terms: the property must be used as a food bank for the benefit of
low income individuals, households, or areas of Pierce County, it will maintain safe and sanitary
facilities and will comply with all state and local building codes, licensing requirements, and other
requirements regarding the condition of the structure and the operation of the project in the
jurisdiction in which the facility is located, and it will keep any records and make any reports
relating to compliance with this covenant that the County may reasonably require. If the covenant
agreement is followed, the amount owed will be forgiven in full on June 30, 2045. As security for
the note, the Organization granted Pierce County a deed of trust on its building, including
improvements, and land, located in Orting, Washington. The deed of trust and secured promissory
note are subject to the restrictions previously described for a period of thirty years, beginning June
30, 2015. If the real property is sold, transferred, or otherwise conveyed or disposed of without
Pierce County's prior written consent, the County may declare the principal amount of the note due
immediately.  After the improvements were completed in 2015, the land and building
improvements have a book value of $457,268 and are recorded on the Statement of Financial
Position.

Note 7 - Subsequent Events
Management considered and found no subsequent events requiring disclosure in the financial

statements occurring after the balance sheet date until June 12, 2019, the date the financials were
available to be issued.

See accountants' compilation report.
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d 2018 Year to Date

Description Budget Budget | Change From
b 2018 2019 2018
Revenues
Beginning Net Cash & Investments
Individual Donations
Corporate/Agency Donations/Grants $90,000/  $80,000 -11.1%
Non-Cash Food Contributions $850,000] $850,000 0.00%
Total Fund Raising Income $35,000 $40,000 14.29%
Interest Income $50 $50 0.00%
Total Income| $975,050| $970,050 -0.51%
Total Cash Income| $125,050| $120,050 -4.00%
Expenses
Ending Fund Balance
Food Taken In and Delivered $850,000| $850,000 0.00%
Liability Insurance $6,000 $6,000 0.00%
Facility Repair and Maintenance $7,000 $5,000 -28.57%
Fund Raisers $12,000 $14,000 16.67%
Dues/Licenses $10 $20 100.00%
Office Expenses $2,000 $2,000 0.00%
Non-Food Supplies $500 $700 40.00%
Fuel (Van) $1,600 $1,700 6.25%
Van Maint & Repairs $500 $1,000 100.00%
Volunteer Recognition $1,400 $1,400 0.00%
Director Salary $52,800[ $49,600 -6.06%
Payroll Taxes $3,500 $3,472 -0.80%
Youth Food Programming (backpacks/Lunches) $12,000 $13,000 8.33%
Travel & Meetings - $1,000 $1,000 0.00%
Utilities $11,000] $12,600 14.55%
Accounting Expense $4,000 $6,000 50.00%
Miscellaneous $300 $0 -100.00%
City of Orting Utility Assistance $1,500 $1,500 0.00%
Milgard Grant Expenses (VAN) $0 $0 0.00%
Total Expense| $967,110| $968,992 0.19%
Total Cash Expense| $117,110| $118,992 1.61%
Cash Surplus/(Deficit) $7.940 $1,058

2019 Food Bank Budget
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CITY OF ORTING
WASHINGTON

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-20

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF ORTING,
WASHINGTON, DECLARING A PUBLIC PURPOSE AND
AUTHORIZING A CITY GRANT OF FUNDS TO ORTING
FOOD BANK.

WHEREAS, the City of Orting has adopted a Grant Policy (the “Policy”) to provide
grant funding to organizations which the City Council determines bring significant value to the
citizens of Orting and which serve valid municipal purposes; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Policy, grant funding is provided to organizations
upon application, evaluated by the City Council pursuant to the Policy on a case-by-case basis
and at various levels of support depending on the value the applicant provides to the community;
and

WHEREAS, the City received an application for grant funding from the Orting Food
Bank, a nonprofit corporation registered with the State of Washington; and

WHEREAS, the City Council’s Community & Government Affairs Committee reviewed
the application on September 5%, 2019, and recommended approval of the application; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the Orting Food Bank operates the Orting Food
Bank in Orting, which provides food, necessities and funds to help out low-income members of
the Orting Community at their hardest time of need; and

WHEREAS, the applicant has represented that this grant shall be used by the applicant
as follows: (1) $ to provide assistance with paying utility bills to restore water service
with the City of Orting and; (2) $ will be used for day to day operations of the Food
Bank, and a contract between the City and the applicant shall be executed to that effect prior to
the applicant’s receipt of the grant funding described herein; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that funding the aforementioned
organization/activity serves the valid municipal purposes of promoting community participation
and the health, safety and welfare of the community’s most vulnerable citizens and their
families; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the Orting Food Bank’s application meets the
requirements of the City’s Policy, and qualifies for grant funding as an organization serving valid
municipal purposes; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Orting, Washington, do resolve as
follows:



Section 1. Declaration of Public Purpese. The City Council declares that the Orting
Food Bank serves the valid municipal purposes described herein, and that the described intent for
the requested funding is instrumental in ensuring that the organization meets those purposes.

Section 2. Authorization for Sponsorship of Event. The City Council authorizes the
City’s grant funding Orting Food Bank, pursuant to the City’s Policy, in the amount of
$ . The Mayor is authorized to enter into a contract with the Orting Food Bank to
memorialize the City’s grant funding described herein.

Section 3. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force
immediately upon its passage.

PASSSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF ON
THE 25" DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2018.

CITY OF ORTING

Joshua Penner, Mayor
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:

Jane Montgomery, City Clerk, CMC

Approved as to form:

Charlotte Archer, City Attorney
Inslee, Best, Doezie & Ryder, P.S.



Grant Application-2020

) . ; . FOR CITY CLERKIUSE ONLY:
City of Orting - Office of the City Clerk

=4 PO Box 489-110 Train St., Orting, WA 98360 0
Phone: (360) 893-2219 ext.133 - Fax: (360) 893-6809 AUG 012013
www.cityoforting.org

‘T ‘/ FALTF ipy

= = KT I I R A e

Name of Organization: ODQQC\M’\\ x’w Cor\lreﬁ OQ (BV '\”mo\ UBI #'/q/)Z 069@33

Contact Person’s Name and Title: )f’ﬂ \’\_\_l)-éﬁ S Gu Qh \)P(‘ tXf(‘ Lli Ve O \re Cten?

Mailing Address: o B0Y (4D 5, C_)tZ’\ \T\ﬁ UL/A, ?83(0 O -

Phone: 2S5 3- 74D - (096 Email Address: _( J)Z1 e Av€én mCH ‘ . (o
3 -/ J

Amount Requested: $ 7 SOQ .OO

How the grant will be used (This information can be provided in a letter, attached to this application):

Sev ollartesd

Who does the grant serve (This information can be provided in a letter, attached to this application):

/D). /s/w Hope %LM‘Q@ &M:ﬁﬂzzﬂwﬁ WQ/f%\

What city facilities will you be requesting for usage with this grant (May not use facilities for fundraising):

7 5’/)/"/47?20 Neeeloct

ina must:

1. Submit one (1) original and one (1) electronic copy of this application, along with the following
attachments to the City no iater than August 1%, at 3:00pm, (for granis to be issued in the foliowing year).
Grants will be approved and distributed at the City's discretion.

1. Previous year’'s annual financial statement

2. Current year's budget

3. Proof of non-profit status, including but not limited to 501(c)(3) identification number.

4. Copy of Liability Insurance with rider for the City (rider may be provided after approval).

2. Arepresentative of the applicant shall attend the City Council's Community and Government Affairs
Committee Meeting to discuss the contents of the application.
The attachments that shall be included with the application include:

3. If selected, an authorized representative of the applicant shail execute a contract with the City
before the group shall receive the funding.

C\‘%W,Q..W/ STovu it 7 13/1/9

Signature of Autﬁtfrizga Repreéejntative of Applicant Date

Please return completed form and any additional information to: City of Orting — Attn: City Clerk 110 Train
St. SE, PO Box 489, Orting, WA 98360 For more information, please call (360)893-2219.



City of Orting Grant Application ~ 2019

The Gpportunity Center of Orting Inc. — “The Haven Teen Center”

How will the granit be used?

We are looking tc wse the Grant Funds for General Operations this coming year. We hope that our
continued success in our partnership with the City has proven our ability to manage previous year’s
funds in the most effective way. Under General Operations this gives us more flexibility to put the funds
where it's needed most. Primarily this will be used for wages and especially when certain programs call
for extra paid hours from our program director such as our summer camps which are all day, our
Christmas Giving Program which runs for two weeks, and several other after-hour events that always
require additions’ hours outside of trhe standard weekly hours given to that position. These events are
also random thrcughout the year sc it’s hard to nail down a specific budget for the excess items needed
or the excess iters that we go through especially a year in advance. This is why being under General
Operations works so well. Excess items would include supplies and food for the teens and volunteers
while they're attending the various events that we host. We often supply pizza & soda or sandwiches
and snacks so when the events turn out to be packed with 30+ kids it adds up fast. And during such
times we also enc us gaing through sur normal budgeted amount for all sorts of items like paper
towels, Lysc! wipes, anc garb g hags etc. This was especially true for this year since most of our events
had a higher tha~ norral turn out. And lastly, we have upgraded our website to leverage technology in
helping to retrieve anc manage parent consent forms which can now be filled out and electronically
signed onlina even thrsugh 2z smartphone. We also expanded our website to include more content for
upgraded pay system so parents and students can pay online for various things
ns, sainting classes and even donate if they wish to. This was huge for
us because all of « long overdue so we’re very happy to be more “current with the
times” in the eyes o ut most importantly more efficient as an organization. But yes,
they do come with 2 onzl monthly costs.

the community 2+
like Karate unifor!

Whe does the grantserve

100% of these funds serve the Orting Youth.



The Haven Teen Center

Photos of Events 2019

el larate Tournament




1:36 PM

07/31/19
Cash Basis

Opportunity Center of Orting, Inc

Profit & Loss
January through December 2018

Jan - Dec 18

Uradinary income/Expense
incoms
43430 - Direct Public Support

- Funaraising
- Program [ Event / Rental Income

47300 - Grants

16,902.81

4,211.47
24,628.60

42,945.19

¥ 3oods Sold
& - Card Service Fees

88,688.07

147.17

147.17

- Business Expenses
14 - Licenses & Permits
25 - Dues & Subscriptions
534 - Software

: 62900 - Business Expenses

s and Equipment

- Fa es Maintenance
Building improvements
- Property insurance

- Rent

- Garbage

5 - Internet / Phone

- U
- Water

1330C - Facilities and Equipment

- BProgram / Event Expenses
& - Prizes/ Souvenir / Favors
5 - Food {Prog/Event)

- Snack Bar

- Event Supplies

- Youtlh Garden Program

- Program Equipment
Exruinmernt Maintenance

E

5
5
-
=

24300 - Program ! Event Expenses

- Fundraising Supplies
- Operations
5« Faciiity Stafi Wages
Sestage, Mailing Service
;- Printing and Copying

.

Wiarketing & Advertising
e Auo EXpenses

Gther Types of Expenses

88,540.90

253.00
159.50
375.42

787.92

1,681.89
5,748.75
1,978.17
24,000.00
1,327.80
2,786.65
2,125.79
2,669.16

42,218.20

341.01
708.04
1,462.94
2,473.98
3,190.88
247.58
165.00

8,689.43
114.74

23,097.48
49.75
440.09
2,909.21
1,210.35
20.00

27,726.88

10.00
3.00
92.30

105.30

2,006.10
-0.02

Page 1



1:36 PM Opportunity Center of Orting, Inc

0713119 Profit & Loss
Cash Basis o o January through December 2018
Jan - Dec 18
81,548.55
6,992.35
. 6,992.35

Page 2



1:37 PM Opportunity Center of Orting, Inc

07/31/18 Balance Sheet
Cash Basis B As of December 31, 2018

Total Checking/Savings

nt Assets
fndeposited Funds

Dther &
120064

s Cilier Surrant Assets

Totat Curveni Assels

Key Bank Credit Card (6296)

-ant Liabilities
Sayroll Liabilities
Bales Tax Payable

Dec 31, 18

15,500.30
15,500.30

1,745.00
1,745.00
17,245.30

1,775.54
1,775.54

12,771.59
12,771.59
31,792.43

-60.42
-60.42

1,305.57
2,168.37

3,473.94
3,413.52
3,413.52

21,386.56
6,992.35

28,378.91

31,792.43

Page 1



TUZ1 AN
08/01/19
Cash Beasis

Opportunity Center ot Urting, Inc

2019 Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

43400 - Direct Public Support
43418 - Corporate / Org Contributions
43456 - Individual Donations
423476 - Summer Camp Donations

Totzi 43400 - Direct Public Support

43608 - Fundraising

47280 - Program / Event / Rental Income

7254 - Rental Income

B

47252 - Snack Bar Donations
47254 - Karate Program Donations

Totzi 47200 - Program / Event/ Rental Income

i - Grants

47320 - Violence Provention Grant

- City of Orting Grant

ifledina Foundation

7385 « Greater Tacoma Comm Foundation

% - Pierse Cty - Anti-Tobacco Grant

Gross Profit

1 - Business Expenses
- Licenses & Permits

5 - Dues & Subscriptions

35 - Soiftware

180 - Contract Services

- Builging improvements

- Property Insurance

Tocm: 82800 - Fasllities and Equipment

| Event Expenses

TOTAL

6,639.51
2,450.00
1,920.00
100051
4,106.00
0.00
14,880.00
859.81
1,459.00
17,198.81
0.00
16,400.00
10,000.00
7,500.00
7,500.00
5,000.00
46,400.00
78,714.32
0.00
175.41
175.41

78,5638.91

100.00
315.06
507.38
922.44
0.00
659.00
T 650.00
0.00
93.68
1,317.13
2,157.96
24,000.00
1,324.63
2,523.86
2,095.24
2,930.69

36,443.19
0.00

Page 1 of 2



L0E27 Qb Opportunity Center of Orting, Inc

08/01/1¢

Cash Basis 2019 BUdget

BLE4Y - Prizes! Souvenir [ Favors
34515 - Food {Prog/Event)

2 - ProgiEvent Staff
3 - Event Supplies

- Kerats Program

3 - Program: Equipment

znt Maintenance

- Pregram | Event Expenses

i - Fundraising Supplies

- Cinerations

- Facility Staff Wages

ng & Advertising

- Gpsrations

- Orther Tyises of Expenses

45425 - Businsss License/ Fees

- Types of Expenses

senses

Met Srdinary ingoens
Net Income

TOTAL

2,296.49
1,617.34
663.74
50.00
1,546.63
1,948.76
1,644.27
404.41
10,071.64
984.81
0.00
20,271.39
2,187.34
1,000.29
23,459.02
0.00
20.00
T 2000
5.922.96

78,483.06

55.85
55.85

Page 2 of 2



INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
P, O. BOX 2508
CINCINNATI, OH 45201

Employer Identification Number:

pate:  MAR 78 2005 91-2112227

DIN:
17053071719025
OPPORTUNITY CENTER OF ORTING INC Contact Person:
PO BOX 1423 TERRY KAYE ID# 31038
ORTING, WA 98360-1423 Contact Telephone Number:

(877) 829-5500
Public Charity Status:
170 (k) {1} (&) (vi)

Dear Applicant:

our letter dated august 7, 2001, stated you would be exempt from Federal
income tax under section 501 (c) (3} of the Internal Revenue Code, and you would
be treated as a public charity, rather than as a private foundation, during
an advance ruling period.

Baged on the information you submitted, -you are classified as a public charity
under the Code section listed in the heading of this letter. Since your
exempt Status was not under consideration, you continue to be clagsified as
an organization exempt from Federal income tax under section 501{c) (3) of the
Code.

Publication 557, Tax-Exempt Status for Your Organization, provides detailed
information about your rights and responsibilities as an exempt organization.
You may request a copy by calling the toll-free number for forms,

(800) B29-3676. Information is also available on our Internet Web Site at
WWwW.1lrs.gov.

If you have general questions about exempt organizations, please call our
toll-free number shown in the heading between §:30 a.m. - 5:30 p.m. Fastern
time.
Please keep this letter in your permanent records.
Sincerely yours,
Y
g
lois G. Lerner

Director, Exempt Organizations
Rulings and Agreements

Letter 1050 (DO/Cq)
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DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

RTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 3/112019

THIS CERTIF:G AT
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT A
BELOW. THIS CERTIEH

~

TER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

GE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

55 THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

n ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisionsor be endorsed.

& and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
=te holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER CONACT Ryan Wiita
W Insurance Gre. DHONE : (253)382-2130 [ (ARG, no: (800) 496-6054
1007 Pacific Avaiue 'EEVBF-ESS: ryan@w-ins.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Tacoma o WA 98402 INSURER A: PHILADELPHIA IND INS CO 18058
INSURED INSURER B :
INSURER C :
INSURER D
INSURER E :
) WA 98360 INSURER F :
_\.OVERAG:—S S ATE RUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY "FAT T
INDICATED. NC*
CERTIFICATE
EXCLUSIONS

E

E POLICIES OF

SURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
ENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
N, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
CIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

SUSK| POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP

‘] LTR f ] POLICY NUMBER (MMIDDIYYYY) | (MMDDIYYYY) LTS
i X EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
8 DAMAGE U RENTED
: | PREMISES (Ea occurrence) | $ 100,000
'. ' MED EXP (Any one person) |$ 5,000
; A ! PHPK1855891 09/11/2018 | 09/11/2019 |PERSONAL & ADV INJURY |$ 1,000,000
| |GEN'L AGGRZG ; GENERAL AGGREGATE __|$ 2,000,000
| Xlroucy . i PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $ 2,000,000
] OTHER: l : ®
] - - L= COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
i AUTOMOBILS - (Ea accident) $
i ANY AUTC BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
%VT%ESDQ L e BODILY INJURY (Per acciden | $
i D) s
i AUTOS o7 | {Per accident)
] ‘ $
UMERE EACH OCCURRENCE 3$
§ AGGREGATE $
t DED $
i WORKERS CC PER OTr:
i T et STATUTE I l ER

ANY PRCPRIE ) E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $

OFFICER/MER i
i (Mandatcry ir: E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| §
1 If yes, describe ..
i DESCRIPTION E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | $
I
i

EDESCRIPTICN OF C=ims™

T (ACORE 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
Ryan Wiifo

ACORD 25 (20 ¢

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. Ali rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




CITY OF ORTING
WASHINGTON

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-21

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF ORTING,
WASHINGTON, DECLARING A PUBLIC PURPOSE AND
AUTHORIZING A CITY GRANT OF FUNDS TO
OPPORTUNITY CENTER OF ORTING.

WHEREAS, the City of Orting has adopted a Grant Policy (the “Policy”) to provide
grant funding to organizations which the City Council determines bring significant value to the
citizens of Orting and which serve valid municipal purposes; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Policy, grant funding is provided to organizations
upon application, evaluated by the City Council pursuant to the Policy on a case-by-case basis
and at various levels of support depending on the value the applicant provides to the community;
and

WHEREAS, the City received an application for grant funding from Opportunity Center
of Orting, a nonprofit corporation registered with the State of Washington; and

WHEREAS, the City Council’s Community & Government Affairs Committee reviewed
the application on September 5, 2018, and recommended approval of the application; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the Opportunity Center of Orting operates the
Haven Teen Center in Orting, whose mission is “To empower Orting’s to become independent,
successful, contributing members of the community,” and who offers teens in the community a
variety of activities and events, free classes and volunteer opportunities; and

WHEREAS, applicant has represented that this grant shall be used by the applicant for
the salary of a program director at the Haven Teen Center, and a contract between the City and
the applicant shall be executed to that effect prior to the applicant’s receipt of the grant funding
described herein; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that funding the aforementioned
organization/activity promotes community participation and the health, safety and welfare of the
community’s teens and their families, and serves the valid municipal purposes of providing an
opportunity to strengthen the City’s commitment to teens and their families, and the applicant
seeks to engage the entire community by promoting volunteerism, charity, and community
participation; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the Opportunity Center of Orting’s application
meets the requirements of the City’s Policy, and qualifies for grant funding as an organization
serving valid municipal purposes; and



NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Orting, Washington, do resolve as
follows:

Section 1. Declaration of Public Purpose. The City Council declares that the
Opportunity Center of Orting’s Haven Teen Center serves the valid municipal purposes
described herein, and a program director is instrumental in ensuring that the organization meets
those purposes.

Section 2. Authorization for Sponsorship of Event. The City Council authorizes the
City’s grant funding Opportunity Center of Orting, pursuant to the City’s Policy, in the amount
of § . The Mayor is authorized to enter into a contract with the Opportunity Center of
Orting to memorialize the City’s grant funding described herein.

Section 3. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force
immediately upon its passage.

PASSSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF ON
THE 25™ DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2019.

CITY OF ORTING

Joshua Penner, Mayor
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:

Jane Montgomery, City Clerk, CMC

Approved as to form:

Charlotte Archer, City Attorney
Inslee, Best, Doezie & Ryder, P.S.



Grant APPhcathH_ FOR CITY CLERK USE ONLY:
City of Orting - Office of the City Clerk RECEIVED BY
PO Box 489-110 Train St., Orting, WA 98360 CITY CLERK
JPhone: (360) 893-2219 ext.133 - Fax: (360) 893-6809 ,
www.cityoforting.org JUL 24: ng
CITY OF ORTING
Budget Year: 2020

Name of Organization:_Orting Valley Senior Center Organization UBI #: 601 178872

Contact Person’s Name and Title: _Staci Guirsch - Director

Mailing Address: _P.O. Box 104

Phone: (360) 893-5827 Email Address: seniorcenter@orting.wednet.edu

Amount Requested: $_15.000.00

How the City Grant will be used (This information can be provided in a letter, attached to this application):

SEE ATTACHED LETTER

Who does the grant serve (This information can be provided in a letter, attached to this application).

SEE ATTACHED LETTER

What City Facilities will you be requesting for usage with this grant. (May not use facilities for fundraising)

Multi Purpose Center

il i rants e Citv of Ortinag m :

- Submit one (1) original and one (1) electronic copy of this application, along with the folowing
attachments, to the City no later than August 1%, at 3:00pm, (for grants to be issued in the fallowing
year).

The attachments that shall be included with the application include:
1. Previous year's annual financial statement
2. Current year's budget

3. Proof of non-profit status, including but not limited to 501(c) (3) identification number.
4. Copy of Liability Insurance with rider for the City. (may be provided after approval)

- Arepresentative of the applicant shall attend the City Council's Community and GovernmentAffairs
Committee Meeting to discuss the contents of the application.

- If selected, an authorized representative of the applicant shall execute a contract with the City

before the grgup shall receive the funding. .
St e s I 1, 24204

Signature of Authorized Representative of Applicant Date

Please return completed form and any additional information to:
City of Orting - Attn: City Clerk 110 Train St. SE, PO Box 489, Orting, WA 98360 360.893.2219




The Orting Valley Senior Center Organization plans on using the requested funds for two separate
programs. Our Senior Mealsite Program and our S.A.LL. Program (Stay Active & Independent for Life).

Senior Mealsite Program: We have 121 registered seniors and we provide hot, homemade lunches 5 days a
week with a full salad bar for added healthy options. Lunch is provided to seniors based on a suggested
donation . Many seniors are on an extremely limited income and are given a hot meal regardless of ability to
pay. For many of our seniors this is their only hot meal of the day as their funds are limited and some cannot
cook for themselves. In 2018 the Meal program provided 2486 meals and with the increase in membership just
in the first half of 2019 we anticipate providing approximately 3500 meals in 2020. Pierce County will continue
to fund half of our Mealsite Program for Seniors for 2020. Our projected budget for 2020 is $18,000.00 We are
requesting $9,000.00 to cover the half that Pierce County does not.

S.A.LL.: Stay Active and Independent for Life is a strength and fitness program for adults 60 and older.
Performing exercises that improve strength, balance and fitness is the single most important activity adults can
do to stay active and reduce their chances of falling. The entire curriculum of activities in the Stay Active and
Independent for Life (SAIL) program can help improve strength and balance, if done regularly. Our S.A.LL.
instructors Lyle & Taffy Melton are independent contractors that are licensed and insured with CPR and Basic
First Aid training certificates. Our previous instructor class held approximately 7 — 10 individuals but with the
new instructors assisting with marketing the program and being such diligent, knowledgeable instuctors, they
have grown the class with a rooster of 24 participants that continues to grow. The class meets 3 tines a week at
the Multi Purpose Center and is offered to participants free of charge to help encourage healthy living. We are
requesting $6,000.00 to cover that cost of our instructors fees.

The City of Orting grant serves all seniors in the community and outlying areas of Orting 60 and over.
No seniors are turned away from services regardless of ability to pay. The Senior Center is a day facility with its
primary responsibility being to enhance the quality of life for our seniors by providing meals, social activities,
health and educational training. The Senior Center also provides an opportunity for elderly and disabled to
maintain an independent lifestyle. This is all accomplished through service agency relationships, board
members, staff and many volunteers.



1:50 PM

07/19/19
Cash Basis

Orting Senior Center

Profit & Loss
January through December 2018

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
Holiday Bazzar Vendor Table
Donations

FredMeyerRewards
BakeSale

Van Rider Fee
HCPC
AmazonSmile
Holiday Bazaar
Thanksgiving Feast
Holiday Feast

Food Bank

AA

mens coffee group
Coffee

Ctr. Use-Donations
Other Organizations
United Way
Donations - Other

Total Donations

Fundraisers

Easter Raffle
Valentine Raffle
ValentineHearts
Thanksgiving Raffle
Fall Dinner Raffle
Spring Bazaar Raffie
Spring Bazaar Plants
Spring Bazaar Kitchen
Christmas Dinner
Pumpkinfest
Sponsorships for Fall Dinner En
Fall Dinner

Honey

License Plates
Christmas Bazaar
Dinner Tickets
Monthly Raffle

Total Fundraisers

Grants

City of Orting
Fred Meyer
Pierce County ALT

Total Grants

Other Activities

Refunds

Birthday Celebrations
Hall Rental Income
Lunches

Member Dues

Total Other Activities
Total Income
Gross Profit

Expense
Fundraiser Expense

Christmas Bazaar
Honey

Jan - Dec 18

20.05
863.71
158.50
850.00
24.43
1,478.37
40.00
615.00
500.16
780.00
1,201.95
385.42
4,342.04
420.69
156.00

32.00

415.00

11,877.32

31.00
281.00
427.00
114.00

1,240.00
266.00
2,200.00
789.00
333.00
451.00
2,265.46
211.64
912.00
15.00
50.00
2,700.00
449.00

12,735.10

13,000.00
37.59
65,567.44

78,605.03

687.82
51.75
60.00

22,442.80
2,934.00

26,166.37

129,798.82

129,798.82

89.94
508.00

Page 1



1:50 PM

07/19/19
Cash Basis

Orting Senior Center

Profit & Loss
January through December 2018

Fall Dinner

Plant Sale/Spring Bazaar
Fundraiser Expense - Other

Total Fundraiser Expense

Operating Expenses
BakeSale
Transportation
Food Bank
Party Supplies
Postage
Repair & Maintenance
Equipment
Fall Dinner
Background Checks
Chocolate Stroll
Food Card

Advertising & Promotion

Donations
Bank Charges
Bookkeeper
Center Ins. 1 yr.

Jan - Dec 18

350.00
10.00
39.77

Fed. Payroll Tax Qtr.
Food Expense

Food
Meat

Food Expense - Other

Total Food Expense

Hall Rental

Ind. Contractor

Misc. Center

Non-Profit License
Office Expense
Salaries & Wages

Supplies
Telephone
Rent

Operating Expenses - Other

997.71

338.50
5,717.60
84.08
183.04
188.20
1,7560.05
12,825.65
1,249.68
96.00
79.81
4,107.61
318.82
51.00
34.00
1,427.00
897.82
15,956.14

1,744.78
723.57
9,286.55

11,754.90

70.00
4,965.00
695.17
120.00
6,235.02
57,249.28
7,441.24
1,627.43
4,080.00
5,518.81

Total Operating Expenses

Total Expense
Net Ordinary Income

Other Income/Expense
Other Income
Interest Income

Total Other Income

Other Expense
Voided checks

Total Other Expense
Net Other Income

Net Income

145,061.85

146,059.56

-16,260.74

8.87

8.87

0.00

0.00

8.87

-16,251.87

Page 2



Expenses:

Rent

Phone/Wifi

Salaries

Senior Meal Program Food
Office/Center Supplies
Equipment Repair/Replacement
Pierce Transit Van Lease/Usage
Insurance

Professional Services
Nutritionist
Licenses/Registrations

SAIL Instructor

Payroll Taxes
Advertising/Communication
Speakers/Instructors

Misc. Expenses

2019 Projected Budget
Orting Valley Senior Center

$4,080.00
$1885.00
$70,000.00
$14,000.00
$5,000.00
$5,000.00
$7,200.00
$1,200.00
$1,900.00
$1,200.00
$300.00
$6,500.00
$16,000.00
$1,200.00
$1,500.00
$5,000.00

Income:

Pierce County

City of Orting

Health Care Providers Council
Meal Donations

Men’s Coffee Group

AA Group

Amazon Smiles

Member Dues

Misc. Donations

Fundraisers

Puyallup Tribe Grant
Muckleshoot Tribe Grant (applied)
Medina Foundation (applied)
Walmart (applied)

Total Projec’éed Expenses _ $141,96“5.00

$47,141.00
© $13,000.00
$850.00
$22,000.00
$1,500.00
$800.00
$100.00
$3,500.00
$7,000.00
$15,000.00
$7,200.00
$5,000.00
$15,000.00
$5,000.00

Total Projected Income $143,091.00



Expenses:

Rent

Phone/Wifi

Salaries

Senior Meal Program Food
Office/Center Supplies
Equipment Repair/Replacement
Pierce Transit Van Lease/Usage
Insurance

Professional Services
Nutritionist
Licenses/Registrations

SAIL Instructor

Payroll Taxes
Advertising/Communication
Speakers/Instructors

Misc. Expenses

2020 Projected Budget
Orting Valley Senior Center

$4,080.00
$1,885.00
$92,000.00
$18,000.00
$5,000.00
$5,000.00
$7,200.00
$1,200.00
$1,900.00
$1,200.00
$300.00
$6,500.00
$16,000.00
$1,200.00
$1,500.00
$5,000.00

income:

Pierce County (applied TBD)
City of Orting

Health Care Providers Council
Meal Donations

Men’s Coffee Group

AA Group

Amazon Smiles

Member Dues

Misc. Donations
Fundraisers

Puyallup Tribe Grant
Muckleshoot Tribe Grant
Medina Foundation
Walmart

United Way

Tulalip Tribe

Total Projected Expenses Slé7,965.00

$52,000.00
$15,000.00
$850.00
$24,000.00
$1,500.00
$800.00
$500.00
$3,500.00
$12,000.00
$17,000.00
$7,200.00
$5,000.00
$15,000.00
$5,000.00
$1500.00
$6,500.00

Total Projected Income $167,350.00



i, Ralph Munro, Secretary of State of the §

hereby issue this

tate of Washington and custodian of its seal,

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION ,'

a Washington

fo

ORTING SENIOR CENTER ORGANIZATION

NonProfit

corporalion. Articles of Incorporation were

liled for record in this olfice on the date ié\dicated below.

U. B. I.Number:

601 178 872-

Dale: May 5, 1989

Given under my hand at_ld fhe seal of the Stale
of Washington, at Olympia, the Stale Capilol,

OMUD

Ralph :Munro, Secre(éry of Stale .

- 2-412923-1
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Dear Taxpaver:

In reply refer to: 6077967774
Sep. 06, 2017 LTR G168C 0
96-3101716 000000 00
0022388
BODC: TE

OGDEN UT 84201-0029

|
ORTING SENIOR CENTER DRGANIZATIEN
SENIDR CENTER
PO BOX 104 |
ORTING WA _98360-0104

Emplover ID Number: 94—3101716
Form 990 required: VYes ‘

This is in response to vour reqﬁest dated Aug. 07, 2017, regérdMg
vour tax-exempt status. 5

We issued vou a determination létter in June 1993, recognizing
vou as tax-exempt under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(c)
(33. .

Our records also indicate vou're not a private foundation aszdeﬁned
under IRC Section 5D9(a) because vou're described in IRC Sections
509(a) (1) and 170(b) (1)CA)(vi). |

Donors can deduct contributions they make to vou as provided in IRC
Section 170. You're also qualifigd to receive tax deductible bequests,

legacies, devises, transfers, or: gifts under IRC Sections 2055, 2106,
and 2522, i

In the heading of this letter, w% indicated whether vou must fih an

annual information return. If a return is required, you must file Form
990, 990-EZ, 990-N, or 990-PF by|the 15th day of the fifth month after
the end of vour annual accounting period. IRC Section 6033(j) provides
that, if you don't file a requir?d annual information return or notice
for three consecutive years, vour exempt status will be automatically

revoked on the filing due date of the third required return or notice.

For tax forms, instructions, andépublicatiuns, visit www.irs.govor
call 1-800-TAX~FORM (1-800-829-3676) ..

If you have guestiens, call 1-877-829-5500 between 8 a.m. and 5 p.m.,
local time, Monday through Fridag (Alaska and Hawaii follow Pacific

Time) .




DATE (MM/DD/YYYY}

o~
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 0112312019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provislons or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. Astatement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER RN ST Eloise Patton
Cross Insurance Agency PHONE . 263:475:5313 Rk
8031 Pacific Ave ek os: elolsg@crossinsuranceagency.com
Tacoma, WA 98408 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
wsurera:  Liberty Mutual Insurance 24074
MR Orting Senior Center Organization INSURERE :
Jenny L Topp INSURER €
PO Box 104 INSURER D+
Orting, WA 98360 INSHRERLE
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: _00000000-191539 REVISION NUMBER: 2

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TOWHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN 1S SUBJECT TO ALL THETERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL SUBR POLICYEFF POLICY EXP
LR TYPE OF INSURANCE INED_ WD POLICY NUMBER (A ONTve!_ IO r) LIMITS
A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY BLO57775485 0512412018 05/24/2020 EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000
DAMAGE TO.RENTED Y |
CLAIMSMADE X OCCUR PREMISES (kacccurencei 5 1,000,000
MED EXP(Any o pargon) 8§ 15,000
personaL s aDviNJURY 8 1,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES FER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
X poLtcy PRO: Loc ' PRODUGTS-CoMPIOPAGG § 2,000,000
OTHER $
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY Féglg%tigg‘?lNgm.Ltmrr 5
' ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person}  $
OWNED SCHEDULED ‘a8e i
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS B_ODILY INJURY (Per accident) $§
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
AUTOSONLY . AUTOS ONLY (Peraccideny.
s
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR ' EACH QCCURRENCE 5
= EXGESSLIAG ____ CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
i DED . BETENTIONS $
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER GIH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY o . STATUTE . ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE [ £ L EACH ACCIDENT H
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED? i NIA
{Mandatory In NH} — £ L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
|f y&s, desernibe uhdar ) o
BESCRIPTION OF DEERATIONS below E L DISEASE:-- POLICY LIMIT

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

City of Orting ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
110 Train St SW
Orting, WA 98360 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Soicm. R o

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. Allrights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

Printed by EMP on July 23,2019 at 03:08PM




CITY OF ORTING
WASHINGTON

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-23

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF ORTING,
WASHINGTON, DECLARING A PUBLIC PURPOSE AND
AUTHORIZING A CITY GRANT OF FUNDS TO ORTING
SENIOR CENTER ORGANIZATION.

WHEREAS, the City of Orting has adopted a Grant Policy (the “Policy”) to provide
grant funding to organizations which the City Council determines bring significant value to the
citizens of Orting and which serve valid municipal purposes; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Policy, grant funding is provided to organizations
upon application, evaluated by the City Council pursuant to the Policy on a case-by-case basis
and at various levels of support depending on the value the applicant provides to the community;
and

WHEREAS, the City received an application for grant funding from the Orting Senior
Center Organization, a nonprofit corporation registered with the State of Washington; and

WHEREAS, the City Council’s Community & Government Affairs Committee reviewed
the application on September 5%, 2019, and recommended approval of the application; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the Orting Senior Center Organization operates
the Orting Senior Center in Orting, which offers events, activities, luncheons, and other services
for the Orting Senior Citizens in the Orting Community; and

WHEREAS, applicant has represented that this grant shall be used by the applicant for
the maintenance and updating of programs and services so as to ensure they run smoothly and
efficiently, and a contract between the City and the applicant shall be executed to that effect prior
to the applicant’s receipt of the grant funding described herein; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that funding the aforementioned
organization/activity promotes community participation and the health, safety and welfare of the
community’s senior citizens and their families, and serves the valid municipal purposes of
providing an opportunity to strengthen the City’s commitment to seniors and their families, and
the applicant seeks to engage the entire community by promoting volunteerism, charity, and
community participation; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the Orting Senior Center Organization’s
application meets the requirements of the City’s Policy, and qualifies for grant funding as an
organization serving valid municipal purposes; and



NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Orting, Washington, do resolve as
follows:

Section 1. Declaration of Public Purpose. The City Council declares that the Orting
Senior Center Organization and its Orting Senior Center serve the valid municipal purposes
described herein, and that the described intent for the requested funding is instrumental in
ensuring that the organization meets those purposes.

Section 2. Authorization for Sponsorship of Event. The City Council authorizes the
City’s grant funding Orting Senior Center Organization, pursuant to the City’s Policy, in the
amount of $ . The Mayor is authorized to enter into a contract with the Orting Senior
Center Organization to memorialize the City’s grant funding described herein.

Section 3. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force
immediately upon its passage.

PASSSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF ON
THE 25% DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2019.

CITY OF ORTING

Joshua Penner, Mayor
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:

Jane Montgomery, City Clerk, CMC

Approved as to form:

Charlotte Archer, City Attorney
Inslee, Best, Doezie & Ryder, P.S.



0 . MDY
Grant Application-2020 FOR CITY CLERK USE ONLY:

City of Orting - Office of the City Clerk
- PO Box 489-110 Train St., Orting, WA 98360
Phone: (360) 893-2219 ext. 133 - Fax: (360) 893-6809
www.cityoforting.org

Name of Organization.___ RECOVERY CAFE ORTING upl# 604 210 943

Contact Person’s Name and Title: DENNIS PASCHKE , EXECUTIVE DIRECTR

Mailing Address: {3 VARNE RAE SE, ORTING, WA , 98360

Phone: - 360 108 -80I3 _ Email Address: dpasch @ | @ gmal cm
153 4ss- oqos 7
Amount Requested: $

How the grant will be used (This information can be provided in a letter, attached to this application):

Orank 40;4,&41 wld fot poed i /w’.zg p@, for ;f’a//,( costt for
Cofy Momsgq'xy L alp t supont ey /mawfzmu for flose
sm% ‘with add . Fan "/Imz,, Q_oun_indmbuo are honadys
Wi St 2-Y mtdy o wid f ™ 30 mumibus.
W on on ome 3ol ytar L t4uat a grat 3 & 5.

Who does the grant serve (This information can be provided in a letter, attached to this application):

Thoye stderny holpp ham dramms, addwisen U imopdal htathh .

What city facilities wiill you be requesting for usage with this grant (May not use facilities for fundraising)

N/A

All aroups seekina arants from the Citv of Orting must;

i Submit one (1) original and one (1) electronic copy of this application, along with the following
atiachments to the City no later than August 1!, at 3 0Cpm, (for grants to be issued in the jollowing year).
Grants will be approved and distributed at the City’s discretion.

1. Previous year's annual financial statement

2. Current year's budget

3. Proof of non-profit status, including but not limited to 501(c)(3) identification number.

4. Copy of Liability Insurance with rider for the City (rider may be provided after approval).

2. Arepresentative of the applicant shall attend the City Council's Community and Government Affairs
Committee Meeting to discuss the contents of the application.
The attachments that shall be included with the application include:

3. If selected, an authorized representative of the applicant shall execute a contract with the City
before the group shall receive the funding.

Mg% 1 o i1 19 .

Signature of Authorized Representative of Applicant Date

Please return completed form and any additional information to: City of Orting — Attn: City Clerk 110 Train
St. SE, PO Box 489, Orting, WA 98360 For more information, please call (360)893-2219.
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Recovery Café Orting 2018
Budget

INCOME (ail sources)
Grant sourcing Funds

City of Orting
Pierce County
Tulalip Tribal
Tacoma Foundation
Korum For Kids
Puyaliup Tribes
Molina HC

RCN

Benefit Concert
TOTAL

Operating EXPENSE

RCN Licence Fee

Wages (Café Manager)
Benefits (Health Care stipend)
Rent

Telephone {(Vonage)

Wi-Fi

Internet - Comcast

Supplies (Office and Kitchen)
Software - QuickBooks
Utilities (PSE, Gas)

Food gaps
training/travel/resources
Maintenance

Pass through Vouchers
Website

Fundraising expenses

TOTAL

Capital EXPENSE
LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS
HDTV for Education
Copier
Website design
Computers (2)
Leashold Improvements
Total

2018 Total Operating and Capital

Total
Funding

$ 7,500
$ 25,000
$ 3,000
$ a
$ 5000
$ -
$ 5,000
$ 50,000
$ 8,000
$ 103,500

2018 Total
Expense
S 5,000
$ 30,000
S 3,600
$ 600
S 375
S 300
S 500
S 1,500
S 374
S 800
S 2,100
S 2,400
S 600
S 5,700
S 1,800
) 1,600
S 64,974

700
1,200
1,500
3,000

30,000
36,400

W Wwn W

101,374
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Recovery Café Orting 2019
Budget

INCOME (all sources)
Grant sourcing Funds

City of Orting

Pierce County

Tulalip Tribal

Korum For Kids

Puyallup Tribes

Molina HC

DSHS

RCN

Benefit Concert

TOTAL

Operating EXPENSE

RCN Licence Fee

Salary 1/2 year (Executive Director)
Wages (Café Manager)
Benefits (Health Care stipend)
Rent

Telephone {Vonage)

Wi-Fi

Internet - Comcast

Supplies (Office and Kitchen)
Software - QuickBooks
Utilities (PSE, Gas)

Food gaps
training/travel/resources
Maintenance

Pass through Vouchers
Website

Fundraising expenses

TOTAL

Total Funding

10,000
25,000

3,000

5,000

0

7,500

3,000

40,000

7,500

$ 101,000

2019 Total
Expense

5,000
32,000
30,000
3,600
4,400
1,500
1,200
1,500
2,400
374
2,400
2,100
2,400
600
5,700
1,800
4,500
S 101,474



INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE
P. 0. BOX 2508
CINCINNATI, OH 45201

Date: JU N 2 5 2019

RECOVERY CAFE ORTING

C/0 DENNIS PASCHKE

PO BOX 1867 113 VARNER AVE SE
ORTING, WA 98360

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

Employer Identification Number:
83-2459466
DLN:

17053079301009
Contact Person:

CYNTHIA A CLARK ID# 17264
Contact Telephone Number:

(877) 829-5500

Accounting Period Ending:
December 31

Public Charity Status:
170(b) (1) (A) (vi)

Form 990/990-EZ/990-N Required:
Yes

... Effective Date. of Exemption:

November 1, 2018

Contribution Deductibility:
Yes

Addendum Applies:
No

Dear Applicant:

We're pleased to tell you we determined you're exempt from federal income tax
under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(c)(3). Donors can deduct
contributions they make to you under IRC Section 170. You're also qualified
to receive tax deductible bequests, devises, transfers or gifts under
Section 2055, 2106, or 2522. This letter could help resolve questions on your
exempt status. Please keep it for your records.

Organizations exempt under IRC Section 501(c)(3) are further classified as
either public charities or private foundations. We determined you're a public
charity under the IRC Section listed at the top of this letter.

If we indicated at the top of this letter that you're required to file Form
990/990-EZ/990-N, our records show you're required to file an annual
information return (Form 990 or Form 990-EZ) or electronic notice (Form 990 -N,
the e-Postcard). If you don‘t file a required return or notice for three
consecutive years, your exempt status will be automatically revoked.

If we indicated at the top of this letter that an addendum applies, the
enclosed addendum is an integral part of this letter.

For important information about your responsibilities as a tax-exempt
organization, go to WWww.irs.gov/charities. Enter “4221-PC" in the search par
to view Publication 4221-PC, Compliance Guide for 501(c)(3) Public Charities,
which describes your recordkeeping, reporting, and disclosure requirements.

Letter 947
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
0717/2019

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER CONIACT
NAME:
Marsh USA, Inc. ) FPHONE | FAX
1301 5th Avenue, 1Smte 1900 %A bll.o. Ext): {AJC No):
Seattle, WA 9810 .
Attn' Van Vong (206) 214-3024 ADDRESS:
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

§34035-STND-GU-19-20 220 INSURER A : Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company 18058
INSURED .
Pacific Northwest Annual Conference INSURER B ;
The United Methodist Church INSURER C :
Atin: Brant Henshaw .
PO Box 13650 INSURERD :
Des Moines, WA 98198 INSURERE :

INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: SEA-003622445-01 REVISION NUMBER: 3

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL|SUER| POLICY EFF_| POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WVD POLICY NUMBER (MM/DDIYYYY) | (MM/DDIYYYY) LMITS
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY X PHPK1924328 01/01/2019 01/01/2020 EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
l—' DAMAGE TO RENTED
CLAIMS-MADE | X | OCCUR PREMISES (Ea occurrence) | $ 300,000
X | WA STOP GAP MED EXP (Any one person) | § 5,000
$1,000,000 LIMIT PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 3,000,000
POLICY D s Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP GG | § 3,000,000
OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY (Ea accident) $
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
OWNED SCHEDULED ;
TN P BODILY INJURY (Per accdent)| $
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)
$
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
pep | | ReTenTIONS $
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY - StArure | | &
ANYPROPRIETOR/IPARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $
OFFICER/MEMBEREXCLUDED? D N/A
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| §
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICYLMIT | $

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedul

may be attached if more space is required)

RE: Dec #220 - Orting United Methodist Church as Named Insured

ministry of the church operations.

The City of Orting is included as additional insured where requiréd by written contract as respects grant funding for operations of the Orting United Methodist Church including Recovery Cafe Orting Valley as a

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

City of Orting

110 Train Street SE
PO Box 489

Orting, WA 98360

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIESBE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WIL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
of Marsh USA Inc.

Van H. Vong LT ST

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION. Ali rights reserved.

The ACORD hame and logo are registered marks of ACORD




CITY OF ORTING
WASHINGTON

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-22

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF ORTING,
WASHINGTON, DECLARING A PUBLIC PURPOSE AND
AUTHORIZING A CITY GRANT OF FUNDS TO ORTING
VALLEY RECOVERY CAFE.

WHEREAS, the City of Orting has adopted a Grant Policy (the “Policy”) to provide
grant funding to organizations which the City Council determines bring significant value to the
citizens of Orting and which serve valid municipal purposes; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Policy, grant funding is provided to organizations
upon application, evaluated by the City Council pursuant to the Policy on a case-by-case basis
and at various levels of support depending on the value the applicant provides to the community;
and

WHEREAS, the City received an application for grant funding from the Recovery Café,
Orting Valley, a nonprofit corporation registered with the State of Washington; and

WHEREAS, the City Council’s Community & Government Affairs Committee reviewed
the application on September 5%, 2019, and recommended approval of the application; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the Orting Valley, Recovery Café opened its
doors on November 17® 2018, to operate a Recovery Café in Orting, which provides a safe
caring environment where folks who truly want to break the lifestyle of addiction can find the
support the Orting Valley Community needs; and

WHEREAS, the applicant has represented that this grant shall be used by the applicant
to fund programs and for purchases of office equipment, website start up fees, and a contract
between the City and the applicant shall be executed to that effect prior to the applicant’s receipt
of the grant funding described herein; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that funding the aforementioned
organization/activity serves the valid municipal purposes of promoting community participation
and the health, safety and welfare of the community’s citizens and their families; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the Orting Valley Recovery Café’s application
meets the requirements of the City’s Policy, and qualifies for grant funding as an organization
serving valid municipal purposes; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Orting, Washington, do resolve as
follows:



Section 1. Declaration of Public Purpose. The City Council declares that the Orting
Valley Recovery Café serves the valid municipal purposes described herein, and that the
described intent for the requested funding is instrumental in ensuring that the organization meets
those purposes.

Section 2. Authorization for Sponsorship of Event. The City Council authorizes the
City’s grant funding Tacoma Recovery Café, pursuant to the City’s Policy, in the amount of
$ . The Mayor is authorized to enter into a contract with the Tacoma Recovery Café to
memorialize the City’s grant funding described herein.

Section 3. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force
immediately upon its passage.

PASSSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF ON
THE 25™ DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2019.

CITY OF ORTING

Joshua Penner, Mayor
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:

Jane Montgomery, City Clerk, CMC

Approved as to form:

Charlotte Archer, City Attorney
Inslee, Best, Doezie & Ryder, P.S.



-. City Of Orting
’ Council Agenda Summary Sheet

Study

. Council
Session

Subject: Resolution No Committee

2019-25, Amending The
Contract With Pease Agenda Item #: AB19-60 AB19-60

Construction To Authorize | £or pgenda of: 9/18/19 9.25.19

A Contingency; Authorizing
The Mayor /And Or His

Designee To Execute Department: City Administrator/Planner

Change Orders Date Submitted: | 9/13/19

Cost of item: $250,000

| Amount Budgeted: None

Unexpended Balance:

Bars #:

Timeline:

Submitted By: City Administrator/Planner

Fiscal Note:

Attachments: Resolution No. 2019-25

SUMMARY STATEMENT: The City awarded the contract for construction of the City Hall
Building to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, Pease Construction. That award did
not include the recommended contingency amount of $250,000.

By this Resolution, the City Council would authorize a contingency in an amount of $250,000,
and to authorize the Mayor and/or his designee to execute change orders on behalf of the City
with Pease for the project in an amount of $25,000 per change order.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Move to the consent agenda on 9.25.19

FUTURE MOTION: To Adopt Resolution No. 2019-25, Authorizing a contingency in the amount
of $250,000, and authorizing the Mayor and/or his designee to execute change orders in the
amount of $25,000.




CITY OF ORTING
WASHINGTON

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-25

A  RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF ORTING,
WASHINGTON; AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO
EXECUTE CHANGE ORDERS PURSUANT TO THE
CONTRACT UP TO A TOTAL CONTINGENCY OF
$250,000; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING
AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, in accordance with state laws for public works projects, the City of Orting
solicited bids for the construction of a new City Hall building (the “Project™); and

WHEREAS, at its regular meeting on August 14, 2019, the City Council of the City of
Orting awarded the contract for the Project to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, Pease
Construction, in the amount of $5,443,750; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Pease Construction executed a contract pursuant to the City
Council’s authorization; and

WHEREAS, the award did not include a contingency, and staff recommends the
authorization of a contingency for this project in accordance with the City’s estimate for the
project’s costs; and

WHEREAS, in order to ensure timely performance of the contract, the City Council desires
to authorize the Mayor and/or his designee to execute change orders on behalf of the City up to a
certain amount; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ORTING AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Authorization. The City Council hereby authorizes $250,000 as the owner’s
contingency for this Project. This amount is in addition to the line item for minor changes stated
in the contract.

Section 2. Authorization. The Mayor and/or his designee are hereby authorized to execute
change orders to the aforementioned contract with Pease Construction for the Project, in an amount
not to exceed $25,000 per change order, up to the total contingency amount of $250,000.

Section 3. Severability. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this resolution shall
be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or
unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other section, sentence,
clause or phrase.




Section 4. Corrections. The City Clerk and the codifiers of this resolution are authorized
to make necessary clerical corrections to this resolution including, but not limited to, the
correction of scrivener’s errors, references, numbering, section/subsection numbers and any
references thereto.

Section 4. Effective date. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon
adoption and signature as provided by law.

RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF
ON THE DAY OF 2019.

CITY OF ORTING

Joshua Penner, Mayor
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:

Jane Montgomery, City Clerk, CMC

Approved as to form:

Charlotte A. Archer
Inslee, Best, Doezie & Ryder, P.S.
City Attorney



R City Of Orting
& Council Agenda Summary Sheet

Subject: Ordinance No. Committee Sizl:?:n Council
2019-1050, Amending
Ordinance No. 2018-1037 Agenda ltem#: | N/A AB19-61
And Ordinance 2019-1048, For Agenda of: 9.18.19
Adopting The City Of Orting
2019 Buc'jgfat; Providing For DepartmenT: Finance
Appropriation And
Expenditure Of Funds Date 9/13/19
Received In Excess Of Submitted:
Estimated Revenues.
Cost of Item: $400,000
Amount Budgeted: : N/A
Unexpended Balance: : ‘N/A
Bars #: TBD
Timeline: ASAP
| Submitted By: Scott Larson

Fiscal Note: This amount will be offset by a $588,000 grant the City received from the State.

Attachments: Ordinance No. 2019-1050

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

The City budgeted $5.3 million in the 2019 budget to pay for construction of a new City Hall
facility. In August the Council awarded the construction contract to Pease Construction. In
addition to the amount approved for construction, the City needs to appropriate additional
funds for both contingency (change order) items and items that are not part of the contract
including a standby generator, electronic equipment for the council chambers, furniture, and
other items to outfit the office space. In 2018 the City won a $588,000 grant from the State
for funds to help with construction of the new City Hall facilities, so the impact of these
additional funds on the budget will be neutral.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Move to the consent agenda of 9.25.19

FUTURE MOTION: To Adopt Ordinance No. 2019-1050, An Ordinance of the City of Orting,
WA, Amending Ordinance No. 2018-1037 And Ordinance 2019-1048, Adopting The City Of
Orting 2019 Budget; Providing For Appropriation And Expenditure Of Funds Received In
Excess Of Estimated Revenues.




CITY OF ORTING
WASHINGTON

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-1050

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ORTING, WASHINGTON, AMENDING
ORDINANCE NO. 2018-1037 AND ORDINANCE 2019-1048, ADOPTING THE CITY OF
ORTING 2019 BUDGET; PROVIDING FOR APPROPRIATION AND EXPENDITURE
OF FUNDS RECEIVED IN EXCESS OF ESTIMATED REVENUES; PROVIDING FOR
SEVERABILITY; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, Washington State law, Chapter 35A.34 RCW provides for the biennial
adoption of the City’s budget and provides procedures for filing of the proposed budget,
deliberations, public hearings, final fixing, and any subsequent adjustments to the budget; and

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted the 2019 budget pursuant to Ordinance No. 2018-
1037 and amended the 2019 budget with Ordinance No. 2019-1048; and

WHEREAS, the expenditures as classified and itemized in the adopted budget constitute
the City's appropriations for the ensuing fiscal year provided that the budget Ordinance may be
amended by ordinance to provide for appropriation and expenditure of funds received in excess
of the estimated revenues during the calendar year; and

WHEREAS, the City has received funds that are in excess of the estimated revenues for
the 2019 budget year and desires to amend the 2019 budget to provide for the appropriation and
expenditure of said funds; and

WHEREAS, City Staff has determined that additional funds are needed for the
completion of the New City Hall construction project; and

WHEREAS, the 2019 budget includes a summary of expenditures, which needs to be
amended to reflect the expenses that the city intends to incur; and

WHEREAS, this amendment to the 2019 budget could not have been reasonably
foreseen during budget development; and

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ORTING,
WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Amending Ordinance No. 2018-1037 (2019 Budget Ordinance). Section 3.
Summary of Revenues and Appropriations. Ordinance No. 2019-1037, adopting the 2019




budget, at Section 3, Summary of Revenues and Appropriations, Exhibit A, shall be and is
hereby amended as set forth in Exhibit A.

Section 3. Corrections. The City Clerk is authorized to make necessary corrections to
this Ordinance including, but not limited to, the correction of scrivener’s/clerical errors,
references, Ordinance numbering, section/subsection numbers and any references thereto.

Section 4. Severability. Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of
this Ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance, be declared unconstitutional or
otherwise invalid for any reason, or should any portion of this Ordinance be pre-empted by state
or federal law or regulation, such decision or pre-emption shall not affect the validity of the
remaining portions of this Ordinance or its application to other persons or circumstances.

Section S. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be published in the official newspaper of
the City, and shall take effect and be in full force five (5) days after the date of publication.

ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF
ON THE 25" DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2019.
CITY OF ORTING

Joshua Penner, Mayor
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:

Jane Montgomery, City Clerk, CMC

Approved as to form:

Charlotte A. Archer
Inslee, Best, Doezie & Ryder, P.S.
City Attorney

Filed with the City Clerk:9.13.19
Passed by the City Council:
Ordinance No.: 2019-1050

Date of Publication:

Effective Date:



@ City of Orting
"’ Council Agenda Summary Sheet

Subject: Ordinance 2019- Committee Ssetsl:‘ijgn Council
1049 Adopting A Zoning
Ordinance To Add Agenda Item #: N/A AB19-62 AB19-62
Chapter 13-9 To The For Agenda of: 09/18/2019 | 9.25.19
Orting Municipal Code,
EriFibieg ”.VV|r.eIess . Department: Planning/Administration
Communications Services
Facilities.” Date 04/01/19;9/12/19
Submitted: |
Cost of Item: N/A
Amount Budgeted: N/A
| Unexpended Balance: N/A
Bars #: N/A
Timeline: Has to be passed in September, the interim Ordinance sunsets |
prior to the October meeting.
Submitted By: Planner
Fiscal Note:

Attachments: Ordinance No. 2019-1049

SUMMARY STATEMENT: The City adopted new Telecommunications Master Use Permit requirements in 2018
last year (Title 8, Chapter 8 OMC, Ord 2018-1031). This code allows for telecommunications facilities but does
not provide any development standards. The City Council, following the Planning Commission’s
recommendations, adopted interim wireless communication facility development standards, Ord. 2019-1044.

The FCC recently passed a rule that no new development standards would be accepted from local jurisdictions
if they were not in place by April 14, 2019.

Staff drafted a permanent wireless communication facility development standards ordinance, after feedback
from staff, public and stakeholders.

After a public hearing, the Planning Commission recommended approval of the ordinance on Sept. 9, 2019.
We ask that the Council adopt the ordinance, after holding a public hearing.

| RECOMMENDED ACTION: Public Hearing And Vote At The 9.25.19 Meeting.

FUTURE MOTION: To Adopt Ordinance No. 2019-1049, A Zoning Ordinance To Add Chapter 13-9
To The Orting Municipal Code, Entitled “Wireless Communications Services Facilities.”




CITY OF ORTING
WASHINGTON

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-1049

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ORTING, WASHINGTON, ADOPTING A ZONING
ORDINANCE TO ADD CHAPTER 13-9 TO THE ORTING MUNICIPAL CODE,
ENTITLED “WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES FACILITIES.”

WHEREAS, the City of Orting is a non-charter optional municipal code city as provided
in Title 35A RCW, incorporated under the laws of the state of Washington; and

WHEREAS, in the Telecommunications Act of 1996 (the 1996 Act), Congress enacted
sweeping new provisions intended to facilitate the deployment of telecommunications
infrastructure; and

WHEREAS, several provisions of the 1996 Act speak directly to Congress’s
determination that certain state and local regulations are unlawful; and

WHEREAS, Section 253(a) provides that “no State or local statute or regulation, or other
State or local legal requirement, may prohibit or have the effect of prohibiting the ability of any
entity to provide any interstate or intrastate telecommunications service;” and

WHEREAS, Congress specified in Section 332(c)(7) that “the regulation of the placement,
construction, and modification of personal wireless service facilities by any State or local
government or instrumentality thereof—(I) shall not unreasonably discriminate among providers
of functionally equivalent services; and (II) shall not prohibit or have the effect of prohibiting the
provision of personal wireless services;” and

WHEREAS, Section 332(c)(7) generally preserves state and local authority over the
“placement, construction, and modification of personal wireless service facilities” but with certain
limitations; and

WHEREAS, the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) has authority to interpret
Sections 253 and 332 of the 1996 Act to further elucidate what types of state and local legal
requirements run afoul of the statutory parameters Congress has established; and

WHEREAS, America is preparing to transition to the next generation of wireless services,
known as 5G; and :

WHEREAS, in preparing for that transition; and to improve existing deficits in their 4G
networks, wireless providers have been increasingly looking to densify their networks with new
small cell deployments that have antennas often no larger than a small backpack; and



WHEREAS, the challenge for the City’s policymakers is that the deployment of these
small cell networks will look different than the 3G and 4G deployments of the past, which often
involved the construction of large cell towers; and

WHEREAS, to support advanced 4G or 5G offerings, wireless providers must build out
small cells at a faster pace and at a far greater density of deployment than before; and

WHEREAS, to meet rapidly increasing demand for wireless services and prepare our
national infrastructure for 5G, wireless providers must deploy infrastructure at significantly more
locations using these new, small cell facilities; and

WHEREAS, on September 27, 2018, in the context of the forthcoming small cell
deployment, the FCC found it necessary and appropriate to exercise its authority to interpret the

1996 Act and clarify the preemptive scope that Congress intended by issuing its Declaratory
Ruling and Third Report and Order (“FCC Order™); and

WHEREAS, the FCC asserts that its Order 1s part of a national strategy to promote the
timely buildout of this new infrastructure across the country by eliminating regulatory
impediments that unnecessarily add delays and costs to bringing advanced wireless services to the
public; and

WHEREAS, the FCC Order still recognizes that certain reasonable aesthetic
considerations do not run afoul of Sections 253 and 332; and

WHEREAS, the regulations contained herein are intended to, among other things, (1)
ensure that the design, appearance, and other features of wireless facilities are compatible with
nearby land uses; (2) manage the public right-of-way so as to ensure traffic safety and coordinate
various uses; and (3) protect the integrity of the City’s historic, cultural, and scenic resources and
the quality of life of Orting’s citizens; and

WHEREAS, the FCC Order states that “aesthetics requirements are not preempted if they
are (1) reasonable, (2) no more burdensome than those applied to other types of infrastructure
deployments, and (3) objective and published in advance; and

WHEREAS, the FCC Order states that “aesthetic requirements that are reasonable in that
they are technically feasible and reasonably directed to avoiding or remedying the intangible public
harm of unsightly or out-of-character deployments are also permissible;” and

WHEREAS, the FCC has given cities until April 14, 2019 to have adopted and published
its aesthetic regulations; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that these regulations promote the small cell
deployment in a manner that also balances the needs of the community while mitigating the
potential negative impacts of that deployment; and



WHEREAS, the City Council acknowledges that the growing use of smart phones and
other personal devices have created a substantial need for wireless data transmission; and

WHEREAS, the City Council is the steward of the public right-of-way which will
. probably host some of the forthcoming small cell facilities; and

WHEREAS, the City of Orting recently adopted new wireless communications services
facilities franchise agreements and telecommunication master use permit requirements (City
Ordinance 2018-1031); and

WHEREAS, as steward of the public right-of-way, the City Council must consider the
various competing uses of the public right-of-way; and

WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes that not all utilities are similarly situated: some
(like water and sewer) can only function below ground; some (like wireless antennas) can only
function above ground; some (like wireline utilities) require the kind of continuity that can only
be provided if they are located in the public right-of-way; and some (like wireless facilities),
because they transit radio frequencies, are less reliant than wireline utilities on the continuity
provided by the public right-of-way; and

WHEREAS, in light of the different needs of the various utilities, and in light of the limited
available space in the right-of-way, the City Council intends to prioritize and preserve the right-
of-way for those utilities that most need it; and

WHEREAS, the City Council deems it to be in the public interest to incorporate the FCC
guidelines and provide for the streamlined review of applications and greater flexibility in siting
wireless communications services facilities, including small cell facilities, within the City, and at
the same time to further the protection of the public environment through the adoption of small
cell design standards, concealment techniques and dispersion requirements; and

WHEREAS, over the next many years, the deployment of small cell facilities in the
numbers contemplated by the FCC is likely to have a cumulative negative visual impact upon the
City, which threatens to lower the quality of life of Orting citizens; and

WHEREAS, the City of Orting has adopted architectural design guidelines; all
development in the Mixed-Use Town Center and Mixed-Use Town Center North zones and all
commercial and public developments are subject to Architectural Design Review to ensure
consistency with the adopted Orting theme of "Turn of the Century Western and Victorian," a style
of building, architecture, and exterior lighting used in Orting and the area from Statehood in 1889
through World War 1. This includes new construction or major renovation and alteration or other
modifications to buildings, accessory structures, signs, street furniture, and other public property
as described in Section 13.6.6 OMC. Under the architectural design guidelines, evaluation of a
project is based on quality of its design and its relationship to the natural setting of the valley and
mountain settings; and

WHEREAS, the aesthetic regulations and dispersion requirements contained in this



Ordinance are intended to mitigate some of that negative visual impact of wireless communications
services facilities; and

WHEREAS, the dispersion requirement is intended to ensure that the negative visual
impact is spread evenly throughout the City, and, in so doing, make it less noticeable than it would
be if it was concentrated in certain small cell hot spots containing multiple wireless facilities in
close proximity; and

WHEREAS, it is common for cities to adopt interim regulations when amending their
codes to address new technology; and

WHEREAS, RCW 35A.63.220 and RCW. 36.70A.390 authorize the City to adopt interim
regulations while new plans or regulations are considered and prepared; and

WHEREAS, the City Planning Commission reviewed the proposed interim regulations on
April 1, 2019 and recommended adoption of the interim regulations to the City Council; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW 36.70A.390, an interim ordinance may be adopted on an
emergency basis without first holding a public hearing; and

WHEREAS, notwithstanding that authority, the City Council held a public hearing on
April 10, 2019 for the interim ordinance (2019-1044), and adopted it; and

WHEREAS, the City has continued to refine its wireless regulations in response to public
comment, including consultation with the wireless industry and new information since the interim
ordinance was adopted; and

WHEREAS, the City Council does not find these regulations to be any more burdensome
than those applied to other types of infrastructure deployments; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing on September
9, 2019, and provided a final recommendation for wireless communications services facilities to
the City Council at that meeting; and

WHEREAS, non-project SEPA review was conducted and a Determination of
Nonsignificance (DNS) was issued for the development regulations on July 30, 2019; and

WHEREAS, the Growth Management Act requires proposed development regulations be
sent to the WA State Department of Commerce Growth Management Services for review and
comment 60 days prior to the final City Council adoption, unless expedited review is requested,
and the City has complied with GMA noticing requirements; and

WHEREAS, the City Council held another public hearing for the proposed development
regulations on September 23, 2019; and



WHEREAS, having considered, among other things, public testimony and the Planning
Commission’s recommendations, the City Council finds that the proposed amendments herein are
consistent with and would serve to further implement the planning goals of the adopted
Comprehensive Plan and the Growth Management Act, bear a substantial relation to the public
health, safety or welfare, and promote the best long term interests of the Orting community;

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Orting, Washington, do ordain
as follows:

Section 1. New OMC Chapter 13-9, “Wireless Communications Services Facilities,”
added.

Chapter 13-9 of the Orting Municipal Code, entitled “Wireless Communications Services
Facilities,” is hereby adopted to read as set forth in Attachment A hereto, which is incorporated
herein as if set forth in full.

Section 2. Repeal of Interim Ordinance. The interim ordinance 2019-1044 is hereby
repealed upon adoption of this ordinance.

Section 3. Severability. Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this
Ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance, be declared unconstitutional or
otherwise invalid for any reason, or should any portion of this Ordinance be pre-empted by state
or federal law or regulation, such decision or pre-emption shall not affect the validity of the
remaining portions of this Ordinance or its application to other persons or circumstances.

Section4. Effective Date. This ordinance, being an exercise of a power specifically
delegated to the City legislative body, is not subject to referendum and shall take effect five (5)
days after passage and publication of an approved summary thereof consisting of the title.

Section S. Adoption of Findings. The City Council hereby adopts as findings of fact in
support of the adoption of this Ordinance, the “whereas” clauses above.

ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF ON
THE DAY OF , 2019.

CITY OF ORTING

Joshua Penner, Mayor
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Jane Montgomery, City Clerk, CMC
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Charlotte A. Archer
Inslee, Best, Doezie & Ryder, P.S.
City Attorney
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Ordinance 2019-1049- Attachment A
Title 13 - Development Regulations
Chapter 9 - Wireless Communications Services Facilities

Sections:

13-9-1 Purpose.

13-9-2 Applicability.

13-9-3 Exemptions.

13-9-4 Prohibitions.

13-9-5 General macro facility siting criteria and design considerations.

13-9-6 Permits and shot clocks.

13-9-7 Application requirements.

13-9-8 Eligible facilities requests.

13-9-9 New building-mounted macro wireless communications services facilities standards.
13-9-10 New structure-mounted macro wireless communications services facilities standards.
13-9-11 New monopole-mounted macro wireless communications services facilities standards.
13-9-12 Temporary facilities.

13-9-13 Small wireless communications services facilities standards (small cell).

13-9-14 Abandonment or discontinuation of use.

13-9-15 Maintenance.

13-9-16 Definitions.

13-9-1 Purpose.

A, The purpose of this chapter is to regulate the placement, construction, modification and

appearance of wireless communications services facilities, in order to protect the health, safety
and welfare of the public, while not unreasonably interfering with the deployment of
competitive wireless communications services facilities throughout the City. The purpose of
this chapter may be achieved through adherence to the following objectives:

Il Protect residential areas and land uses from potential adverse impacts that wireless
communications services facilities might create, including but not limited to negative
impacts on aesthetics, environmentally sensitive areas, historically significant locations,
and health and safety of persons and property;

2. Establishment of clear and nondiscriminatory local regulations concerning wireless
communications services facilities and services that are consistent with federal and state
laws and regulations;

3. Encourage providers of wireless communications services facilities to locate
facilities, to the extent feasible, in areas where the adverse impact on the public health,
safety and welfare is minimal;



B.

4. For macro facilities, encourage the location of those facilities in nonresidential
areas and allow macro facilities in residential areas only when necessary to meet functional
requirements of the communications industry as defined by the Federal Communications
Commission;

5. Minimize the total number of macro facilities in residential areas;

6. Encourage and, where legally permissible, require cooperation between
competitors and, as a primary option, joint use of new and existing towers, tower sites and
suitable structures to the greatest extent possible, where doing so would significantly
reduce or eliminate additional negative impact on the City;

7. Ensure wireless communications services facilities are configured in a way that
minimizes the adverse visual impact of the facilities, as viewed from different vantage
points, through careful design, landscape screening, minimal impact siting options and
camouflaging techniques, dispersion of unscreened features to lessen the visual impact
upon any one location, and through assessment of current location options, siting, future
available locations, and innovative siting techniques;

8. Enable wireless communication companies to enter into lease agreements with the
City to use city property for the placement of wireless facilities, where consistent with other
public needs, as a means to generate revenue for the City;

9. Balance the City’s intent to minimize the adverse impacts of wircless
communications services facilities with the ability of the providers of communications
services to deploy such services to the community quickly, effectively and efficiently;

10. Provide for the prompt removal of wireless communications services facilities that
are abandoned or no longer inspected for safety concerns and building code compliance,
and provide a mechanism for the City to cause these abandoned wireless communications
services facilities to be removed as necessary to protect the citizens from imminent harm
and danger;

11. Avoid potential damage to people and adjacent properties from tower failure and
falling equipment, through strict compliance with state building and electrical codes; and

12, Disperse the adverse impacts of small cell facilities as evenly as possible throughout
the community, especially when joint use does not minimize additional visual impact.

In furtherance of these objectives, the City shall give due consideration to the zoning code;

existing land uses, and environmentally sensitive areas when approving sites for the location of
wireless communications services facilities.

C.

These objectives were developed to protect the public health, safety and welfare, to protect

property values, and to minimize and disperse visual impact, while furthering the development
of enhanced communications services in the City. These objectives were designed to comply
with the Telecommunications Act of 1996 and its implementing regulations. The provisions of
this chapter are not intended to, and any ambiguities herein shall not be interpreted in such a
manner that would materially inhibit the deployment of wireless communications services
facilities. This chapter shall not be applied in such a manner as to unreasonably discriminate
between providers of functionally equivalent wireless facilities.



D.  To the extent that any provision of this chapter conflicts with any other city ordinance, this
chapter shall control. Otherwise, this chapter shall be construed consistently with the other
provisions and regulations of the City.

E. In reviewing any application to place, construct or modify wireless communications
services facilities, the City shall act within federally required time periods. Any decision to deny
an application shall be in writing, supported by substantial evidence contained in a written record.
The City shall approve, approve with conditions, or deny the application in accordance with this
title, this chapter, the adopted Orting comprehensive plan, and other applicable ordinances and
regulations.

F.  Alternative Methods of Compliance. The City Administrator or designee in consultation
with other City staff, as applicable, may accept alternative methods of complying with the
development regulations of this chapter, provided it can be demonstrated that the alternative
method is at least equivalent to such standards in terms of implementing the general purpose of
this chapter. The City Administrator or designee shall not accept alternative methods of
compliance that are inconsistent with the City Comprehensive Plan or with conditions of
approval imposed through a land use action. Decisions on Alternative Methods of Compliance
need to be documented in the project file and can be appealable in the same manner as an
Administrative Interpretation. The City Administrator or designee shall periodically forward
decisions on Alternative Methods of Compliance to the Planning Commission for its information.

13-9-2 Applicability.

A Except as provided herein, all wireless communications services facilities shall comply
with the provisions of this chapter. The standards and process requirements of this chapter
supersede all other review process, setback, height or landscaping requirements of the Orting
Municipal Code (OMC).

B.  Environmental. All proposed installations are subject to a threshold determination under
the State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) according to Chapter 15-14 OMC unless
categorically exempt pursuant to WAC 197-11-800. All proposals are subject to the critical area
requirements and the shoreline master program (Title 11 OMC).

C.  Master Permit Agreement Needed.

1. Consistent with RCW chapter 35.99 and Chapter 8-8 OMC, any person, corporation
or entity that proposes to locate any portion of a wireless communications services facilities
within the City right-of-way must have a valid fully executed master permit with the City
before submitting applications for right-of-way construction permits.

2 Wireless providers interested in obtaining a master permit must apply according to
the procedures of Chapter 8-8 OMC as well as supplying the following, in order to have a
complete application:

a. submit three valid fully executed master permits that the provider has with other
cities in Washington state, PROVIDED THAT, this requirement shall be excused to
the extent that the provider does not have sufficient valid master permits in other
jurisdictions to meet that requirement;

D.  Right-of-Way Construction Permit. A right-of-way construction permit is required prior to



performing any work within the City right-of-way pursuant to OMC Title 8.
13-9-3 Exemptions.

The following are exemptions from the provisions of this chapter:

Routine maintenance or repair of wireless communication facilities.

Radar systems for military and civilian communication and navigation.
Handheld, mobile, marine and portable radio transmitters and/or receivers.
Satellite antennas, including direct to home satellite services.

Licensed amateur (ham) radio stations and citizen band stations.

Earth station antenna(s) one meter or less in diameter and located in any zone.
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. Earth station antenna(s) two meters or less in diameter and located in the business and
commercial zones.

H. A temporary wireless communications facility or COW installed for providing coverage of
a special event such as news coverage or sporting event, subject to approval by the City. The
wireless facility shall be exempt from the provisions of this chapter for up to two weeks before
and after the duration of the special event.

I. A temporary wireless communication facility or COW installed for a period of up to 180
days, subject to renewals at the City’s discretion, to provide service during repair, replacement,
or relocation of an existing facility or construction of a new facility.

J. Subject to compliance with all other applicable standards of this chapter, in the event of an
emergency, the emergency provisions of Chapter 8-8 OMC shall be followed.

13-9-4 Prohibitions.
A.  The following wireless communications services facilities are prohibited in Orting:
e Guyed towers.
2. Lattice towers.

B.  Monopoles are prohibited in the following locations:

1. All residential zones;

2. MUTC Mixed Use-Town Center Zone;

1LY

4. OS Open Space and Recreation Zone;
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6. Within the City rights-of-way.
13-9-5 General macro facility siting criteria and design considerations.

A.  The City of Orting encourages wireless communication providers to use existing sites or
more frequent, less noticeable sites instead of attempting to provide coverage through use of
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taller towers. To that end, applicants shall consider the following priority of preferred locations
for wireless communications services facilities:

L Co-location, without an increase in the height of the building, pole or structure upon
which the facility would be located;

2. Co-location, where additional height is necessary above existing building, pole, or
structure;

3. A replacement pole or structure for an existing one;

4, A new pole or structure altogether.

B.  Co-location shall be encouraged for all wireless communications services facilities
applications and is implemented through less complex permit procedures.

e To the greatest extent technically feasible, applicants for new monopole facilities
shall be required to build mounts capable of accommodating at least one other carrier.

08 New macro wireless communications services facilities that are not co-located will
require a conditional use permit (C) under the provisions of OMC 13-6-2 and shall be
processed in accordance with OMC Title 15 for a Type III permit. Separation requirements
will be a condition of approval.

C.  Noise. Any facility that requires a generator or other device which will create noise audible
beyond the boundaries of the site must demonstrate compliance with Chapter 5-8 OMC, Noise
Control. A noise report, prepared by an acoustical engineer, shall be submitted with any
application to construct and operate a wireless communications services facility that will have a
generator or similar device. The City may require that the report be reviewed by a third-party
expert at the expense of the applicant.

D. Business License Requirement. Any person, corporation or entity that operates a wireless
communications services facility within the City shall have a valid business license issued
annually by the City. Any person, corporation or other business entity which owns a monopole
also is required to obtain a business license on an annual basis.

E.  Signage. Only safety signs or those mandated by a government entity with jurisdiction may
be located on wireless communications services facilities. No other types of signs are permitted
on wireless communications services facilities.

F.  Any application must demonstrate that there is sufficient space for temporary parking for
regular maintenance of the proposed facility.

G.  Finish. A monopole may be constructed of laminated wood, fiberglass, steel, or similar
material. The pole shall be a neutral color so as to reduce its visual obtrusiveness, subject to any
applicable standards of the FAA or FCC.

H  Design. The design of all buildings and ancillary structures shall use materials, colors,
textures, screening and landscaping that will blend the facilities with the natural setting and built
environment. All macro towers must be approved by the Architectural Design Board.

L Color. All antennas and ancillary facilities located on buildings or structures other than
monopoles shall be of a neutral color that is identical to or closely compatible with the color of
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the supporting structure so as to make the antenna and ancillary facilities as visually unobtrusive
as possible.

J. Lighting. Monopoles shall not be artificially lighted unless required by the FAA, FCC or
other government entity with jurisdiction. If lighting is required and alternative lighting options
are permitted, the City shall review the lighting alternatives and approve the design that would
cause the least disturbance to the surrounding area. No strobe lighting of any type is permitted
on any monopole, unless required by the FAA.

K. Advertising. No advertising is permitted at wireless communications services facilities
sites or on any ancillary structure or facilities equipment enclosure.

L. Equipment Enclosure. Each applicant shall use the smallest equipment enclosure practical
to contain the required equipment and a reserve for required co-location.

M. Radio Frequency Emissions Compliance. The applicant shall demonstrate that the project
will not result in levels of radio frequency emissions that exceed FCC standards, including FCC
Office of Engineering Technology (OET) Bulletin 65, Evaluating Compliance with FCC
Guidelines for Human Exposure to Radio Frequency Electromagnetic Fields, as amended.

N. Landscaping and Screening.

1. The visual impacts of wireless communications services facilities should be
mitigated and softened through landscaping or other screening materials at the base of a
monopole, facility equipment compound, equipment enclosures and ancillary structures. If
the antenna is mounted flush on an existing building or camouflaged as part of the building
and other equipment is housed inside an existing structure, no landscaping is required. The
City may reduce or waive the standards for those sides of the wireless communications
services facilities that are not in public view, when a combination of existing vegetation,
topography, walls, decorative fences or other features achieve the same degree of screening
as the required landscaping; in locations where the visual impact of the facility would be
minimal; and in those locations where large wooded lots not capable of subdivision and
natural growth around the property perimeter provide a sufficient buffer.

2 Landscaping shall be installed on the outside of fences. Existing vegetation shall be
preserved to the maximum extent practicable and may be used as a substitute for or as a
supplement to landscaping or screening requirements. The following requirements apply:

a. A solid screen of evergreen trees or shrubs shall be placed around the perimeter
of the equipment cabinet enclosure, except that a maximum 10-foot portion of the
fence may remain without landscaping in order to provide access to the enclosure.

b. Landscaping area shall be a minimum of five feet in width around the perimeter
of the enclosure.

¢. Vegetation selected should be native and drought tolerant.

d. Landscaping shall be located so as not to create sight distance hazards or
conflicts with other surrounding utilities.

3. When landscaping is used, the applicant shall submit a performance assurance
pursuant to OMC 13-5-2 (H).
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4. The use of chain link, plastic, or wire fencing is prohibited. Ornamental metal,

stone, wood, or vinyl fencing materials are preferred.

13-9-6 Permits and Shot Clocks.

A.  No person may place, construct, reconstruct, modify or operate a wireless communications
services facility, subject to this chapter, without first having in place a master permit agreement
for right-of-way locations with a subsequent right-of-way permit and/or a building permit, as
applicable, issued in accordance with this chapter. Except as otherwise provided herein, the
requirements of this chapter are in addition to the applicable requirements of this title and OMC
Title 8 (Public Ways and Property) and Title 11 (Critical Areas and Shoreline Management).

B.  Applications will be reviewed based on the type of wireless communications services
facilities requested to be permitted. Each wireless communications services facility requires the
appropriate type of project permit review, as shown in Table A. In the event of uncertainty on
the type of a wireless facility, the City Administrator or designee shall have the authority to
determine what permits are required for the proposed facility.

Table A
Request Location Building Permit Right-of-Way FCC Shot
Required (ROW) Permit Clocks for
Required Permit Review
Eligible Existing tower or | Yes, if any Yes, if any 60 days
facilities request | base station elements on elements in the
private property ROW
New macro Co-location Yes, if any Yes, if any 90 days
facility elements on elements in the
private property ROW
New macro New structure or Yes, if any Yes, if any 150 days
facility monopole elements on elements in the
(see 13-9-4 private property ROW
prohibited
locations & 13-9-
5 (B)(2) above for
C Permit)
Small wireless Co-location Yes, if any Yes, if any 60 days
facility (small elements on elements in the
cell node) private property ROW
Small wireless New structure or Yes, if any Yes, if any 90 days
facility (small freestanding elements on elements in the
cell node) small cell pole private property ROW
Temporary Varies Yes, if applicable | Yes, if any Standard permit
facility elements in the quotes
ROW
C.  Timelines.
1. Macro cell.

The application review period begins when all required application materials have been
received and fees paid. If the City determines that the application is incomplete and
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provides notice to the applicant within thirty (30) calendar days of the date of application,
the clock stops. The clock restarts when the City receives the applicant’s supplemental
submission in response to the City’s notice of incompleteness. For subsequent
determinations of incompleteness, the clock tolls (pauses) if the City provides written
notice within ten (10) days that a supplemental submission did not provide the requested
information. For new structures or monopoles, see OMC 13-9-5 (B)(2) above for C Permit
requirement.

2. Small wireless facility (small cell node).

The application review period begins when all required application materials have been
received and fees paid. If the City determines that the application is incomplete and
provides notice to the applicant within ten (10) calendar days of the date of application, the
clock stops. The clock resets to zero (0) when the City receives the applicant’s
supplemental submission in response to the City’s notice of incompleteness. For
subsequent determinations of incompleteness, the clock tolls (pauses) if the City provides
written notice within ten (10) days that a supplemental submission did not provide the
requested information.

D.  Batched small wireless facility (small cell node) applications.

If an applicant is applying for a small wireless network in a contiguous service area, multiple
small wireless facilities may be batched into one application, PROVIDED THAT the application
fee shall still be calculated as if the applications were submitted separately. The City may
approve, deny or conditionally approve all or any portion of the small wireless facilities proposed
in the application. The denial of one or more small wireless facility locations within one
submission shall not be the sole basis for a denial of other locations or the entire batched
application for small wireless facilities. Should an applicant file a single application for a batch
that includes both collocated and new structures for small wireless facilities, the longer 90-day
shot clock shall apply to ensure the City has adequate time to review the new construction sites.

E.  Any application submitted pursuant to this chapter for projects located on public or private
property shall be reviewed and evaluated by the City as described in this chapter. The Public
Works Director or his/her designee shall review all proposed wireless communications services
facilities that are located partially or fully within the City rights-of-way. All applications will be
reviewed and evaluated pursuant to the provisions of this chapter.

F. All applications for wireless communications services facilities shall be reviewed for

by the Architectural Design Board.

G.  The applicant is responsible for obtaining all other permits and approvals from any other
appropriate governing body or agency with jurisdiction (i.e., Washington State Department of
Labor and Industries, Federal Aviation Administration, Puget Sound Energy, etc.).

H.  No provision of this chapter shall be interpreted to allow the installation of a wireless

communications services facilities which minimizes parking, landscaping, or other site
development standards established by the OMC.

L Wireless communications services facilities that are governed under this chapter shall not
be eligible for variances under OMC Chapter 13-6-3. Any request to deviate from this chapter
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shall be based solely on the exceptions set forth in this chapter, including Alternative Methods
of Compliance under OMC 13-9-1 (F).

J. Third-party Review. Applicants may use various methodologies and analyses, including
geographically based computer software, to determine the specific technical parameters of the
services to be provided utilizing the proposed wireless communications services facilities, such
as expected coverage area, antenna configuration, capacity, and topographic constraints that
atfect signal paths. In certain instances, a third-party expert may be needed to review the
engineering and technical data submitted by an applicant for a permit. The City may at its
discretion require third-party engineering and technical review as part of a permitting process.
The costs of the technical third-party review shall be borne by the applicant.

I. The selection of the third-party expert is at the discretion of the City. The third-
party expert review is intended to address interference and public safety issues and be a
site- specific review of engineering and technical aspects of the proposed wireless
communications services facilities and/or a review of the applicants’ methodology and
equipment used, and is not intended to be a subjective review of the site which was selected
by an applicant. Based on the results of the expert review, the City may require changes to
the proposal. The third-party review shall address the following:

a. The accuracy and completeness of submissions;
b. The applicability of analysis techniques and methodologies;
c. The validity of conclusions reached;

d. The viability of other site or sites in the City for the use intended by the
applicant; and

e. Any specific engineering or technical issues designated by the City.

K. Notwithstanding other remedies that may be available under federal law, failure of the City
to issue permits within or otherwise comply with the FCC shot clock requirements does not
provide a “deemed” grant of approval for macro or small wireless facilities, as it does for an
Eligible Facilities Request. No work may occur until the permit issues.

13-9-7 Application requirements.

The following information must be submitted as part of a complete application for a wireless
communications services facility permit in the City of Orting:

A, Project description including a design narrative and co-location analysis indicating the
alternative locations considered;

B.  Site information on scaled plans, including:

1. Site plan;

3. Elevation drawings;

3. Utility plan showing existing utilities, proposed facility location, and
undergrounding;

4. Screening, camouflaging, or landscaping plan and cost estimate, as appropriate;
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C.  Photos and photo simulations showing the existing appearance of the site and appearance
of the proposed installation from nearby public viewpoints;

D.  Noise report, if applicable;

E.  Radio Frequency (RF) emissions standards. The applicant shall provide the certification of
an RF engineer with knowledge of the proposed development that the wireless communications
services facilities will comply with RF standards adopted by the Federal Communications
Commission (FCC). The City recognizes that the Federal Telecommunications Act of 1996 gives
the FCC sole jurisdiction in the field of regulation of RF emissions and wireless facilities that
meet FCC standards shall not be conditioned or denied on the basis of RF impacts.

F.  Application for Architectural Design Review.
G. Any other documentation deemed necessary by the City in order to issue a decision.

13-9-8 Eligible facilities requests.

This section implements section 6409 of the Spectrum Act (codified at 47 U.S.C. 1455), which
requires the City of Orting to approve any eligible facilities request for a modification of an
existing tower or base station that does not substantially change the physical dimensions of such
tower or base station.

A. Definitions. The following definitions only apply to eligible facilities requests as described
in this section and do not apply throughout this chapter.

1. Base Station is a structure or equipment at a fixed location that enables FCC-
licensed or authorized wireless communications between user equipment and a
communications network. The term does not encompass a tower as defined herein nor any
equipment associated with a tower. Base station includes, without limitation:

a. Equipment associated with wireless communications services as well as
unlicensed wireless services and fixed wireless services such as microwave
backhaul.

b. Radio transceivers, antennas, coaxial or fiber-optic cable, regular and back-up
power supplies, and comparable equipment, regardless of technological
configuration (including distributed antenna systems (“DAS”) and small cell
networks).

c. Any structure other than a tower that, at the time the relevant application is filed
(with jurisdiction) under this section, supports or houses equipment described in
subsections (A)(1)(a) and (b) of this section that has been reviewed and approved
under the applicable zoning or siting process, or under another State or local
regulatory review process, even if the structure was not built for the sole or primary
purpose of providing that support.

The term does not include any structure that, at the time the relevant application is
filed with the City under this section, does not support or house equipment
described in subsections (A)(1)(a) and (b) of this section.

2. Collocation. The mounting or installation of transmission equipment on an eligible
support structure for the purpose of transmitting and/or receiving radio frequency signals
for communication purposes.
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3. Eligible Facilities Request. Any request for modification of an existing tower or
base station that does not substantially increase the physical dimensions of such tower or
base station, involving:

a. Collocation of new transmission equipment;
b. Removal of transmission equipment; or
c. Replacement of transmission equipment.

4. Eligible Support Structure. Any tower or base station as defined in this section;
provided, that it is existing at the time the relevant application is filed with the City.

5. Existing. A constructed tower or base station is existing if it has been reviewed and
approved under the applicable zoning or siting process, or under another State or local
regulatory review process; provided, that a tower that has not been reviewed and approved
because it was not in a zoned area when it was built, but was lawfully constructed, is
existing for purposes of this definition.

6. Site. For towers other than towers in the public rights-of-way, the current
boundaries of the leased or owned property surrounding the tower and any access or utility
easements currently related to the site, and, for other eligible support structures, further
restricted to that area in proximity to the structure and to other transmission equipment
already deployed on the ground.

7. Substantial Change. A modification substantially changes the physical dimensions
of an eligible support structure if it meets any of the following criteria:

a. For towers other than towers in the public rights-of-way, it increases the height
of the tower by more than ten (10) percent or by the height of one (1) additional
antenna array with separation from the nearest existing antenna, not to exceed
twenty (20) feet, whichever is greater; for other eligible support structures, it
increases the height of the structure by more than ten (10) percent or more than ten
(10) feet, whichever is greater.

1) Changes in height should be measured from the original support
structure in cases where deployments are or will be separated horizontally,
such as on buildings’ rooftops; in other circumstances, changes in height
should be measured from the dimensions of the tower or base station,
inclusive of originally approved appurtenances and any modifications that
were approved prior to the passage of the Spectrum Act;

b. For towers other than towers in the public rights-of-way, it involves adding an
appurtenance to the body of the tower that would protrude from the edge of the
tower more than ten (10) feet, or more than the width of the tower structure at the
level of the appurtenance, whichever is greater; for other eligible support structures,
it involves adding an appurtenance to the body of the structure that would protrude
from the edge of the structure by more than six (6) feet;

c. For any eligible support structure, it involves installation of more than the
standard number of new equipment cabinets for the technology involved, but not to
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exceed four cabinets; or, for towers in the public streets and base stations, it
involves installation of any new equipment cabinets on the ground if there are no
preexisting ground cabinets associated with the structure, or else involves
installation of ground cabinets that are more than ten (10) percent larger in height
or overall volume than any other ground cabinets associated with the structure;

d. It entails any excavation or deployment outside the current site;
e. It would defeat the concealment elements of the eligible support structure; or

f. It does not comply with conditions associated with the siting approval of the
construction or modification of the eligible support structure or base station
equipment; provided, however, that this limitation does not apply to any
modification that is noncompliant only in a manner that would not exceed the
thresholds identified above.

B.  Qualification as an Eligible Facilities Request. Upon receipt of an application for an
eligible facilities request, the City will review the application to determine whether it qualifies
as an eligible facilities request.

C.  Time Frame for Review. Within sixty (60) days of the date on which a network provider
submits an eligible facilities request application, the City must approve the application unless it
determines that the application is not covered by this section.

D. Tolling of the Time Frame for Review. The sixty (60) day review period begins to run when
the application is submitted, and may be tolled only by mutual agreement by the City and the
applicant or in cases where the City determines that the application is incomplete. The time frame
for review of an eligible facilities request is not tolled by a moratorium on the review of
applications.

1. To toll the time frame for incompleteness, the City must provide written notice to
the applicant within thirty (30) days of receipt of the application, clearly and specifically
delineating all missing documents or information required in the application.

2. The time frame for review begins running again when the applicant makes a
supplemental submission in response to the City’s notice of incompleteness.

3. Following a supplemental submission, the City will notify the applicant within ten
(10) days that the supplemental submission did not provide the information identified in
the original notice delineating missing information. The time frame is tolled in the case of
second or subsequent notices pursuant to the procedures identified in this subsection.
Second or subsequent notice of incompleteness may not specify missing documents or
information that was not delineated in the original notice of incompleteness.

E.  Determination That Application Is Not an Eligible Facilities Request. If the City
determines that the applicant’s request does not qualify as an eligible facilities request, the City
must deny the application.

F.  Failure to Act. In the event the City fails to approve or deny a request for an eligible
facilities request within the time frame for review (accounting for any tolling), the request is
deemed granted. The deemed grant does not become effective until the applicant notifies the City
in writing after the review period has expired (accounting for any tolling) that the application has
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been deemed granted.

G. To the extent feasible, additional antennas and equipment shall maintain the appearance
intended by the original facility, including, but not limited to, color, screening, landscaping,
camouflage, concealment techniques, mounting configuration, or architectural treatment.

13-9-9 New building-mounted macro wireless communications services facilities standards.

A.  Generally. Wireless communications services facilities located on the roof or on the side
of the building shall be grouped together, integrated to the maximum possible degree with the
building design, placed toward the center of the roof and/or thoroughly screened from residential
building views and from public views using radio frequency-transparent panels. Building-
mounted wireless communications services facilities shall be painted with nonreflective colors
to match the existing surface where the antennas are mounted.

B.  Height. The following requirements shall apply:

Il Mixed-Use Town Center and Mixed-Use Town Center North zones. For buildings
at, or which exceed, the height limit of the underlying zone, antennas shall be flush-
mounted, and no portion of the antenna may extend above the building on which it is
mounted. For buildings below the height limit, antennas may be built to the maximum
height of the zone provided they are screened consistent with the existing building in terms
of color, architectural style and material. Flush-mounted antennas may encroach into a
required setback or into the City right-of-way if a right-of-way use agreement is established
with the City. Antennas shall not project into the right-of-way by more than two feet and
shall provide a minimum clearance height of 20 feet over any pedestrian or vehicular right-
of-way.

2 Outside the Mixed-Use Town Center and Mixed-Use Town Center North zones.
The maximum height of building- mounted facilities and equipment shall not exceed ten
(10) feet above the top of the roof on which the facility is located. This standard applies to
all buildings regardless of whether they are at or above the maximum height of the
underlying zone. Such antennas must be well integrated with the existing structure or
designed to look like common rooftop structures such as chimneys, vents and stovepipes.

C. Equipment Enclosure. Equipment enclosures for building-mounted wireless
communications services facilities shall first be located within the building on which the facility
is located. If an equipment enclosure within the building is reasonably unavailable, then an
equipment enclosure may be incorporated into the roof design provided the enclosure meets the
height requirement for the zone. If the equipment can be screened by placing the equipment
below existing parapet walls, no additional screening is required. If screening is required, then
the screening must be consistent with the existing building in terms of color, architectural style
and material. Finally, if there is no other choice but to locate the equipment enclosure on the
ground, the equipment must be enclosed within an accessory structure which meets the setbacks
of the underlying zone and be screened in accordance this chapter.

D.  Feed Lines and Coaxial Cables. Feed lines and cables should be located below the parapet
of the rooftop, if present. If the feed lines and cables are visible from a public right-of-way or
adjacent property, they must be painted to match the color scheme of the building.
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Acceptable Building-Mounted Macro Example

13-9-10 New structure-mounted macro wireless communications services Tfacilities
standards.

A.  Generally. Wireless communications services facilities located on structures other than
buildings, such as utility poles, light poles, flag poles, transformers, and/or tanks, shall be
designed to blend with these structures and be mounted on them in an inconspicuous manner.
Installation of wireless communications services facilities on utility poles, light poles,
transformers, etc. shall comply with the requirements of Puget Sound Energy, as applicable.

IL Wireless communications services facilities located on structures within city rights-
of- way adjacent to any residential zone shall satisfy the following requirement:

a No metal pole or tower shall be used within the right-of-way adjacent to a
residentially zoned neighborhood unless required in order to comply with the
provisions of the State Electrical Code. Wooden poles of height and type generally
in use in the surrounding residential neighborhood shall be used unless prohibited
by the State Electrical Code.

2. Wireless communications services facilities located on structures shall be painted
with nonreflective colors in a scheme that blends with the underlying structure.

B.  Height.

[ The maximum height of structure-mounted wireless communications services
facilities shall not exceed the maximum height specified for each structure or zoning
district; provided the wireless communications services facilities may extend up to six feet
above the top of the structure on which the wireless communications services facilities is
installed. Antennas and related equipment shall be mounted as close as practicable to the

structure.
2. Only one extension is permitted per structure.
3. If installed on an electrical transmission or distribution pole, a maximum 15-foot

vertical separation is required from the height of the existing power lines at the site (prior
to any pole replacement) to the bottom of the antenna. This vertical separation is intended
to allow wireless carriers to comply with the electrical utility’s requirements for separation
between their transmission lines and the carrier’s antennas.

C.  Equipment Enclosure. If the equipment enclosure is within the right-of-way, the enclosure
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shall be underground. It is preferred that equipment enclosures on private property be
underground; however, if there is no other feasible option but to locate the equipment enclosure
above ground on private property, the equipment must be enclosed within an accessory structure
which meets the setbacks of the underlying zone and be screened in accordance this chapter.

D.  Feed Lines and Coaxial Cable. Feed lines and cables must be painted to closely match the
color scheme of the structure which supports the antennas.

E.  Only wireless communication providers with a valid master permit shall be eligible to apply
for a right-of-way construction permit, which shall be required prior to installation of facilities
within the City right-of-way and be in addition to other permits specified in this chapter.

Acceptable Structure-Mounted Macro Example Unacceptable Structure-Mounted Macro Example

13-9-11 New monopole (macro wireless communications services facilities) standards.

A. To the greatest extent technically feasible, applicants for new monopole facilities must
build mounts capable of accommodating at least one additional carrier.

B.  No part of a monopole, antennas or antenna equipment may exceed the maximum height
of the zone where the facility is located.

C.  Monopoles must be completely shrouded. All antennas, equipment and cables must be
concealed.

D.  All monopole facilities must conform to the following site development standards:

il. To the greatest extent possible, monopole facilities shall be located where existing
trees, existing structures and other existing site features camouflage these facilities and/or
stealth technology is utilized. Stealth technology will be reviewed by the Architectural
Design Board for compliance with Architectural Design Review (ADR) Guidelines.

2. Existing mature vegetation should be retained to the greatest possible degree in
order to help conceal the facility.

~

3. It is preferred that equipment enclosures on private property be underground;
however, if there is no other feasible option but to locate the equipment enclosure above
ground on private property, the equipment must be enclosed within an accessory structure
which meets the setbacks of the underlying zone and be screened in accordance with this
chapter. See OMC 13-9-4 for monopole prohibited locations.
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Acceptable Monopole Macro Examples

13-9-12 Temporary facilities.

A.  The installation of a “cell-on-wheels” or COWs and the installation site shall comply with
all applicable laws, statutes, requirements, rules, regulations, and codes, including, but not
limited to, the adopted Building, Fire, and Electrical Codes.

B.  All COWs and related appurtenances sited for emergencies, shall be completely removed
from the installation site within 30 days of the date of the end of the emergency as determined
by the City Administrator or designee.

13-9-13 Small wireless communications services facilities standards (small cell).

Unlike macro facilities which are intended to provide wireless coverage over large areas, the goal
of a small wireless deployment is to provide additional capacity in localized areas, including
residential neighborhoods, using smaller antennas and equipment. The intent of this section is to
describe the City’s location options for small cell deployments and provide appropriate design
standards to ensure that the negative visual impacts of wireless facilities are minimized, and the
City’s long-term goal of utility undergrounding is not frustrated.

A.  Permitted locations.

1. Small cell attachments to buildings are permitted in any zone and are not subject to
the dispersion requirement below.

2. Dispersion Requirement: No two small wireless facilities shall be located within
300 lineal feet of each other as measured along the right-of-way line.

3. Installations in the Mixed-Use Town Center and Mixed-Use Town Center North
zones shall be limited to building attachments or through the replacement or new
installation of a street light designed to contain a small wireless facility that complies with
the adopted architectural design review guidelines.

B.  Location options.

Wireless providers shall attempt to site their small wireless communications services facilities
pursuant to the following siting preferences (in descending order starting with the most
preferred):

1. Outside the Right-of-Way / Private Property:

a. Roof-mounted on an existing building.

1) Small cell facilities may be built to the maximum height of the
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underlying zone provided they are screened consistent with the existing
building in terms of color, architectural style and materials.

2) Such facilities must be concealed and well-integrated with the existing
structure or designed and located to look like common rooftop elements such
as chimneys, elevator penthouses or screened HVAC equipment.

3) Height exception. Antennas may be located on buildings that are
nonconforming for height provided that, they are constructed to be no taller
than the adjacent fagade or an existing parapet. Equipment may be located
on a roof behind a parapet that is nonconforming for height.

b. Fagade-mounted on an existing 25 g Example
o1 g wireless panel
bUIldlng- A Antenias
G wonited to
1) Small cell antennas may be 1 S fagade &
mounted to the side of a building if 3 : N B e w
. matcn

they do not interrupt and are :

integrated with the building’s
architectural theme.

2) To the extent technically
feasible, new architectural features
such as columns, pilasters, corbels,
or similar ornamentation that
conceals the antennas should be
used if it complements the
architecture  of the existing
building.

3) If concealment is not feasible,
the antennas must be camouflaged.
The smallest feasible mounting
brackets must be used, and the
antennas must be painted and
textured to match the adjacent
building surfaces, to the extent
technically feasible.

4) Facade-mounted antennas may
encroach into a required setback.
Antennas may not project into the
right-of-way more than twelve (12)
inches and shall provide a
minimum clearance height of 20
feet over any pedestrian or
vehicular right-of-way.

5) To the extent technically
feasible, all other equipment must
be located within the building,
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screened by an existing parapet, or
completely concealed and well-
integrated  with the existing
structure or designed and located to
look like common rooftop elements
such as chimneys, elevator
penthouses or screened HVAC
equipment. Exposed cabling/wiring
is prohibited.

6) Height exception. Antennas
may be located on buildings that are
nonconforming for height provided
that, they are constructed to be no
taller than the adjacent fagade or an
existing parapet. Equipment may
be located on a roof behind a
parapet that is nonconforming for
height.

c. Freestanding small cell on private property
1) Dimensional requirements

a) A freestanding small cell may not exceed 50 feet in height measured
from the top of the foundation to the top of the cantenna/antenna.

b) The cantenna/antenna must have a maximum outer diameter of 16
inches, to the extent technically feasible, and be tapered to transition
from the upper pole.
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2) Appearance requirements

a) All  small cell carrier
equipment must be housed
internal to the equipment
cabinet or hidden within the
cantenna/antenna. The
cantenna/antenna, upper pole
and equipment cabinet must be
the same color, unless
otherwise approved by the City.

b) All hardware connections
shall be hidden from view.

c) To the extent technically
feasible, no equipment may be
attached to the outside of the

This diagram shows
a typical pole and its
elements. Referto
OMC 13-9-13,
subsection B.2.b for
street light
mstallations m the
Mixed-Use Towu
Center and Mixed-
Use Town Center

North zones.

pole.

d) The freestanding small cell

pole must be served by o =
underground power and fiber, if ‘

fiber is to be connected.

e) May provide space for .. .. . . L b
future collocation by another =~

provider inside the same =1
freestanding small cell pole

facilities.

3) Placement requirements. Freestanding small cells shall be located as
follows, to the extent technically feasible:

a) Located such that they in no way impede, obstruct, or hinder the
usual pedestrian or vehicular travel, or violate applicable law.

b) Outside the Residential Zones, Mixed-Use Town Center, and Mixed-
Use Town Center North zones.

c) Not to be located along the frontage of a Historic building, deemed
historic on a federal, state, or local level.

d) Not to significantly create a new obstruction to property sight lines.
e) In alignment with existing trees, utility poles, and streetlights.
f) With appropriate safety clearance from existing utilities.

g) On the same side of the street as existing power lines, regardless of
whether power is underground or overhead;

h) No two freestanding small cell poles may be located within 300 lineal

25



feet of each other as measured along the right-of-way line.

2. Within the right-of-way - existing/replaced hollow street light pole or utility pole:

a. Installation of small  wireless
communications services facilities on
street lights and utility poles shall comply
with the requirements of Puget Sound
Energy, as applicable.

b. Combination small cell and streetlight
pole should be located where an existing
streetlight pole can be utilized or removed
and replaced with a pole that allows for
small wireless facility installation in the
same location.

c. Pole design shall match or be
compatible with the aesthetics of existing
streetlights installed adjacent to the pole. In
the Mixed-Use Town Center and Mixed-
Use Town Center North zones, poles
designed to contain a small wireless facility
shall comply with the adopted architectural
design review guidelines.

d. A decorative transition shall be
installed over the equipment cabinet upper
bolts, or a decorative base cover shall be
installed to match the equipment cabinet
size.

e. An internal divider shall separate
electrical wiring and fiber, per the pole
owner.

f. Weatherproof grommets shall be
integrated in the pole design to allow cable
to exit the pole, for external shrouds,
without water seeping into the pole.

g. For installations on existing street
lights, the antenna shall either be fully
concealed within the pole or placed on top
of the pole. A cantenna/antenna on top of a
pole shall be integrated into the pole design
so that it appears as a continuation of the
original pole, including colored or painted
to match or be compatible with the pole.
All cabling and mounting
hardware/brackets from the bottom of the
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antenna to the top of the pole shall be fully
concealed and integrated with the pole, to
the extent technically feasible.

h. Street light pole shall be located as
follows, to the extent technically feasible:

1) In a manner that does not
impede, obstruct, or hinder
pedestrian or vehicular travel.

a) In alignment with existing
trees, utility poles, and
streetlights.

b) Within the street amenity
zone wherever possible.

¢) Equal distance between
trees when possible, with a
minimum of 15-foot separation
such that no  proposed
disturbance shall occur within
the critical root zone of any tree.

d) With appropriate clearance
from existing utilities.

e) Outside the clear sight
triangle, as determined by the
City, at intersection corners.

f) 10-feet away from the
intersection of an alley with a
street.

2) All conduit, cables, wires and
fiber must be routed internally in
the light pole.
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3. Within the right-of-way - existing single-phase power pole (installation on top of

ole):

a. Installation of  small  wireless
communications services facilities on
existing single-phase power poles shall
comply with the requirements of Puget
Sound Energy.

b. A cantenna/antenna on top of a pole
shall be integrated into the pole design so
that it appears as a continuation of the
original pole, including colored or painted
to match or be compatible with the pole.
All cabling and mounting
hardware/brackets from the bottom of the
antenna to the top of the pole shall be fully
concealed and integrated with the pole, to
the extent technically feasible.

c. Equipment enclosures and all ancillary
equipment and boxes shall be colored or
painted to match the color of the surface of
the pole in which they are attached. All
related equipment shall not be mounted
more than five (5) inches from the surface
of the pole, unless a further distance is
technically required, and is confirmed in
writing by the pole owner.

d. All cables and wires shall be routed
through conduit along the outside of the
pole. The outside conduit shall be colored
or painted to match or be compatible with
the color of the surface of the pole. The
number of conduit shall be minimized to
the number technically necessary to
accommodate a small wireless facility.

e. An existing power pole in a proposed
location may be replaced with a taller pole
for the purpose of accommodating a small
wireless facility; provided, that the height
of any replacement pole may not exceed
fifty (50) feet to the top of the antenna(s),
or the maximum height allowed by the
definition of “small wireless facility”,
whichever is greater.
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f. The replacement pole shall comply
with the City’s sidewalk clearance
requirements and ADA requirements.

Within the right-of-way - freestanding small cell pole or new street light

a. Refer to OMC 13-9-13, subsections
(B)(1)(¢) for dimensional and appearance
standards. Installation of small wireless
communications services facilities on
street lights shall comply with the
requirements of Puget Sound Energy, as
applicable.

b. New street light. The replacement
street light pole requirements are also
applicable to the new street light option,
except that a street light would be
incorporated into the design of the facility.
In addition, the following applies, to the
extent technically feasible:

1) A street light shall not be
installed unless it has been
identified by the Public Works
Director or designee that a street
light is necessary at the location in
which the small cell facility is
proposed. A street light may be
required to be installed instead of a
freestanding pole.

2) In the Mixed-Use Town Center
and Mixed-Use Town Center North
zones, poles designed to contain a
small wireless facility shall comply
with the adopted architectural
design review guidelines.

This diagram shows
a tvpical pole and its
elements with street
light. Refer to OMC
13-9-13, subsection
B.2.b for street light
installations in the
Mixed-Use Town
Center and Mixed-
1se Town Center
Nortl zongs.

c. Placement requirements for freestanding small cell poles. Freestanding small
cell poles shall be located in compliance with the following, to the extent technically

feasible:

1) Located such that they in no way impede, obstruct, or hinder the usual
pedestrian or vehicular travel, obstruct the legal access to or use of the public
ROW, violate applicable law, violate or fail to substantially comply with

public ROW design standards,

specifications, or design district

requirements, violate the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990,
or in any way create a risk to public health, safety, or welfare.
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2) Outside the Mixed-Use Town Center and Mixed-Use Town Center
North zones.

3) Not to be located along the frontage of a Historic building, deemed
historic on a federal, state, or local level.

4) Not to significantly create a new obstruction to property sight lines.
5) In alignment with existing trees, utility poles, and streetlights.
6) Within the street amenity zone wherever possible.

7) Equal distance between trees when possible, with a minimum of 15-foot
separation such that no proposed disturbance shall occur within the critical
root zone of any tree.

8) With appropriate clearance from existing utilities.

9) Outside the clear sight triangle, as determined by the City, at intersection
corners.

10) 10-feet away from the intersection of an alley with a street.

11)On the same side of the street as existing power lines, regardless of
whether power is underground or overhead;

12) No two freestanding small cell poles may be located within 300 lineal
feet of each other as measured along the right-of-way line.

5. Within the right-of-way - existing power pole (installation below top of pole):

a. Installation of small  wireless

communications services facilities on

existing power poles shall comply with the T
requirements of Puget Sound Energy. .

b. Antennas should be placed in an effort
to  minimize visual clutter and

obtrusiveness. This diagram
ilxo;\'s an
. . . example plﬁ‘\\'ﬁ(
c. The inside edge of a side mounted pele ud s
canister antenna/equipment shroud shall be Sommact Puget
no more than twelve (12) inches from the el
specitications
surface of the pOIC. and equipment.

d. Antennas and equipment located within =i,
a unified enclosure shall not exceed twenty "
eight (28) cubic feet. To the extent

possible, the unified enclosure shall be A
placed so as to appear as an integrated part

of the pole or behind banners or signs.

e. The unified enclosure may not be
placed more than six (6) inches from the
surface of the pole, unless a further
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distance is technically required and
confirmed in writing by the pole owner.

f. Equipment enclosures and all ancillary
equipment and boxes shall be colored or
painted to match the color of the surface of
the pole in which they are attached. All
related equipment shall not be mounted
more than six (6) inches from the surface
of the pole, unless a further distance is
technically required, and is confirmed in
writing by the pole owner.

g. All cables and wires shall be routed
through conduit along the outside of the
pole. The outside conduit shall be colored
or painted to match the color of the surface
of the pole. The number of conduit shall be
minimized to the number technically
necessary to accommodate a small wireless
facility.

h. An existing power pole in a proposed
location may be replaced with a taller pole
for the purpose of accommodating a small
wireless facility; provided, that the height
of any replacement pole may not extend
more than ten (10) feet above the height of
the existing pole, or the maximum height
allowed by the definition of “small wireless
facility,” whichever is greater, unless a
further height increase is required and
confirmed in writing by the pole owner and
that such height increase is the minimum
extension possible to provide sufficient
separation and/or clearance from electrical
and wireline facilities.

i. The replacement pole shall comply
with the City’s sidewalk clearance
requirements and ADA requirements.



6. Within the right-of-way — strand-mounted

a. Installation of small  wireless
communications services facilities
mounted on cables strung between existing
utility poles shall comply with the
requirements of Puget Sound Energy. P —

b. Each strand mounted antenna shall not
exceed three (3) cubic feet in volume.

c. Only two strand mounted facilities are
permitted between any two existing poles.

d. The strand mounted devices shall be This graphic is intended o represent an example statd
placed as close as possible to the nearest -mo}llvlf amcn}um. ‘C‘;onmct Pugq ngnd Enelg_\ilrjm.theai.r»

tility pole, in no event more than five (5) specifications and equipment requirements - allowances.
u s

feet from the pole unless a greater distance
is technically necessary or required for
safety clearance and confirmed in writing
by the pole owner.

e. No strand mounted device shall be
located in or above the portion of the 11 EQUIRMENT
roadway open to vehicular traffic.

f. Ground mounted equipment to
accommodate such strand mounted

- . . This diagram
facilities is not permitted, except when shows ail
1 di fsfi . tcabinet example power
placed in pre-existing equipment cabinets, L
underground or on zoned property or when (, flﬁllrﬁ%{u o
. Qlirac ot
required by another party, such as an Sound Energy
electrical meter for et powet
: pole
. specifications
g. Pole mounted equipment enclosures | and equipment.
and all ancillary equipment and boxes shall .
be colored or painted to match the color of &
the surface of the pole in which they are =
attached. All related equipment shall not be [
mounted more than six (6) inches from the
surface of the pole, unless a further 1
distance is technically required, and is i .
confirmed in writing by the pole owner. S i
1) All cables and wires shall be - ’
. |
routed through conduit along the «oooreoe

outside of the pole. The outside
conduit shall be colored or painted
to match the color of the surface of
the pole. The number of conduit
shall be minimized to the number
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C.

technically necessary to
accommodate a small cell wireless
facility

h. Such strand mounted devices must be
installed with the minimum excess exterior
cabling or wires (other than the original
strand) necessary to meet the technological
needs of the facility.

Location preference criteria.

A proposed small wireless facility location shall only be allowed in a lower ranking location as
provided in the location hierarchy in subsection B above, if the applicant can demonstrate that
all higher-ranking locations are not technically feasible to locate the particular small wireless
facility.

D.

Small wireless facility general standards.

1. Ground mounted equipment in the rights-of-way is prohibited, unless such
facilities are placed underground, or the applicant can demonstrate that pole mounted or
undergrounded equipment is technically infeasible. If ground mounted equipment is
necessary, then the applicant must submit a plan of how the equipment will be concealed
that is consistent with these standards. Generators located in the rights-of-way are
prohibited.

2. No equipment shall be operated to produce noise in violation of Chapter 5-8 OMC.

3. Replacement poles, new poles, and all equipment shall comply with the Americans
with Disabilities Act (“ADA”), city construction and sidewalk clearance standards, and
state and federal regulations in order to provide a clear and safe passage within the rights-
of-way.

4. Replacement poles shall be located as near as possible to the existing pole with the
requirement to remove the abandoned pole.

5. The design criteria as applicable to small wireless facilities described herein shall
be considered concealment elements and such small cell facilities may only be expanded
upon through an eligible facilities request described in Section 13-9-8 OMC, when the
modification does not defeat the concealment elements of the facility.

6. No signage, message, or identification other than the manufacturer’s identification
or identification required by governing law is allowed to be portrayed on any antenna, and
any such signage on equipment enclosures shall be of the minimum amount possible to
achieve the intended purpose; provided, that signs are permitted as concealment
techniques where appropriate.

7. Antennas and related equipment may not be illuminated except for security
reasons, required by a federal or state authority, or unless approved as part of a
concealment element plan.

8. Side arm mounts for antennas or equipment are prohibited.

33



13-9-14 Abandonment or discontinuation of use.

A. At such time that a licensed carrier plans to abandon or discontinue operation of a wireless
communications services facility, such carrier will notify the City by certified U.S. Mail of the
proposed date of abandonment or discontinuation of operations. Such notice shall be given no
less than 30 days prior to abandonment or discontinuation of operations.

B.  Inthe event that a licensed carrier fails to give such notice, the wireless communications
services facilities shall be considered abandoned upon the discovery of such discontinuation of
operations.

C.  Within 90 days from the date of abandonment or discontinuation of use, the carrier shall
physically remove the wireless communications services facilities. “Physically remove” shall
include, but not be limited to:

L. Removal of antennas, mounts or racks, the equipment enclosure, screening,
cabling and the like from the subject property.

2. Transportation of the materials removed to a repository outside of the City.

3. Restoration of the wireless communications services facilities site to its pre-permit

condition, as determined by the City, and that any landscaping provided by the wireless
communications services facilities operator may remain in place.

4, If a carrier fails to remove a wireless communications services facility in
accordance with this section, the City shall have the authority to enter the subject property
and physically remove the facility. Costs for removal of the wireless communications
services facility shall be charged to the wireless communications services facilities owner
or operator in the event the City removes the facility.

13-9-15 Maintenance.

A The applicant shall maintain the wireless communications services facility to standards
that may be imposed by the City by ordinance or through a permit condition. Such maintenance
shall include, but not be limited to, repair of damaged shrouds or enclosures, painting, structural
integrity, and landscaping.

B.  In the event the applicant fails to maintain the facility, the City of Orting may undertake
enforcement action as allowed by existing codes and regulations.

13-9-16 Definitions.

A, Antenna(s). Any apparatus designed for the purpose of emitting radiofrequency (RF)
radiation, to be operated or operating from a fixed location pursuant to Commission
authorization, for the provision of personal wireless service and any commingled information
services.

B.  “Cell-on-wheels (COW)” are used to provide temporary service, usually for special events,
before the installation of a permanent wireless site, or in emergencies.

C.  ZCo-location” means the mounting or installation of an antenna on an existing tower,
bulldlng or structure for the purpose of transmitting and/or receiving radio frequency signals for
communications purposes, whether or not there is an existing antenna on the structure.
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D.  Concealed facility. A wireless communications services facility where: (A) the antennas,
mounting apparatus, and any associated equipment are fully recessed/concealed from all sides
with a structure that achieves total integration with the existing building or structure; and (B) all
cable is routed internally or completely screened from view; and (C) the associated equipment is
completely within the building or structure, placed in an underground vault, or is within another
element such as a bench, mail box or kiosk.

E. “Distributed antenna system (DAS)” is a network of spatially separated antenna sites
connected to a common source that provides wireless service within a discrete geographic area
or structure.

F.  Equipment. Any equipment, switches, wiring, cabling, power sources, shelters or cabinets
associated with an antenna, located at the same fixed location as the antenna, and, when
collocated on a structure, is mounted or installed at the same time as such antenna.

G “Freestanding small cell pole” is a freestanding structure which consists of a single vertical
pole, fixed into the ground and/or attached to a foundation built for the sole purpose of supporting
small wireless antennas and associated equipment.

H  “Guyed tower” means a monopole or lattice tower that is tied to the ground or other surface
by diagonal cables.
L “Lattice tower” is a wireless communication support structure which consists of metal

crossed strips or bars to support antennas and related equipment.

X “Licensed carrier” is a company authorized by the Federal Communications Commission
to build and operate a commercial mobile radio services system.

K. Macro cell facility (macro facility). A large wireless communications services facility that
provides radio frequency coverage served by a high-power cellular system. Generally, macro cell
antennas are mounted on ground-based towers, rooftops and other existing structures, at a height
that provides a clear view over the surrounding buildings and terrain. Macro cell facilities
typically contain antennas that are greater than three (3) cubic feet per antenna and typically
cover large geographic arcas with relatively high capacity and are capable of hosting multiple
wireless service providers.

L. “Monopole” means a freestanding structure which consists of a single vertical pole, fixed
into the ground and/or attached to a foundation with no guy wires built for the sole or primary
purpose of supporting macro antennas and their associated equipment.

M. Poles. Utility poles, light poles or other types of poles, used primarily to support electrical
wires, telephone wires, television cable, lighting, or guide posts; or are constructed for the sole
purpose of supporting wireless communications services facilities.

N.  “Satellite earth station antenna” includes any antenna in any zoning district that:

L. Is designed to receive direct broadcast satellite service, including direct-to-home
satellite services, and that is one meter or less in diameter;

2. Is two meters or less in diameter in areas where commercial or industrial uses are
generally permitted;

3. Is designed to receive programming services by means of multi-point distribution
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services, instructional television fixed services, and local multi-point distribution services,
that is one meter or less in diameter or diagonal measurement; and

4. Is designed to receive television broadcast signals.

O.  Small wireless facility (or small cell node / small cell facility). A wireless facility that meets
each of the following conditions:

1. The facilities:
a. Are mounted on structures 50 feet or less in height including their antennas, or

b. Are mounted on structures no more than 10 percent taller than other adjacent
structures, or

c. Do not extend existing structures on which they are located to a height of more
than 50 feet or by more than 10 percent, whichever is greater;

2 Each antenna associated with the deployment, excluding antenna equipment, is not
more than three cubic feet in volume;

~

3. All other wireless equipment associated with the structure, including the wireless
equipment associated with the antenna and any pre-existing associated equipment on the
structure, is no more than 28 cubic feet in volume;

4. The facilities do not require antenna structure registration under FCC rule;

5] The facilities do not result in human exposure to radiofrequency radiation in excess
of the applicable safety standards specified by FCC rule.

P.  “Unlicensed wireless services” means the offering of communications services using duly
authorized devices which do not require individual licenses but does not mean the provision of
direct- to-home satellite services.

O.  Wireless communications services facilities / wireless communications facility (WCF)
means an unstaffed facility for the transmission and reception of radio or microwave signals used
for commercial communications. A WCF provides services which include cellular phone,
personal communication services, other mobile radio services, and any other service provided by
wireless common carriers licensed by the Federal Communications Commission (FCC). WCFs
are composed of two or more of the following components:

* Antenna;

e Mount;

* Equipment enclosure;
* Security barrier.

R.  Wireless communications services facilities / wireless communications facility (WCF),
“building-mounted” means a wireless communications services facility mounted to the roof, wall
or chimney of a building.

S.  Wireless communications services facilities / wireless communications facility (WCF),
“camouflaged” means a wireless communications services facility that is disguised, hidden, or
integrated with an existing structure that is not a monopole, guyed or lattice tower, or placed
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within an existing or proposed structure.

T.  Wireless communications services facilities / wireless communications facility (WCF),
“equipment enclosure” means a small structure, shelter, cabinet, or vault used to house and
protect the electronic equipment necessary for processing wireless communication signals.
Associated equipment may include air conditioning and emergency generators.

U. Wireless communications services facilities / wireless communications facility (WCF),
“related equipment” is all equipment ancillary to a wireless communications services facilities
such as coaxial cable, GPS receivers, conduit and connectors.

V. Wireless communications services facilities / wireless communications facility (WCF),
“structure-mounted” means a wireless communications services facility located on structures
other than buildings, such as light poles, utility poles, flag poles, transformers, and/or tanks.

W. “Wireless communication services” means any personal wireless services as defined in the
Federal Telecommunications Act of 1996, including federally licensed wireless communications
services consisting of cellular services, personal communications services (PCS), specialized
mobile radio services (SMR), enhanced specialized mobile radio services (ESMR), paging, and
similar services that currently exist or that may be developed in the future.
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City Of Orting
/ Council Agenda Summary Sheet

) ) Committee Study Session Council
Subject: Resolution
No. 2019-17, Agenda Item #: CGA AB19-63 AB19-63
Declaring property For Agenda of: S50 9.18.19 9.25.19
as surplus and
QuthoRzIngilsgosal: Department: Parks and Recreation

Date Submitted: | 8.27.19

Cost of ltem: N/A
Amount Budgeted: N/A
Unexpended Balance: N/A
Bars #: N/A
Timeline:
Submitted By: Beckie Meek

Fiscal Note: N/A

Attachments: Resolution No 2019-17

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

Orting Parks and Recreation no longer hosts Youth Tackle Football or Youth
Basketball. Therefore we are no longer in need of the items listed in Exhibit A
of the Resolution for surplus.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Move to the consent agenda for the 9.25.19 meeting.

FUTURE MOTION: To Approve Resolution No. 2019-17, A Resolution Of The City Of
Orting, Washington, Declaring The Property Described In Exhibit "A" As Surplus
Property And Authorizing Disposal.




CITY OF ORTING
WASHINGTON
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-17

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF ORTING, WASHINGTON, DECLARING THE
PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT “A” AS SURPLUS PROPERTY AND
AUTHORIZING DISPOSAL

WHEREAS, it has been determined that the City has no further use of certain item(s) listed in attached Exhibit
“A”; and

WHEREAS, the City Council may determine that these items are surplus property; and

WHEREAS, the fair market value, if any, is determined for the surplus property and its disposal will be for the
common benefit; and

WHEREAS, at time of sale of surplus item(s), moneys, if any, will be allocated back to the appropriate
department; and

WHEREAS, the City Administrator will oversee the sale of these item(s), or other method of disposal,
including destruction, in the event the City Administrator determines that the property has no fair market value;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ORTING, WASHINGTON, DOES
RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The items described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference are
surplus to the needs of the City and the City Administrator is hereby authorized to dispose of such items at auction or a
public sale that complies with applicable law; provided that, those items that have been determined to have no market
value or the value of which will exceed the cost of disposal may be donated for charitable purposes or otherwise lawfully
disposed of.

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF ONTHE
DAY OF ,20

CITY OF ORTING

Joshua Penner, Mayor
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:

Jane Montgomery, City Clerk, CMC

Approved as to form:

Charlotte Archer, City Attorney
inslee, Best, Doezie & Ryder, P.S.



EXHIBIT A

Surplus:
| GEAR/EQUIPMENT | DESCRIPTION QTY | VALUE TOTAL VALUE

Helmets Riddell w/Mask & Chin 38 $10.00 $380.00
Strap ~ Variety of Sizes
(Manufactured 2011)

Helmets Riddell w/Mask & Chin 39 $10.00 $390.00
Strap ~ Variety of Sizes
(Manufactured 2012)

Accessory Kit Revolution Accessory Kit ~ 3 $30.00 $90.00
Kit of Helmet Parts

Chin Straps Adams Unopened Hard 18 $5.00 $90.00
Chin Straps

Chin Straps Adams Soft Chin Straps 30 $3.00 $90.00

Shoulder Pads Riddell/Schutt/Adams Pads 110 $15.00 $1650.00
~ Variety of Sizes

Pants Practice Pants Black ~ 80 $2.00 $160.00
Variety of Sizes (Pads
Inserted)

Pants Game Pants Black with Red 125 $3.00 $375.00
at Bottom ~ Variety of
Sizes (Pads Inserted)

Jerseys Black with Red Side ~ 52 $0 No Value have “Orting”
Variety of Sizes (Game on Front
Jerseys)

Jerseys Red with Black Side ~ 30 $0 No Value have “Orting”
Variety of Sizes (Game on front
Jerseys)

Jerseys Red with # on back only ~ 12 $0 No Value Old & Worn
Variety of Sizes (Practice
Jersey)

Jerseys Black with Player Name on 3 $0 No Value has past
back~ Variety of Sizes player name on back
(Game Jersey)

Jerseys Black with Orting/# ~ 12 $0 No Value has “Orting”
Variety of Sizes (Practice & Number
Jersey)

Jerseys Red with Orting/# ~ Variety 11 $0 No Value has “Orting”
of Sizes (Practice Jersey) & Number

Jerseys Red with # ~ Variety of 4 $0 No Value Old & Worn
Sizes (Practice Jersey)

Jerseys Black Mesh With # & some 13 $0 No Value Old & Worn
with Orting on front~

Variety of Sizes (Practice




Jersey)

Tackle Dummies Red Holding ~ Body Shield 17 $25.00 $425.00

Tackle Dummies Red Half Round ~ Stand Up 20 $30.00 $600.00

Tackle Dummies Black Half ~ Stand Up 5 $40.00 $200.00

Tackle Dummies Black Round ~ Stand Up 16 $50.00 $800.00

Helmets Riddell w/Mask & Chin 15 $0 No Value pastits 10
Strap Variety of Sizes years (will be
(Manufactured 2008/2009) destroyed)

| Basketballs Variety of Sizes & Colors 140 $3.00 $420.00




\ City Of Orting
’ Council Agenda Summary Sheet

. Committee Study Session Council
Subject: Cemetery
Land Surplus - Agenda Item #: CGA AB19-65
Boundary Line For Agenda of: 9.5.19 9.18.19
Adjustment
Department: Admin
Date Submitted: | 9/11
Cost of Item: S Unknown
Amount Budgeted: S0
Unexpended Balance: SO0
Bars #:
Timeline:
Submitted By: Bethune

Fiscal Note: The BLA would ostensibly make the property sellable and the revenues from the
sale would be used for capital improvements to the cemetery.

_l_\ttachments:

SUMMARY STATEMENT: The staff with support of Council has expressed an
interest in surplusing the 9.5 acres of land adjacent to the city cemetery, in part,
to fund capital improvements to the cemetery and reduce labor costs.
Cemetery revenue has dropped precipitously in recent years as cultural
standards have changed. The property is about 9.5 acres. Itis important to
have a significant buffer between the two properties to preserve the look of the
cemetery. The proposal is to do a BLA to add about 1.5 acres of land to the
cemetery to create the buffer. The city was required to go out for Request for
Qualifications for this service. There were two respondents. We cannot
negotiate price at this point. The City staff is recommending Skillings Connolly,
Inc, a surveying company out of Lacey as the most qualified. The other
companies’ application was rendered non-responsive.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Move to the consent agenda of 9.25.19

FUTURE MOTION: Move to authorize the Mayor to negotiate an agreement with
Skillings Connolly, Inc. to perform the service of a Boundary Line Adjustment for
the Cemetery and the city’s adjacent property.




City of Orting
Request for Qualifications
Survey Services
Orting, WA 98360

The City of Orting is seeking statements of qualifications from qualified firms to provide Survey Services.
All bid documents must be received by the City of Orting by Friday August 30t at 4:30 PM
The statement of qualifications shall be emailed to: Mark Bethune, City Administrator at
mbethune@cityoforting.org

City mailing address:
City of Orting

110 Train St. SE,

PO Box 489

Orting, WA 98360

Information:
1. The City owns a cemetery and an adjacent parcel #0418011001. The City plans to surplus the adjacent
parcel but needs to have a Boundary Line Adjustment that reduces the size of the adjacent property to
the cemetery and thus create a site buffer.

SCOPE OF SERVICES
Objective: Perform a Boundary Line Adjustment that increases the cemetery property 1.5 acres and stake
intervisible points along the +/- 660" boundary long line

Task 1: Work with the city to establish the new boundary line between the two parcels.
Task 2: Complete the Boundary Line Adjustment

Task 3: State intervisible hub and lath along the north line of the subject parcel until a point on the west side
where the slope is too great.
Task 4: Record the survey

SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS:
Responses to this RFQ must include the following:
e Statement of Intent: A statement of intent explaining why the firm is interested, highlighting the firm’s
qualifications to do the work.

e Approach: Describe the firm’s approach to delivering these services.

e Key Personnel: Highlight the roles, qualifications, and level of experience of key personnel who would be
assigned to this project.

e Project References: List a minimum of two (2) recent similar projects that the firm worked on within
the last two years including the price. Give the name and phone number of the project customers.



e Submittal size shall not be more than five (5) single-sided, 8 % x 11 pages using a single-spaced 12-point
font.

EVALUATION PROCEDURES:
Submittals will be evaluated by a Selection Committee. The Selection Committee will consider the completeness
of a Firm’s submittal and how well the submittal meets the needs of the City. The Selection Committee will use
the evaluation criteria (below). The City reserves the right to ask for additional qualifying information, shortlist
firms, conduct and evaluate interviews, and/or select the highest scoring consultant(s) from the written
qualification submittals received as a result of this RFQ.
EVALUATION CRITERIA:
All Submittals will be evaluated by the Selection Committee based on the following selection criteria. The
evaluation criteria will be considered in the following order of importance:

¢ Qualifications/Expertise of Firm

e Qualifications/Expertise of Project Manager

e Delivery Approach

e References/Past Performance

SCHEDULE
The City anticipates issuing Notice of Award on or before September 30th, 2019. It is expected that the selected
consultant will commence work within 30 days following issuance of a fully executed contract.



SKILLINGS

5 CONNOLLY

August 30, 2019 i — —_—

Contact:

| Ryan Smith, PLS, CFedS
Mr. Mark Bethune 5016 Lacey Blvd SE
City Administrator Lacey, WA 98503
City of Orting | Phone: 360.491.3399
110 Train Street SE Email: rsmith@skillings.com :
PO Box 489 - ] —
Orting, WA 98360

Re: Survey Services

Dear Mark,

Skillings Connolly, Inc. has provided consulting services in civil engineering, surveying,
transportation, wastewater, water, stormwater, and environmental since 1983. We look
forward to working with the City of Orting and serving your community.

Skillings will apply the following principles to provide valuable survey services for Orting:

Clear & Frequent Communication: Whether defining the scope or providing regular updates on
project status, clear communication paves the way to a successful project.

Understand your Business: Skillings knows that to really manage a project well we need to
understand our client’s business, culture, people, and purpose. We go beyond just doing the
job to doing it right.

Add Value: We look for innovative ways to add value to the projects we work on such as finding
a more efficient way to complete the work or taking photos for clarification of field data.

Exhibit Professionalism: We know that we represent your agency when working on-site.
Therefore, we always provide professional and knowledgeable staff to reflect well upon you.

Build Relationships: We build your respect and trust by doing what we say we will do, following
through on tasks, and providing fair pricing.

Manage Schedule & Budget: Skillings project managers meet each Wednesday to track
resource scheduling, budgeting, and monitoring of the project’s earned value.

We are committed to meeting your survey needs and building our relationship with the City.
| look forward to working with you.

Sincerely,

Skillings Connolly, Inc.

Thomas Skillings, PE

President and Principal-in-Charge

As a veteran-owned firm, Skillings focuses our energy on building relationships with our clients.



QUALIFICATIONS/EXPERTISE OF FIRM

Survey is a core service that Skillings
provides, and we maintain a skilled
in-house survey crew. We enjoy
working with local municipalities and
to help them solve problems and meet
their project goals.

Our Survey Manager, Ryan Smith, PLS,
CFedsS, will provide overall project
management for this work. Ryan will
lead development of the boundary
survey and legal descriptions required
for the Boundary Line Adjustment. His
location in our Lacey, Washington
office will make coordination with your
staff simpler. Participating as a team member with your staff will be especially important for
this work. Ryan will ensure that you are kept up to date on the project activities and progress.

Skillings’ Offices in Lacey, Washington

Ryan is a Professional Land Surveyor in the State of Washington and is also a Certified Federal
Surveyor. He has 13 years of boundary surveying experience and has managed numerous
boundary surveys, which gives him an understanding of the importance of survey accuracy as it
relates to his clients and the public.

Our Field Technician, Jack Swarthout II,
has 43 years of experience, primarily in
field as survey party chief and research
technician. Jack is highly efficient with
numerous robotic and conventional
total stations, and GPS including Leica,
Trimble, Topcon, Leitz, and Nikon. Heis
also proficient with Carlson and Survey
Pro data collection.

Qur Office Technician, Mike Lopez, has
25 years of experience civil drafting and
design, land surveying, and mapping. He
is proficient in AutoCAD and AutoCAD
Civil 3D, routinely prepares conceptual plans based on client desires and local municipal
regulations; completes quantity take-offs from design plans; and generates contours from
aerial topographic surveys, field shots, and/or office calculated data. Mike also has experience
calculating boundaries from record maps and/or legal documents, lot closures, and easements,
and has prepared legal descriptions for lots and easements.

J‘ City of Orting — Survey Services Page 1



Project Experience
Some of our survey crews’ experience includes work on the following successful projects.

CITY OF TUMWATER—ON-CALL SERVICES

multiple survey task orders of varying magnitude, from
smaller task orders such as replacing lost or destroyed
survey monuments up to large topographic surveys for A= > =
street overlays. He also responds to the City’s requests : ' l —
for assistance in easement creation by overseeing the !'F ' —
preparation of easement legal descriptions and exhibit

maps to support the City in acquiring new easements for utilities and right-of-way. Ryanis
also called upon to research and evaluate existing right of ways for the City as well as property
boundaries.

Our Survey Manager, Ryan Smith, is currently managing <
an on-call with the City of Tumwater. There are = =
pm
" %-

SAINT MARTIN’S COLLEGE—BOUNDARY LINE ADJUSTMENT AND EASEMENT DESCRIPTIONS

The college was constructing a new educational building, so Ryan performed a Boundary Line
Adjustment in order to adjust parcel lines to fit the location of the new building. He also
analyzed existing easement descriptions and prepared new easement descriptions for water
line improvements.

PRIVATE CLIENT-—BOUNDARY SURVEYS

Ryan manages and oversees over 70 private boundary surveys a year. Private surveys range in
magnitude from straightforward lot retracements to complex surveys involving section
subdivisions and corner determinations. Evaluating survey records and land description records
is a must when performed boundary work. On a regular basis, Ryan orders title reports and
chains of title to determine the controlling land descriptions and the effort it takes to property
survey them on the ground. After all research avenues are exhausted, he directs field crews to
set corners and mark lines. Once the field work is completed, quality checks are made in the
office and survey maps are prepared under his direction by office technicians.
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QUALIFICATIONS/EXPERTISE OF PROJECT MANAGER

Survey Manager: Ryan Smith, PLS, CFedS 13 Years Exp.
AA in Technical Arts Professional Land Surveyor — WA
Certified Federal Surveyor

Ryan has experience includes working with boundary surveys, topographic
surveys, right of way plans, GPS surveys, and construction staking. He has
worked in all types of conditions, from urban corridors to forest land to
aquatic environments. He also has experience preparing all types of legal
descriptions.

As Skillings’ Survey Manager, Ryan schedules daily operations of the field 3-
crews, prepares topographic maps using AutoCAD for the engineering e
design team, analyzes vertical and horizontal control networks produced from GPS and
conventional survey methods, prepares and reviews legal descriptions for easements andright
of way acquisition, researches and compiles survey documents and evidence, analyzes complex
construction plans, and operates the GIS database for control networks.

His land surveying experience includes field work using total stations, robotic total stations,
GPS, RTK, and data collectors and office duties using CAD. He has performed boundary,
topographic, ALTA, subdivision, boundary line adjustment surveys and right-of-way certification
maps.

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE

SAINT MARTIN’S COLLEGE—BOUNDARY LINE ADJUSTMENT AND EASEMENT DESCRIPTIONS

The college was constructing a new educational building so Ryan performed a Boundary Line
Adjustment in order to adjust parcel lines to fit the location of the new building. He also
analyzed existing easement descriptions and prepared new easement descriptions for water
line improvements.

CITY OF TUMWATER—ON-CALL SERVICES

Ryan is currently managing an on-call with the City of Tumwater. There are multiple task
orders of varying magnitude, from large topographic surveys for street overlays to smaller task
orders, to replace monuments.

CITY OF TUMWATER—CAPITOL BOULEVARD/TROSPER ROAD INTERSECTION

Skillings is currently completing a topographic survey, under Ryan’s direction, for the design of
the City of Tumwater — Capitol Boulevard/Trosper Road Intersection. Included within the
scope of the survey is locating all existing improvements with the boundary limits. Elevations
at 50-foot intervals were also taken at the roadway centerlines, edges of pavement,
channelization lines, flow lines of ditches and grade breaks and for all existing utilities.

PIERCE COUNTY—112TH AVENUE EAST RECONSTRUCTION

In his role as Survey Manager, Ryan was responsible for the successful completion of a survey
for Pierce County for the reconstruction of 112th Avenue East from A Street South to 18th
Avenue East in Parkland, WA. Included within the scope of the survey was providing
horizontal and vertical control and monument ties, topographic mapping, locating of all
existing utilities both above and below ground, wetlands mapping, right-of-way alignment
research, preparation of a certified right-of-way drawing, and surveying on private lands.
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DELIVERY APPROACH

Successful completion of this project begins with
proper research into the records. Ryan will evaluate
existing survey records, land descriptions and
government survey records to ensure the proper
monumentation is being used to control the property
boundaries of the subject parcel. A title report will be
ordered to ensure the survey is being based on an
accurate land description. Once the title report is
evaluated, the controlling monuments can be

CiTY OF LYNNWOOD:

From a January 25, 2017 Letter of
recommendation from Ha Yang,
Project Manager with the Public
Works Department.

"All the projects that | have worked
on with Skillings Connolly were
completed on time and under

identified. budget. The project teams from
Skillings Connolly displayed a high
A subdivision of the Northeast quarter of Section 1 will level of professionalism,
need to be completed in order to solve the subject experience, dedication, and
property boundary. Our trained survey crews will find commitment to quality. Skillings
and measure into the monuments that are needed to Connolly considers each project
break down the Northeast quarter of section 1. After with us as the most important
the control survey has been performed to acceptable project they are working on and
standards, the Survey Manager will compute the gives each project their full
boundaries of the subject parcels. Special attention will  attention. They are very easy to
be emphasized as the crew performs their work along work with, dynamic, insightful, and
the property line, looking for evidence of existing responsive.”

features along the line. If found, those features will be
field located, and the measurements recorded in the
field books.

With the field data recorded, Ryan will prepare a preliminary map to discuss the survey results
with City staff to develop the location of the new boundary line. Once the City has agreedon a
new boundary line location, Skillings will prepare the Boundary Line Adjustment map in
accordance with City of Orting requirements. New property descriptions will be prepared and
delineated on the face of the map to be used for future reference. The final Boundary Line
Adjustment map will be recorded at the Auditor’s Office, and Ryan will assist the City with
preparing descriptions for the conveyance documents.

SKILLINGS REFERENCES

City of Tumwater—On-Call Services
Price: $2,000 to $40,000 per task

Brandon Hicks, 360.754.4140

Private Client—Boundary Survey
Price: $2,000

Spence Weigand, 360-789-3160
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Mark Bethune

From: BRADFORD JERRY <jebdelta@yahoo.com>
Sent: Monday, August 26, 2019 10:06 AM

To: Mark Bethune

Subject: Re: Request for qualifications

Good morning Mark

| am going to refer you to our letter of 5/30/19 as to our statement of qualification.

Keep in mind that any of the respondents will be imminently qualified to preform the B.L.A. for you, all firms are licensed
by the state of washington to practice land surveying and can deliver a map that is satisfactory to the county for recording.
You just have to decide which firm you want to work with and go from there. The only reason that we might deliver sooner
is that we have extensive work in that section, from surveying for the McManns, and as you know we have already
calculated the boundaries.

Bob and Jerry

On Tuesday, August 13, 2019, 01:11:35 PM PDT, Mark Bethune <MBethune@cityoforting.org> wrote:

Jerry, the city has just gone out for RFQ for a boundary line adjustment on that cemetery property. You will
have to make a paper submittal by the due date. Hope you apply.

From: BRADFORD JERRY [mailto:jebdelta@yahoo.com]
Sent: Thursday, May 30, 2019 10:09 AM

To: BRADFORD JERRY; Mark Bethune

Subject: Request for qualifications

TO Mark Bethune and whoever it may concern

Delta Surveying has been in service to primarily Pierce county and local communities since 1979 and located on South
Hill all that time. We have worked with the City of Orting with many short plats boundary line revisions, and elevation
certificates over that time, for instance a short plat for Mona Lee Cope in 1980 and one in 2018. We also have short plats
for Karen Wilson and Darrin Jones.

Please keep in mind that we are a professional service and our files are kept private as for cost, however we will supply
you with the name and telephone numbers of several clients and they can divulge whatever they wish to you.

As to key personal, we have Partner and professional land surveyor Robert J. Rogers 42 years experience, Jerry E.
Bradford partner with 62 years of experience, and Scott E. Bradford party chief with 38 years experience.



The following are a short list of clients and phone numbers.

Mike Sapp 253 606 7313 project was lot corners and line stakes.

Mona Lee Cope 360 893 2840 city short plat.

Keren Wilson 253 435 7740 city short plat.

Preston Richardson 530 613 5133 lot corners and line stakes.

Francis Richardson 916 425 9480 lot corners and line stakes.

Thanks for considering Delta.

Bob and Jerry 5/30/19

Total Control Panel Login
To: mbethunef@citvoforting.org Remove this sender from my allow list

From: jebdelta@yahoo.com

You received this message because the sender is on your allow list.



City Of Orting
/ Council Agenda Summary Sheet

. . Committee | Study Session Council
Subject: Whitehawk
Extension Design Agenda ltem #: N/A AB19-66 AB19-66
and Engineering For Agenda of: 9.18.19 9.25.19
Scope and budget
Department: streets
Date Submitted: 9/12/19
Cost of item: $668,517.81
Amount Budgeted: $450,000
Unexpended Balance: $(218,517.81)
Bars #:
Timeline:
Submitted By: Bethune
Fiscal Note:

Attachments: Scope and Budget

SUMMARY STATEMENT: The City Council selected Parametrix through the RFQ processin
2019 to complete Design and Engineering for the Whitehawk Blvd Extension (AKA Southwest
Connector). The City received a federal grant for $400,000 to complete this task with a $50K
match from the city. The project has become more expensive due primarily expanded
wetlands and the increased DOE and Corp of Engineers mandates. The additional funds will
come from the Traffic Impact Fees Fund in 2020.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Advance To Consent Agenda For The Council Meeting Of
September 25, 2019.

FUTURE MOTION: To approve the scope and budget from Parametirx to complete the design
and Engineering for the Whitehawk Blvd Extension, and authorize the expenditure of
$668,517.81 for that project.




Local Agency A&E Professional Services
Cost Plus Fixed Fee Consultant Agreement

Agreement Number:

Firm/Organization Legal Name (do not use dba'’s):

Parametrix, Inc.

Address Federal Aid Number
1019 39th Ave SE, Ste. 100, Puyallup, WA 98374

UBI Number Federal TIN or SSN Number
600 135 349 91-0914810

Execution Date Completion Date

1099 Form Required Federal Participation
[1ves [¥]nNo [/] Yes [{] No

Project Title

Whitehawk Boulevard Extension (ORT-4)

Description of Work

The project will consist of design of a two lane roadway along with a new signal and bike/pedestrian facilities
from the existing terminus at Orting Ave NW and extend to the intersection of Kansas Street Calistoga Street
West. Seec attached Scope of Work, Exhibit A.

Yes [] No DBE Participation Total Amount Authorized: $668,509.87
S Yes % No MBE Participation Management Reserve Fund:
Yes No WBE Participation
: 'p . Maximum Amount Payable: $668,509.87
|:| Yes D No SBE Participation

Index of Exhibits

Exhibit A Scope of Work

Exhibit B DBE Participation/SBE Plan

Exhibit C Preparation and Delivery of Electronic Engineering and Other Data
Exhibit D Prime Consultant Cost Computations

Exhibit E Sub-consultant Cost Computations

Exhibit F Title VI Assurances

Exhibit G Certification Documents

Exhibit H Liability Insurance Increase
Exhibit I Alleged Consultant Design Error Procedures
Exhibit J Consultant Claim Procedures
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THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into as shown in the “Execution Date” box on page one (1) of this
AGREEMENT, between the City of Orting ,
hereinafter called the “AGENCY,” and the “Firm / Organization Name” referenced on page one (1) of this
AGREEMENT, hereinafter called the “CONSULTANT.”

WHEREAS, the AGENCY desires to accomplish the work referenced in “Description of Work™ on page one (1)

of this AGREEMENT and hereafter called the “SERVICES;” and does not have sufficient staff to meet the required
commitment and therefore deems it advisable and desirable to engage the assistance of a CONSULTANT to provide
the necessary SERVICES; and

WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT represents that they comply with the Washington State Statutes relating
to professional registration, if applicable, and has signified a willingness to furnish consulting services to
the AGENCY.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants, and performance contained herein,
or attached and incorporated and made a part hereof, the parties hereto agree as follows:

I. General Description of Work

The work under this AGREEMENT shall consist of the above-described SERVICES as herein defined, and
necessary to accomplish the completed work for this project. The CONSULTANT shall furnish all services, labor,
and related equipment and, if applicable, sub-consultants and subcontractors necessary to conduct and complete the
SERVICES as designated elsewhere in this AGREEMENT.

ll. General Scope of Work

The Scope of Work and projected level of effort required for these SERVICES is described in Exhibit “A” attached
hereto and by this reference made a part of this AGREEMENT. The General Scope of Work was developed
utilizing performance based contracting methodologies.

lll. General Requirements

All aspects of coordination of the work of this AGREEMENT with outside agencies, groups, or individuals shall
receive advance approval by the AGENCY. Necessary contacts and meetings with agencies, groups, and/or
individuals shall be coordinated through the AGENCY. The CONSULTANT shall attend coordination, progress,
and presentation meetings with the AGENCY and/or such State, Federal, Community, City, or County officials,
groups or individuals as may be requested by the AGENCY. The AGENCY will provide the CONSULTANT
sufficient notice prior to meetings requiring CONSULTANT participation. The minimum required hours or days’
notice shall be agreed to between the AGENCY and the CONSULTANT and shown in Exhibit “A.”

The CONSULTANT shall prepare a monthly progress report, in a form approved by the AGENCY, which will
outline in written and graphical form the various phases and the order of performance of the SERVICES in
sufficient detail so that the progress of the SERVICES can easily be evaluated.

The CONSULTANT, any sub-consultants, and the AGENCY shall comply with all Federal, State, and local laws,
rules, codes, regulations, and all AGENCY policies and directives, applicable to the work to be performed under
this AGREEMENT. This AGREEMENT shall be interpreted and construed in accordance with the laws of the State
of Washington.
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Participation for Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) or Small Business Enterprises (SBE), if required, per
49 CFR Part 26, shall be shown on the heading of this AGREEMENT. If DBE firms are utilized at the
commencement of this AGREEMENT, the amounts authorized to each firm and their certification number will be
shown on Exhibit “B” attached hereto and by this reference made part of this AGREEMENT. If the Prime
CONSULTANT is a DBE certified firm they must comply with the Commercial Useful Function (CUF)
regulation outlined in the AGENCY’s “DBE Program Participation Plan” and perform a minimum of 30% of the
total amount of this AGREEMENT. It is recommended, but not required, that non-DBE Prime CONSULTANTS
perform a minimum of 30% of the total amount of this AGREEMENT.

In the absents of a mandatory UDBE, a voluntary SBE goal amount of ten percent of the Consultant Agreement is
established. The Consultant shall submit a SBE Participation Plan prior to commencing work. Although the goal is
voluntary, the outreach efforts to provide SBE maximum practicable opportunities are not.

The CONSULTANT, on a monthly basis, shall enter the amounts paid to all firms involved with this
AGREEMENT into the wsdot.diversitycompliance.com program. Payment information shall identify any DBE
Participation. Non-minority, woman owned DBEs does not count towards UDBE goal attainment.

All Reports, PS&E materials, and other data furnished to the CONSULTANT by the AGENCY shall be returned.
All electronic files, prepared by the CONSULTANT, must meet the requirements as outlined in Exhibit “C —
Preparation and Delivery of Electronic Engineering and other Data.”

All designs, drawings, specifications, documents, and other work products, including all electronic files, prepared
by the CONSULTANT prior to completion or termination of this AGREEMENT are instruments of service for
these SERVICES, and are the property of the AGENCY. Reuse by the AGENCY or by others, acting through or
on behalf of the AGENCY of any such instruments of service, not occurring as a part of this SERVICE, shall
be without liability or legal exposure to the CONSULTANT.

Any and all notices or requests required under this AGREEMENT shall be made in writing and sent to the other
party by (i) certified mail, return receipt requested, or (ii) by email or facsimile, to the address set forth below:

Ifto AGENCY: If to CONSULTANT:
Name: Mark Bethune, City Administrator Name: John Perlic, PE
Agency: City Of Orting Agency: Parametrix, Inc.
Address: PO Box 489 Address: 719 Second Avenue, Ste. 200
City: Orting State: WA Zip: 98360 City: Seattle State: WA Zip: 98104
Email: mbethune@cityoforting.org Email: jperlic@parametrix.com
Phone: 360.893.2219 ext. 115 Phone: 206.394.3700
Facsimile: Facsimile: 855.542.6353

IV. Time for Beginning and Completion

The CONSULTANT shall not begin any work under the terms of this AGREEMENT until authorized in writing by
the AGENCY. All work under this AGREEMENT shall be completed by the date shown in the heading of this
AGREEMENT titled “Completion Date.”

The established completion time shall not be extended because of any delays attributable to the CONSULTANT,
but may be extended by the AGENCY in the event of a delay attributable to the AGENCY, or because of
unavoidable delays caused by an act of GOD, governmental actions, or other conditions beyond the control of the
CONSULTANT. A prior supplemental AGREEMENT issued by the AGENCY is required to extend the
established completion time.
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V. Payment Provisions

The CONSULTANT shall be paid by the AGENCY for completed SERVICES rendered under this AGREEMENT
as provided hereinafter. Such payment shall be full compensation for SERVICES performed or SERVICES
rendered and for all labor, materials, supplies, equipment, and incidentals necessary to complete SERVICES,
specified in Section II, “Scope of Work”. The CONSULTANT shall conform to all applicable portions of 48 CFR
Part 31 (www.ecfr.gov). The estimate in support of the Cost Plus Fixed Fee amount is attached hereto as Exhibits
“D” and “E” and by this reference made part of this AGREEMENT.

A. Actual Costs: Payment for all consulting services for this PROJECT shall be on the basis of the
CONSULTANT’S actual cost plus a fixed fee. The actual cost shall include direct salary cost, indirect cost rate,
and direct non-salary costs.

1.

Direct (RAW) Labor Costs: The Direct (RAW) Labor Cost is the direct salary paid to principals,
professional, technical, and clerical personnel for the time they are productively engaged in work necessary
to fulfill the terms of this AGREEMENT. The CONSULTANT shall maintain support data to verify the
direct salary costs billed to the AGENCY.

Indirect Cost Rate (ICR) Costs: ICR Costs are those costs, other than direct costs, which are included as
such on the books of the CONSULTANT in the normal everyday keeping of its books. Progress payments
shall be made at the ICR rates shown in attached Exhibits “D” and “E” of this AGREEMENT. Total

ICR payment shall be based on Actual Costs. The AGENCY agrees to reimburse the CONSULTANT

the actual ICR costs verified by audit, up to the Maximum Total Amount Payable, authorized under this
AGREEMENT, when accumulated with all other Actual Costs.

A summary of the CONSULTANT’S cost estimate and the ICR percentage is shown in Exhibits “D” and
“E”, attached hereto and by this reference made part of this AGREEMENT. The CONSULTANT (prime
and all sub-consultants) will submit to the AGENCY within six (6) months after the end of each firm’s fiscal
year, an ICR schedule in the format required by the AGENCY (cost category, dollar expenditures, etc.) for
the purpose of adjusting the ICR rate for billings received and paid during the fiscal year represented by the
ICR schedule. It shall also be used for the computation of progress payments during the following year and
for retroactively adjusting the previous year’s ICR cost to reflect the actual rate. The ICR schedule will be
sent to Email: ConsultantRates@wsdot.wa.gov.

Failure to supply this information by either the prime CONSULTANT or any of their sub-consultants shall
cause the AGENCY to withhold payment of the billed ICR costs until such time as the required information
is received and an overhead rate for billing purposes is approved.

The AGENCY’s Project Manager and/or the Federal Government may perform an audit of the
CONSULTANT’S books and records at any time during regular business hours to determine the actual ICR
rate, if they so desire.

. Direct Non-Salary Costs: Direct Non-Salary Costs will be reimbursed at the Actual Cost to the

CONSULTANT. These charges may include, but are not limited to, the following items: travel, printing,
long distance telephone, supplies, computer charges and fees of sub-consultants. Air or train travel will be
reimbursed only to economy class levels unless otherwise approved by the AGENCY. The CONSULTANT
shall comply with the rules and regulations regarding travel costs (excluding air, train, and rental car costs)
in accordance with WSDOT’s Accounting Manual M 13-82, Chapter 10 — Travel Rules and Procedures, and
revisions thereto. Air, train, and rental car costs shall be reimbursed in accordance with 48 Code of Federal
Regulations (CFR) Part 31.205-46 “Travel Costs.” The billing for Direct Non-Salary Costs shall include an
itemized listing of the charges directly identifiable with the PROJECT. The CONSULTANT shall maintain
the original supporting documents in their office. Copies of the original supporting documents shall be
supplied to the AGENCY upon request. All above charges must be necessary for the services provided
under this AGREEMENT.
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4. Fixed Fee: The Fixed Fee, which represents the CONSULTANT’S profit, is shown in attached Exhibits “D”
and “E” of this AGREEMENT. This fee is based on the Scope of Work defined in this AGREEMENT and
the estimated person-hours required to perform the stated Scope of Work. In the event the CONSULTANT
enters into a supplemental AGREEMENT for additional work, the supplemental AGREEMENT may
include provisions for the added costs and an appropriate additional fee. The Fixed Fee will be prorated
and paid monthly in proportion to the percentage of work completed by the CONSULTANT and reported
in the Monthly Progress Reports accompanying the billings. Any portion of the Fixed Fee earned but not
previously paid in the progress payments will be covered in the final payment, subject to the provisions of
Section IX entitled “Termination of Agreement.”

5. Management Reserve Fund (MRF): The AGENCY may desire to establish MRF to provide the Agreement
Administrator with the flexibility to authorize additional funds to the AGREEMENT for allowable
unforeseen costs, or reimbursing the CONSULTANT for additional work beyond that already defined in
this AGREEMENT. Such authorization(s) shall be in writing and shall not exceed the lesser of $100,000 or
10% of the Total Amount Authorized as shown in the heading of this AGREEMENT. The amount included
for the MRF is shown in the heading of this AGREEMENT. This fund may not be replenished. Any
changes requiring additional costs in excess of the MRF shall be made in accordance with Section XIII,
“Extra Work.”

6. Maximum Total Amount Payable: The Maximum Total Amount Payable by the AGENCY to the
CONSULTANT under this AGREEMENT shall not exceed the amount shown in the heading of this
AGREEMENT. The Maximum Total Amount Payable is comprised of the Total Amount Authorized, and
the MRF. The Maximum Total Amount Payable does not include payment for Extra Work as stipulated in
Section XIII, “Extra Work.” No minimum amount payable is guaranteed under this AGREEMENT.

B. Monthly Progress Payments: The CONSULTANT may submit billings to the AGENCY for reimbursement of
Actual Costs plus the ICR and calculated fee on a monthly basis during the progress of the work. Such billings
shall be in a format approved by the AGENCY and accompanied by the monthly progress reports required under
Section III, “General Requirements” of this AGREEMENT. The billings will be supported by an itemized
listing for each item including Direct (RAW) Labor, Direct Non-Salary, and allowable ICR Costs to which will
be added the prorated Fixed Fee. To provide a means of verifying the billed Direct (RAW) Labor costs for
CONSULTANT employees, the AGENCY may conduct employee interviews. These interviews may consist of
recording the names, titles, Direct (RAW) Labor rates, and present duties of those employees performing work
on the PROJECT at the time of the interview.

C. Final Payment: Final Payment of any balance due the CONSULTANT of the gross amount earned will be made
promptly upon its verification by the AGENCY after the completion of the work under this AGREEMENT,
contingent, if applicable, upon receipt of all PS&E, plans, maps, notes, reports, electronic data and other related
documents which are required to be furnished under this AGREEMENT. Acceptance of such Final Payment by
the CONSULTANT shall constitute a release of all claims for payment, which the CONSULTANT may have
against the AGENCY unless such claims are specifically reserved in writing and transmitted to the AGENCY by
the CONSULTANT prior to its acceptance. Said Final Payment shall not, however, be a bar to any claims that
the AGENCY may have against the CONSULTANT or to any remedies the AGENCY may pursue with respect
to such claims.

The payment of any billing will not constitute agreement as to the appropriateness of any item and at the time
of final audit; all required adjustments will be made and reflected in a final payment. In the event that such
final audit reveals an overpayment to the CONSULTANT, the CONSULTANT will refund such overpayment to
the AGENCY within thirty (30) calendar days of notice of the overpayment. Such refund shall not constitute

a waiver by the CONSULTANT for any claims relating to the validity of a finding by the AGENCY of
overpayment. The CONSULTANT has twenty (20) working days after receipt of the final POST AUDIT to
begin the appeal process to the AGENCY for audit findings.
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D. Inspection of Cost Records: The CONSULTANT and their sub-consultants shall keep available for inspection
by representatives of the AGENCY and the United States, for a period of six (6) years after receipt of final
payment, the cost records and accounts pertaining to this AGREEMENT and all items related to or bearing upon
these records with the following exception: if any litigation, claim or audit arising out of, in connection with,
or related to this AGREEMENT is initiated before the expiration of the six (6) year period, the cost records and
accounts shall be retained until such litigation, claim, or audit involving the records is completed.

An interim or post audit may be performed on this AGREEMENT. The audit, if any, will be performed by the
State Auditor, WSDOT’s Internal Audit Office and/or at the request of the AGENCY’s Project Manager.

VI. Sub-Contracting

The AGENCY permits subcontracts for those items of SERVICES as shown in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and by
this reference made part of this AGREEMENT.

The CONSULTANT shall not subcontract for the performance of any SERVICE under this AGREEMENT without
prior written permission of the AGENCY. No permission for subcontracting shall create, between the AGENCY
and sub-consultant, any contract or any other relationship.

Compensation for this sub-consultant SERVICES shall be based on the cost factors shown on Exhibit “E” attached
hereto and by this reference made part of this AGREEMENT.

The SERVICES of the sub-consultant shall not exceed its maximum amount payable identified in each sub-
consultant cost estimate unless a prior written approval has been issued by the AGENCY.

All reimbursable direct labor, indirect cost rate, direct non-salary costs and fixed fee costs for the sub-consultant
shall be negotiated and substantiated in accordance with section V “Payment Provisions” herein and shall be
memorialized in a final written acknowledgement between the parties.

All subcontracts shall contain all applicable provisions of this AGREEMENT, and the CONSULTANT shall require
each sub-consultant or subcontractor, of any tier, to abide by the terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT. With
respect to sub-consultant payment, the CONSULTANT shall comply with all applicable sections of the STATE’s
Prompt Payment laws as set forth in RCW 39.04.250 and RCW 39.76.011.

The CONSULTANT, sub-recipient, or sub-consultant shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national
origin, or sex in the performance of this AGREEMENT. The CONSULTANT shall carry out applicable
requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the
CONSULTANT to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this AGREEMENT, which may result in the
termination of this AGREEMENT or such other remedy as the recipient deems appropriate.

VII. Employment and Organizational Conflict of Interest

The CONSULTANT warrants that they have not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona
fide employee working solely for the CONSULTANT, to solicit or secure this contract, and that it has not paid or
agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the CONSULTANT, any
fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the
award or making of this contract. For breach or violation of this warrant, the AGENCY shall have the right to annul
this AGREEMENT without liability or, in its discretion, to deduct from this AGREEMENT price or consideration
or otherwise recover the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or contingent fee.

Any and all employees of the CONSULTANT or other persons while engaged in the performance of any work
or services required of the CONSULTANT under this AGREEMENT, shall be considered employees of the
CONSULTANT only and not of the AGENCY, and any and all claims that may arise under any Workmen’s
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Compensation Act on behalf of said employees or other persons while so engaged, and any and all claims made

by a third party as a consequence of any act or omission on the part of the CONSULTANT’s employees or other
persons while so engaged on any of the work or services provided to be rendered herein, shall be the sole obligation
and responsibility of the CONSULTANT.

The CONSULTANT shall not engage, on a full- or part-time basis, or other basis, during the period of this
AGREEMENT, any professional or technical personnel who are, or have been, at any time during the period of this
AGREEMENT, in the employ of the United States Department of Transportation or the AGENCY, except regularly
retired employees, without written consent of the public employer of such person if he/she will be working on this
AGREEMENT for the CONSULTANT.

VIll. Nondiscrimination

During the performance of this AGREEMENT, the CONSULTANT, for itself, its assignees, sub-consultants,
subcontractors and successors in interest, agrees to comply with the following laws and regulations:

+ Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 » Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987
(42 U.S.C. Chapter 21 Subchapter V § 2000d (Public Law 100-259)
through 2000d-4a) « American with Disabilities Act of 1990
* Federal-aid Highway Act of 1973 (42 U.S.C. Chapter 126 § 12101 et. seq.)
(23 U.S.C. Chapter 3 § 324) « 23 CFR Part 200
+ Rehabilitation Act of 1973 o 49 CFR Part 21
(29 U.S.C. Chapter 16 Subchapter V § 794) « 49 CFR Part 26
» Age Discrimination Act of 1975 « RCW 49.60.180

(42 U.S.C. Chapter 76 § 6101 et. seq.)

In relation to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the CONSULTANT is bound by the provisions of Exhibit “F”
attached hereto and by this reference made part of this AGREEMENT, and shall include the attached Exhibit “F” in
every sub-contract, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations
or directives issued pursuant thereto.

IX. Termination of Agreement

The right is reserved by the AGENCY to terminate this AGREEMENT at any time with or without cause upon ten
(10) days written notice to the CONSULTANT.

In the event this AGREEMENT is terminated by the AGENCY, other than for default on the part of the
CONSULTANT, a final payment shall be made to the CONSULTANT for actual hours charged and any appropriate
fixed fee percentage at the time of termination of this AGREEMENT, plus any direct non-salary costs incurred up to
the time of termination of this AGREEMENT.

No payment shall be made for any SERVICES completed after ten (10) days following receipt by the
CONSULTANT of the notice to terminate. If the accumulated payment made to the CONSULTANT prior to Notice
of Termination exceeds the total amount that would be due when computed as set forth in paragraph two (2) of this
section, then no final payment shall be due and the CONSULTANT shall immediately reimburse the AGENCY for

any excess paid.

If the services of the CONSULTANT are terminated by the AGENCY for default on the part of the CONSULTANT,
the above formula for payment shall not apply.

In the event of a termination for default, the amount to be paid to the CONSULTANT shall be determined by the
AGENCY with consideration given to the actual costs incurred by the CONSULTANT in performing SERVICES
to the date of termination, the amount of SERVICES originally required which was satisfactorily completed to
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date of termination, whether that SERVICE is in a form or a type which is usable to the AGENCY at the time of
termination, the cost to the AGENCY of employing another firm to complete the SERVICES required and the

time which may be required to do so, and other factors which affect the value to the AGENCY of the SERVICES
performed at the time of termination. Under no circumstances shall payment made under this subsection exceed the
amount, which would have been made using the formula set forth in paragraph two (2) of this section.

If it is determined for any reason that the CONSULTANT was not in default or that the CONSULTANTs failure to
perform is without the CONSULTANTs or its employee’s fault or negligence, the termination shall be deemed to
be a termination for the convenience of the AGENCY. In such an event, the CONSULTANT would be reimbursed
for actual costs and appropriate fixed fee percentage in accordance with the termination for other than default
clauses listed previously.

The CONSULTANT shall, within 15 days, notify the AGENCY in writing, in the event of the death of any member,
partner, or officer of the CONSULTANT or the death or change of any of the CONSULTANT’s supervisory and/or
other key personnel assigned to the project or disaffiliation of any principally involved CONSULTANT employee.
The CONSULTANT shall also notify the AGENCY, in writing, in the event of the sale or transfer of 50% or

more of the beneficial ownership of the CONSULTANT within 15 days of such sale or transfer occurring. The
CONSULTANT shall continue to be obligated to complete the SERVICES under the terms of this AGREEMENT
unless the AGENCY chooses to terminate this AGREEMENT for convenience or chooses to renegotiate any term(s)
of this AGREEMENT. If termination for convenience occurs, final payment will be made to the CONSULTANT

as set forth in the second and third paragraphs of this section.

Payment for any part of the SERVICES by the AGENCY shall not constitute a waiver by the AGENCY of

any remedies of any type it may have against the CONSULTANT for any breach of this AGREEMENT by the
CONSULTANT, or for failure of the CONSULTANT to perform SERVICES required of it by the AGENCY.
Forbearance of any rights under the AGREEMENT will not constitute waiver of entitlement to exercise those rights
with respect to any future act or omission by the CONSULTANT.

X. Changes of Work

The CONSULTANT shall make such changes and revisions in the completed work of this AGREEMENT as
necessary to correct errors appearing therein, without additional compensation thereof. Should the AGENCY find
it desirable for its own purposes to have previously satisfactorily completed SERVICES or parts thereof changed or
revised, the CONSULTANT shall make such revisions as directed by the AGENCY. This work shall be considered
as Extra Work and will be paid for as herein provided under section XIII “Extra Work.”

Xl. Disputes

Any disputed issue not resolved pursuant to the terms of this AGREEMENT shall be submitted in writing within
10 days to the Director of Public Works or AGENCY Engineer, whose decision in the matter shall be final and
binding on the parties of this AGREEMENT; provided however, that if an action is brought challenging the
Director of Public Works or AGENCY Engineer’s decision, that decision shall be subject to judicial review. If the
parties to this AGREEMENT mutually agree, disputes concerning alleged design errors will be conducted under
the procedures found in Exhibit “J”. In the event that either party deem it necessary to institute legal action or
proceeding to enforce any right or obligation under this AGREEMENT, this action shall be initiated in the Superior
Court of the State of Washington, situated in the county in which the AGENCY is located. The parties hereto
agree that all questions shall be resolved by application of Washington law and that the parties have the right of
appeal from such decisions of the Superior Court in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. The
CONSULTANT hereby consents to the personal jurisdiction of the Superior Court of the State of Washington,
situated in the county in which the AGENCY is located.
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Xll. Legal Relations

The CONSULTANT, any sub-consultants, and the AGENCY shall comply with all Federal, State, and local laws,
rules, codes, regulations and all AGENCY policies and directives, applicable to the work to be performed under this
AGREEMENT. This AGREEMENT shall be interpreted and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of
Washington.

The CONSULTANT shall defend, indemnify, and hold The State of Washington (STATE) and the AGENCY and
their officers and employees harmless from all claims, demands, or suits at law or equity arising in whole or in part
from the negligence of, or the breach of any obligation under this AGREEMENT by, the CONSULTANT or the
CONSULTANT’s agents, employees, sub consultants, subcontractors or vendors, of any tier, or any other persons
for whom the CONSULTANT may be legally liable; provided that nothing herein shall require a CONSULTANT

to defend or indemnify the STATE and the AGENCY and their officers and employees against and hold harmless
the STATE and the AGENCY and their officers and employees from claims, demands or suits based solely upon

the negligence of, or breach of any obligation under this AGREEMENT by the STATE and the AGENCY, their
agents, officers, employees, sub-consultants, subcontractors or vendors, of any tier, or any other persons for whom
the STATE and/or the AGENCY may be legally liable; and provided further that if the claims or suits are caused

by or result from the concurrent negligence of (a) the CONSULTANT or the CONSULTANT’s agents, employees,
sub-consultants, subcontractors or vendors, of any tier, or any other persons for whom the CONSULTANT is legally
liable, and (b) the STATE and/or AGENCY, their agents, officers, employees, sub-consultants, subcontractors and or
vendors, of any tier, or any other persons for whom the STATE and or AGENCY may be legally liable, the defense
and indemnity obligation shall be valid and enforceable only to the extent of the CONSULTANT’s negligence or
the negligence of the CONSULTANT’s agents, employees, sub-consultants, subcontractors or vendors, of any tier,
or any other persons for whom the CONSULTANT may be legally liable. This provision shall be included in any
AGREEMENT between CONSULTANT and any sub-consultant, subcontractor and vendor, of any tier.

The CONSULTANT shall also defend, indemnify, and hold the STATE and the AGENCY and their officers

and employees harmless from all claims, demands, or suits at law or equity arising in whole or in part from the
alleged patent or copyright infringement or other allegedly improper appropriation or use of trade secrets, patents,
proprietary information, know-how, copyright rights or inventions by the CONSULTANT or the CONSULTANT’s
agents, employees, sub-consultants, subcontractors or vendors, of any tier, or any other persons for whom the
CONSULTANT may be legally liable, in performance of the Work under this AGREEMENT or arising out of any
use in connection with the AGREEMENT of methods, processes, designs, information or other items furnished or
communicated to STATE and/or the AGENCY, their agents, officers and employees pursuant to the AGREEMENT;
provided that this indemnity shall not apply to any alleged patent or copyright infringement or other allegedly
improper appropriation or use of trade secrets, patents, proprietary information, know-how, copyright rights or
inventions resulting from STATE and/or AGENCYs, their agents’, officers’ and employees’ failure to comply

with specific written instructions regarding use provided to STATE and/or AGENCY, their agents, officers and
employees by the CONSULTANT, its agents, employees, sub-consultants, subcontractors or vendors, of any tier, or
any other persons for whom the CONSULTANT may be legally liable.

The CONSULTANT’s relation to the AGENCY shall be at all times as an independent contractor.

Notwithstanding any determination by the Executive Ethics Board or other tribunal, the AGENCY may, in its sole
discretion, by written notice to the CONSULTANT terminate this AGREEMENT if it is found after due notice and
examination by the AGENCY that there is a violation of the Ethics in Public Service Act, Chapter 42.52 RCW; or
any similar statute involving the CONSULTANT in the procurement of, or performance under, this AGREEMENT.

The CONSULTANT specifically assumes potential liability for actions brought by the CONSULTANT’s own
employees or its agents against the STATE and /or the AGENCY and, solely for the purpose of this indemnification
and defense, the CONSULTANT specifically waives any immunity under the state industrial insurance law, Title 51
RCW. This waiver has been mutually negotiated between the Parties.
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Unless otherwise specified in this AGREEMENT, the AGENCY shall be responsible for administration of
construction contracts, if any, on the project. Subject to the processing of a new sole source, or an acceptable
supplemental AGREEMENT, the CONSULTANT shall provide On-Call assistance to the AGENCY during contract
administration. By providing such assistance, the CONSULTANT shall assume no responsibility for: proper
construction techniques, job site safety, or any construction contractor’s failure to perform its work in accordance
with the contract documents.

The CONSULTANT shall obtain and keep in force during the terms of this AGREEMENT, or as otherwise
required, the following insurance with companies or through sources approved by the State Insurance
Commissioner pursuant to Title 48 RCW.

Insurance Coverage
A. Worker’s compensation and employer’s liability insurance as required by the STATE.

B. Commercial general liability insurance written under ISO Form CG 00 01 12 04 or its equivalent with minimum
limits of one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and two million dollars ($2,000,000.00) in the
aggregate for each policy period.

C. Business auto liability insurance written under ISO Form CG 00 01 10 01 or equivalent providing coverage for
any “Auto” (Symbol 1) used in an amount not less than a one million dollar ($1,000,000.00) combined single
limit for each occurrence.

Excepting the Worker’s Compensation Insurance and any Professional Liability Insurance, the STATE and
AGENCY, their officers, employees, and agents will be named on all policies of CONSULTANT and any sub-
consultant and/or subcontractor as an additional insured (the “Als”), with no restrictions or limitations concerning
products and completed operations coverage. This coverage shall be primary coverage and non-contributory and
any coverage maintained by the Als shall be excess over, and shall not contribute with, the additional insured
coverage required hereunder. The CONSULTANT’s and the sub-consultant’s and/or subcontractor’s insurer shall
waive any and all rights of subrogation against the Als. The CONSULTANT shall furnish the AGENCY with
verification of insurance and endorsements required by this AGREEMENT. The AGENCY reserves the right to
require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies at any time.

All insurance shall be obtained from an insurance company authorized to do business in the State of Washington.
The CONSULTANT shall submit a verification of insurance as outlined above within fourteen (14) days of the
execution of this AGREEMENT to:

Name: Mark Bethune, City Administrator
Agency: City of Orting

Address: PO Box 489

City: Orting State: WA Zip: 98360
Email: mbethune@cityoforting.org

Phone: 360.893.2219 ext. 115

Facsimile:

No cancellation of the foregoing policies shall be effective without thirty (30) days prior notice to the AGENCY.

The CONSULTANT’s professional liability to the AGENCY, including that which may arise in reference to
section IX “Termination of Agreement” of this AGREEMENT, shall be limited to the accumulative amount of the
authorized AGREEMENT amount or one million dollars ($1,000,000.00), whichever is greater, unless the limit of
liability is increased by the AGENCY pursuant to Exhibit H. In no case shall the CONSULTANTs professional
liability to third parties be limited in any way.
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The parties enter into this AGREEMENT for the sole benefit of the parties, and to the exclusion of any third party,
and no third party beneficiary is intended or created by the execution of this AGREEMENT.

The AGENCY will pay no progress payments under section V “Payment Provisions™ until the CONSULTANT has
fully complied with this section. This remedy is not exclusive; and the AGENCY may take such other action as is
available to it under other provisions of this AGREEMENT, or otherwise in law.

XHl. Extra Work

A. The AGENCY may at any time, by written order, make changes within the general scope of this AGREEMENT
in the SERVICES to be performed.

B. If any such change causes an increase or decrease in the estimated cost of, or the time required for, performance
of any part of the SERVICES under this AGREEMENT, whether or not changed by the order, or otherwise
affects any other terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT, the AGENCY shall make an equitable adjustment
in the: (1) maximum amount payable; (2) delivery or completion schedule, or both; and (3) other affected terms
and shall modity this AGREEMENT accordingly.

C. The CONSULTANT must submit any “request for equitable adjustment,” hereafter referred to as “CLAIM,”
under this clause within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of the written order. However, if the AGENCY
decides that the facts justify it, the AGENCY may receive and act upon a CLAIM submitted before final
payment of this AGREEMENT.

D. Failure to agree to any adjustment shall be a dispute under the section XI “Disputes” clause. However, nothing
in this clause shall excuse the CONSULTANT from proceeding with the AGREEMENT as changed.

E. Notwithstanding the terms and conditions of paragraphs (A.) and (B.) above, the maximum amount payable for
this AGREEMENT, shall not be increased or considered to be increased except by specific written supplement
to this AGREEMENT.

XIV. Endorsement of Plans

If applicable, the CONSULTANT shall place their endorsement on all plans, estimates, or any other engineering
data furnished by them.

XV. Federal Review

The Federal Highway Administration shall have the right to participate in the review or examination of the
SERVICES in progress.

XVI. Certification of the Consultant and the Agency

Attached hereto as Exhibit “G-1(a and b)” are the Certifications of the CONSULTANT and the AGENCY, Exhibit
“G-2” Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered
Transactions, Exhibit “G-3” Certification Regarding the Restrictions of the Use of Federal Funds for Lobbying

and Exhibit “G-4” Certificate of Current Cost or Pricing Data. Exhibit “G-3" is required only in AGREEMENT’s
over one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000.00) and Exhibit “G-4" is required only in AGREEMENT’s over

five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000.00.) These Exhibits must be executed by the CONSULTANT, and
submitted with the master AGREEMENT, and returned to the AGENCY at the address listed in section III “General
Requirements” prior to its performance of any SERVICES under this AGREEMENT.
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XVII. Complete Agreement

This document and referenced attachments contain all covenants, stipulations, and provisions agreed upon by the
parties. No agent, or representative of either party has authority to make, and the parties shall not be bound by or
be liable for, any statement, representation, promise or agreement not set forth herein. No changes, amendments, or
modifications of the terms hereof shall be valid unless reduced to writing and signed by the parties as a supplement
to this AGREEMENT.

XVIIl. Execution and Acceptance

This AGREEMENT may be simultaneously executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed

to be an original having identical legal effect. The CONSULTANT does hereby ratify and adopt all statements,
representations, warranties, covenants, and AGREEMENT’s contained in the proposal, and the supporting material
submitted by the CONSULTANT, and does hereby accept this AGREEMENT and agrees to all of the terms and
conditions thereof.

XIX. Protection of Confidential Information

The CONSULTANT acknowledges that some of the material and information that may come into its possession
or knowledge in connection with this AGREEMENT or its performance may consist of information that is exempt
from disclosure to the public or other unauthorized persons under either chapter 42.56 RCW or other local, state
or federal statutes (“State’s Confidential Information™). The “State’s Confidential Information” includes, but is
not limited to, names, addresses, Social Security numbers, e-mail addresses, telephone numbers, financial profiles,
credit card information, driver’s license numbers, medical data, law enforcement records (or any other information
identifiable to an individual), STATE and AGENCY source code or object code, STATE and AGENCY security
data, non-public Specifications, STATE and AGENCY non-publicly available data, proprietary software, State
security data, or information which may jeopardize any part of the project that relates to any of these types of
information. The CONSULTANT agrees to hold the State’s Confidential Information in strictest confidence

and not to make use of the State’s Confidential Information for any purpose other than the performance of this
AGREEMENT, to release it only to authorized employees, sub-consultants or subcontractors requiring such
information for the purposes of carrying out this AGREEMENT, and not to release, divulge, publish, transfer,

sell, disclose, or otherwise make it known to any other party without the AGENCY’s express written consent

or as provided by law. The CONSULTANT agrees to release such information or material only to employees,
sub-consultants or subcontractors who have signed a nondisclosure AGREEMENT, the terms of which have

been previously approved by the AGENCY. The CONSULTANT agrees to implement physical, electronic, and
managerial safeguards to prevent unauthorized access to the State’s Confidential Information.

Immediately upon expiration or termination of this AGREEMENT, the CONSULTANT shall, at the AGENCY’s
option: (i) certify to the AGENCY that the CONSULTANT has destroyed all of the State’s Confidential
Information; or (ii) returned all of the State’s Confidential Information to the AGENCY; or (iii) take whatever other
steps the AGENCY requires of the CONSULTANT to protect the State’s Confidential Information.

As required under Executive Order 00-03, the CONSULTANT shall maintain a log documenting the following:
the State’s Confidential Information received in the performance of this AGREEMENT; the purpose(s) for which
the State’s Confidential Information was received; who received, maintained and used the State’s Confidential
Information; and the final disposition of the State’s Confidential Information. The CONSULTANT’s records shall
be subject to inspection, review, or audit upon reasonable notice from the AGENCY.

The AGENCY reserves the right to monitor, audit, or investigate the use of the State’s Confidential Information
collected, used, or acquired by the CONSULTANT through this AGREEMENT. The monitoring, auditing, or
investigating may include, but is not limited to, salting databases.
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Violation of this section by the CONSULTANT or its sub-consultants or subcontractors may result in termination of
this AGREEMENT and demand for return of all State’s Confidential Information, monetary damages, or penalties.

It is understood and acknowledged that the CONSULTANT may provide the AGENCY with information which

is proprietary and/or confidential during the term of this AGREEMENT. The parties agree to maintain the
confidentiality of such information during the term of this AGREEMENT and afterwards. All materials containing
such proprietary and/or confidential information shall be clearly identified and marked as “Confidential” and shall
be returned to the disclosing party at the conclusion of the SERVICES under this AGREEMENT.

The CONSULTANT shall provide the AGENCY with a list of all information and materials it considers confidential
and/or proprietary in nature: (a) at the commencement of the term of this AGREEMENT; or (b) as soon as such
confidential or proprietary material is developed. “Proprietary and/or confidential information™ is not meant to
include any information which, at the time of its disclosure: (i) is already known to the other party; (ii) is rightfully
disclosed to one of the parties by a third party that is not acting as an agent or representative for the other party;

(iii) is independently developed by or for the other party; (iv) is publicly known; or (v) is generally utilized by
unaffiliated third parties engaged in the same business or businesses as the CONSULTANT.

The parties also acknowledge that the AGENCY is subject to Washington State and federal public disclosure

laws. As such, the AGENCY shall maintain the confidentiality of all such information marked proprietary and/

or confidential or otherwise exempt, unless such disclosure is required under applicable state or federal law. If a
public disclosure request is made to view materials identified as “Proprietary and/or confidential information” or
otherwise exempt information, the AGENCY will notify the CONSULTANT of the request and of the date that such
records will be released to the requester unless the CONSULTANT obtains a court order from a court of competent
jurisdiction enjoining that disclosure. If the CONSULTANT fails to obtain the court order enjoining disclosure, the
AGENCY will release the requested information on the date specified.

The CONSULTANT agrees to notify the sub-consultant of any AGENCY communication regarding disclosure that
may include a sub-consultant’s proprietary and/or confidential information. The CONSULTANT notification to the
sub-consultant will include the date that such records will be released by the AGENCY to the requester and state
that unless the sub-consultant obtains a court order from a court of competent jurisdiction enjoining that disclosure
the AGENCY will release the requested information. If the CONSULTANT and/or sub-consultant fail to obtain

a court order or other judicial relief enjoining the AGENCY by the release date, the CONSULTANT shall waive
and release and shall hold harmless and indemnify the AGENCY from all claims of actual or alleged damages,
liabilities, or costs associated with the AGENCY ’s said disclosure of sub-consultants’ information.

XX. Records Maintenance

During the progress of the Work and SERVICES provided hereunder and for a period of not less than six (6) years
from the date of final payment to the CONSULTANT, the CONSULTANT shall keep, retain and maintain all
“documents” pertaining to the SERVICES provided pursuant to this AGREEMENT. Copies of all “documents”
pertaining to the SERVICES provided hereunder shall be made available for review at the CONSULTANT’s place
of business during normal working hours. If any litigation, claim or audit is commenced, the CONSULTANT shall
cooperate with AGENCY and assist in the production of all such documents. “Documents” shall be retained until
all litigation, claims or audit findings have been resolved even though such litigation, claim or audit continues past
the six (6) year retention period.

For purposes of this AGREEMENT, “documents” means every writing or record of every type and description,
including electronically stored information (“ESI”), that is in the possession, control, or custody of the
CONSULTANT, including, without limitation, any and all correspondences, contracts, AGREEMENT °s,
appraisals, plans, designs, data, surveys, maps, spreadsheets, memoranda, stenographic or handwritten

notes, reports, records, telegrams, schedules, diaries, notebooks, logbooks, invoices, accounting records,

work sheets, charts, notes, drafts, scribblings, recordings, visual displays, photographs, minutes of meetings,
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tabulations, computations, summaries, inventories, and writings regarding conferences, conversations or

telephone conversations, and any and all other taped, recorded, written, printed or typed matters of any kind or
description; every copy of the foregoing whether or not the original is in the possession, custody, or control of the
CONSULTANT, and every copy of any of the foregoing, whether or not such copy is a copy identical to an original,
or whether or not such copy contains any commentary or notation whatsoever that does not appear on the original.

For purposes of this AGREEMENT, “ESI” means any and all computer data or electronic recorded media of any
kind, including “Native Files”, that are stored in any medium from which it can be retrieved and examined, either
directly or after translation into a reasonably useable form. ESI may include information and/or documentation
stored in various software programs such as: Email, Outlook, Word, Excel, Access, Publisher, PowerPoint, Adobe
Acrobat, SQL databases, or any other software or electronic communication programs or databases that the
CONSULTANT may use in the performance of its operations. ESI may be located on network servers, backup
tapes, smart phones, thumb drives, CDs, DVDs, floppy disks, work computers, cell phones, laptops or any other
electronic device that CONSULTANT uses in the performance of its Work or SERVICES hereunder, including any
personal devices used by the CONSULTANT or any sub-consultant at home.

“Native files” are a subset of ESI and refer to the electronic format of the application in which such ESI is normally
created, viewed, and /or modified.

The CONSULTANT shall include this section XX “Records Maintenance” in every subcontract it enters into in
relation to this AGREEMENT and bind the sub-consultant to its terms, unless expressly agreed to otherwise in
writing by the AGENCY prior to the execution of such subcontract. "

In witness whereof, the parties hereto have executed this AGREEMENT as of the day and year shown in the
“Execution Date” box on page one (1) of this AGREEMENT.

Signature Date

Signature Date

Any modification, change, or reformation of this AGREEMENT shall require approval as to form by the Office
of the Attorney General.
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Exhibit A
Scope of Work

Project No.

See attached Exhibit A.
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Parametrix

ENGINEERING . PLANNING . ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCES

SRR R AT T AR o AR SRS

SCOPE OF WORK
City of Orting
Whitehawk Boulevard Extension

This Scope of Work and Budget covers the anticipated effort to complete a final design of the SW Connector as
described below.

PROJECT LIMITS

The project limits are Whitehawk Boulevard from SR 162 to Calistoga Street West. The alignment of Whitehawk
Boulevard will be located between the existing terminus at Orting Ave NW and extend to the intersection of
Kansas Street and Calistoga Street West.

ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS

VWhitehawk Boulevard

e Whitehawk Boulevard will be extended to Calistoga Street West. The connection to Calistoga Street West
will be at the Kansas Street intersection.

e Improvements will include a two or three-lane section with a travel lane in each direction and a median
or center turn lane, curb, gutter, sidewalk, bike lanes, and/or combined-use trail, drainage, utility
adjustments, iltumination, channelization, and signing and landscaping. The sidewalk widths will be
determined based on the WSDOT Shared Use Path design criteria.

e Anew intersection control method (signal or roundabout) will be designed at the intersection with
SR 162.

e Anew intersection control method (signal or roundabout) will be designed at the intersection with
Calistoga Street West.

e  Whitehawk Boulevard will be re-channelized as necessary between SR 162 and the current terminus.
STORM DRAINAGE

Stormwater runoff from the extension of Whitehawk Boulevard will be collected and conveyed to a project
specific stormwater facility. The facility may be designed as a Low Impact Development (LID) type BMP such as a
bioretention area or porous asphalt for the shared use path. Improvements may be coordinated with anticipated
adjacent projects such as the new ballpark facilities.

ILLUMINATION

An illumination system will be installed with this project consistent with adjacent City projects and standards.
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SCOPE OF WORK (continued)

INTERSECTIONS

A new traffic control method will be installed at the SR 162/Whitehawk Boulevard and Whitehawk
Boulevard/Calistoga intersections.

WATER MAIN

An existing 8-inch-diameter water main will be extended to Calistoga and tied into the existing system to
complete a loop.

SANITARY SEWER

The gravity sanitary sewer main will be extended to the extent practicable within the extension of Whitehawk
Boulevard.

LANDSCAPING

Planter strips and possibly street trees will be installed at selected locations; an irrigation system will not be
included.

WSDOT REVIEW AND APPROVAL

We will prepare channelization and intersection plans for approval by WSDOT. An intersection Control Evaluation
(ICE) will be prepared and submitted to WSDOT for review and approval. The Scope of Work will include
coordination with appropriate WSDOT staff to obtain the necessary plan approvals prior to advertisement.

ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTATION AND PERMITTING
e We will obtain environmental approvals for the project consistent with SEPA and NEPA.

e We will identify and delineate the boundaries of wetlands and/or streams within the potential roadway
prism.

e  We will complete analyses required for NEPA/SEPA documentation such as a noise analysis, hazardous
waste assessment, Section 4(f) evaluation, and cultural resource assessment.

e Finally, we will provide for updates to permits and the NEPA documentation, if needed, should project
funding or other aspects of the project result in delays of construction.

Below is a detailed breakdown of the work effort required to complete final design of the above described Scope
of Work.

TASK 1 — FINAL DESIGN
Subtask 1 Project Management and QA/QC

Work under this task includes time to administer and coordinate the various project elements and will be ongoing
throughout all phases of the project. Work includes the following:
e Coordination, correspondence, and review meetings with City of Orting staff.

e Coordination with private utilities regarding the proposed locations of utility poles that require relocation.

City of Orting 216-1711-020 (04/01)
Whitehawk Boulevard Extension 2 April 2019



SCOPE OF WORK (continued)

e In-house project administration, scheduling, and direction of project staff.

e Preparation of monthly progress reports.

Product(s)
e  Monthly invoices and progress reports.
e Miscellaneous correspondence and letters.

e In-house monthly project meetings.

Assumption(s)

e This phase will last 18 months.
Subtask 2 — Mapping

The goal of this task will be to provide a base map with current right-of-way and topographical information to be
used in final design.

Limits
e  Whitehawk Extension —Mapping will be performed within the right-of-way limits of the intersection of
Whitehawk Boulevard and Orting Court NW for a distance of 100 feet northerly along Whitehawk Boulevard
and 100 feet easterly along Orting Court NW. Mapping will continue southerly from the intersection along
an 80-foot-wide corridor centered on the southerly extension of Whitehawk Boulevard and lying within Tax
Parcels 051931-4-035 and 051931-1-114. Mapping will continue along the described corridor through Tax
Parcel 051931-1-074 to the approximate 200-foot Shoreline Management Setback Line; thence easterly to

intersect Calistoga Street East. Mapping will continue along the right-of-way limits of Calistoga Street East
for 150 feet in each direction from the intersection.

e Wetland Flag Locations — Wetland flags, data points, and test pits will be located as delineated by a
wetland biologist. Exact locations are not available at this time; however, aerial mapping indicates a large
wetland located south of the proposed ball fields and a smaller wetland near the easterly levee of the
Puyallup River at the intersection of the above-described corridor.

e Proposed Storm Drainage Facilities — Mapping will include those areas defined by the Engineer for use in
the retention/detention of stormwater.

e  Existing conditions and improvements will be located during the mapping process. In general, the
features will include sidewalks, curbs, fence line, utilities, pavement marking, wetland information, and
significant trees 12 inches and larger. Ground conditions such as tops, toes, and grade breaks will be
gathered at sufficient intervals to create 1-foot contours. An underground utility locate firm will be
contracted through Parametrix to electronically identify and paint on the surface all metallic utilities
which lie within the above-described limits. Parametrix will then map the paint marks and identify the
utility on the drawing.

e From existing public records and field located monuments, Parametrix will calculate and graphically show
on the above-described base map the location of public road rights-of-way and parcel lines along the
proposed alignment.
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SCOPE OF WORK (continued)

Product(s)

e Base map in AutoCAD format.

Assumption(s)
e Right-of-entry will be granted to Parametrix surveyors to enter private property for mapping purposes.

e The ordering of title reports and underground utility location services will be the responsibility of
Parametrix.

e The setting of property corners or the recording of a Record of Survey is not a part of this scope, noris it
anticipated to be needed.

Subtask 3 — Right-oft-Way Plans

The goal of this task will be to prepare right-of-way (ROW) plans that show the proposed alignment and its
relationship with public rights-of-way, private property, and buffer areas associated with wetlands and shoreline
setbacks. The following tasks will be performed:

e Right-of-way plans will be prepared showing alignments and impacts to private property.

e Area calculations will be performed and shown on the plans for acquisition of underlying fee and fee
simple parcels.

e Legal descriptions will be prepared for the proposed acquisition and will be accompanied by an exhibit
map.

e Atitle company will be contacted to provide title reports on all parcels encumbered by the proposed

alignment.
Product(s)
e ROW plans.

e legal descriptions with exhibit maps.

Assumption(s)
e Right-of-entry will be granted to Parametrix surveyors to enter private property for mapping purposes.

e The ordering of title reports and underground utility location services will be the responsibility of
Parametrix.

e The setting of property corners or the recording of a Record of Survey is not a part of this scope, noris it
anticipated to be needed.

e Property acquisition coordination with property owners and preparation of purchase agreements will be
completed by the City.
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SCOPE OF WORK (continued)

Subiask 4 — St ter Repo

This task will provide for the preparation of a stormwater report and stormwater pollution prevention plan in
accordance with the WSDOE (Washington State Department of Ecology) 2014 Stormwater Management Manual
for Western Washington. The following tasks will be performed:

e The stormwater facility will be a project specific facility for treatment and detention of runoff from the
Whitehawk Boulevard Project.

e The facility may be a multiple-use facility and/or a bio-retention facility.
e Stormwater runoff will be discharged following detention and water quality treatment to an existing
City-owned system into the Puyallup River.
Product(s)
e Stormwater Report in PDF format.

e Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan in PDF format.

Assumption(s)

e The reports will be prepared in accordance with the 2014 Stormwater Management Manual for Western
Washington (Department of Ecology).

e Stormwater conveyance sizing calculations will be provided based on the City Standards.
Subtask & - Preliminary Design

The information obtained from field investigations and the Corridor Study will be incorporated into a 30 percent
design. This design wili show the configurations of lane widths, sidewalk, planter strips, signal layout, and
stormwater facilities. An initial review of the preliminary design will take place with City staff and the design team.
Modifications to the preliminary design will be made based on the initial review, and a construction cost estimate
will be prepared. The revised design can then be presented to all affected stakeholders at a Street Committee
meeting or workshop. This meeting will focus on the major design elements and construction cost. Feedback from
this meeting will be used to further refine the design and then be routed back to the City for final approval of the
major design components. Upon approval of the major design components, the channelization and intersection
plan will be submitted to WSDOT for approval.

The preliminary design plan and profile will include the following elements:
1. Roadway horizontal and vertical alignment.
Roadway and sidewalk widths.
Planter locations.
Utility extensions.

Anticipated roadside safety elements.

Preliminary signal layout.

2
3
4
5
6. Retaining wall type, size, and locations.
7
8. Channelization improvements.

9

Stormwater Mitigation Plan.
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SCOPE OF WORK (continued)

Product(s)
¢ |Initial design review meeting with the City.
e Preliminary design plan and profile, 20-scale color roll piot.
e (Construction cost estimate.
e Review meeting with the City on preliminary design.
e Revised preliminary design plan and profile, 20-scale color roll plot.
e Revised construction cost estimate.

e Channelization and intersection plans for approval will be delivered to WSDOT for review and comment.

Assumption(s):
e Two meetings will be required to finalize the preliminary design.
e The City will invite stakeholders to design review meetings.
e Channelization plans will only be provided to WSDOT for review for the SR 162/Whitehawk Boulevard
intersection.

Subtask 6 — Final Design

The purpose of this task will be to develop final plans and specifications necessary for bidding and construction.
All materials and installation procedures will be in conformance with the City of Orting Standards and WSDOT
Standards, except as modified to address specific project needs. All plans will be completed using AutoCAD

Civil 3D 2018. Plan format, layout, and presentation will follow the format of past projects completed for the City
by Parametrix. The following Final Plan Sheet Index is anticipated:

Final Plan Sheet Index

Plan Sheet Number of Sheets

-

Cover Sheet

Legend/Typical Sections

Demolition and Utility Relocation Plan {20 scale plan)
Roadway Plan and Profile (20 scale plan)

Stormwater Mitigation Plan and Details

Water/Sewer Plan and Profile (20 scale plan)

Channelization, Signage, and Illumination Plan (20 scale plan)

Signal Plans and Details (20 scale plan)
lllumination Plans and Details
Signal Interconnect Plans

Restoration/Mitigation Plans
Miscellaneous Details/Landscaping
Approved Channelization Plans (WSDOT)
Total Estimated Sheet Count

w A NN NN U O W W W

u
B
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SCOPE OF WORK (continued)

Product(s)

Opinion of probable construction cost.
One full-size (22 by 34) and five half-size {11 by 17) sets of camera-ready reproducible plans.

One set of contract specifications (hard copy).

Assumption(s)

The Scope of Work and Budget for final design assumes that the decisions made during preliminary
design, will not change. Changes to items such as sidewalk location, stormwater treatment type and
location, and vertical and horizontal alignment of the roadway will be considered extra work and may
require a budget amendment.

The Scope of Work and Budget for final design assumes that the channelization and intersection plans at
the Whitehawk/SR 162 intersection will be approved by WSDOT within two review cycles following the
initial submittal. Additional review requests by WSDOT may be considered extra work.

Subtask 7 — Gectechnical Report

HWA Geosciences will complete subsurface explorations to characterize subsurface soil and groundwater
conditions to support design of the project elements. Their findings, conclusions, and geotechnical engineering
recommendations will be summarized in a report. A separate scope has been prepared by HWA Geosciences to
support their effort.

Product(s)

Draft and Final Geotechnical Report summarizing the results of the geotechnical field explorations and
geotechnical engineering conclusions and recommendations for design of the project. The report will
include a site plan showing approximate exploration locations, descriptive logs of subsurface explorations,
results of field and laboratory tests, and a description of soil and groundwater conditions encountered in
the explorations.

Assumption(s)

Any required City permits will be provided at no charge.

If necessary, the City or Parametrix will arrange for right-of-entry onto private property to complete the
borings.

The locations and elevations of all borings will not be surveyed. A drawing showing the approximate
locations of the borings will be given to Parametrix so that Parametrix survey crews may pick up the
locations.

Exploration borings located in the right-of-way will be patched with concrete.
Field exploration will be performed during the daylight hours.
Soil samples will be disposed of S0 days after the date of the final report.

Piezometers will be installed in accordance with WAC 160-360. Abandonment of piezometers is not
included in the Scope of Work. Abandonment of piezometers should be made part of the construction
requirements.
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SCOPE OF WORK (continued)

All traffic control costs are incidental to the geotechnical exploration and design.
All utility locate costs are incidental to the geotechnical exploration and design.

Parametrix and the City of Orting will provide a single, conformed set of review comments for the Draft
document, and will not raise new review issues after issuing the Draft comments.

This Scope of Work does not include environmental sampling and testing in the event that contaminated
soils are encountered.

Subtask 8 — Document Production and Bidding Services

This task will cover services related to producing necessary bidding documents. Tasks to be performed include:

Reproduction of plans and routing one full-size (22 by 34) and five half-size (11 by 17) sets to the City of
Orting.

Creating and placing Advertisement of Bids.
Addressing Bidders’ questions.

One contract addendum.

Distributing plans and plan holders list.
Attending bid opening and reviewing bids.

Preparing recommendation of award letter.

TASK 2 — ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTATION AND PERMITTING

Subtask 1 — NEFA Documentation

Parametrix will prepare a WSDOT Categorical Exclusion (CE) Documentation Form in support of a NEPA
Documented Categorical Exclusion. Parametrix shall submit the draft CE Form for approval by the City for review
prior to submission to WSDOT.

It is assumed that the following supporting technical materials will be prepared to accompany the CE Form:

Traffic analysis (Prepared by PH Consulting),
No Effect Document,

Wetland delineation report,

Noise analysis,

Section 4{f) de minimus documentation, and

Cultural Resources Study.

Product(s):

Draft and Final CE (Categorical Exclusion) Form including above-listed supporting technical materials.

PDF versions of all draft and final documents will be provided in addition to up to six printed hard copies.
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SCOPE OF WORK (continued)

Assumption(s):

e Up to one in-person meeting by a Parametrix Senior Engineer and Senior Planner with WSDOT Local
Programs staff persons to discuss proposed NEPA approach.

e |tis anticipated that a Documented Categorical Exclusion will be acceptable for this project for WSDOT
and FHWA approval.

» No federally-listed threatened or endangered species or critical habitat will be impacted by the
project. A No Effect Document will be sufficient to address potential project impacts. If it is
determined that the project requires a Biological Assessment, additional scope and budget will be
required.

e No air quality analysis will be required.

e Acultural resources study will be necessary. Parametrix will coordinate with WSDOT Local Programs to
determine the APE {Area of Potential Effect) prior to investigation.

e Parametrix will prepare Section 4(f) documentation for a de minimus impact to Gratzer Park and/or
Whitehawk Park, if required. A full Section 4{f) analysis (e.g., analysis of feasible and prudent avoidance
alternatives) will not be required.

e WSDOT and FHWA comments on draft deliverables will be submitted to Parametrix in a consolidated
Excel spreadsheet comment form.

e Preparation of the SEPA checklist will not be required, and the City will adopt the DCE under SEPA.
Subtask 2 — Weiland Delineation Field Woik

Parametrix will identify and delineate the boundaries of wetlands and/or streams within the project area,
including the portions of parcel numbers 0519311113, 0519311114, 0519311700, and 0519311093 that are
located east of the Calistoga Setback Levee. After conducting in-office background research, wetlands will be
delineated in accordance with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps) Wetland Delineation Manual (Corps
Technical Report Y-87-1) and Regional Supplement to the Corps’ Wetland Delineation Manual: Western
Mountains, Valleys, and Coast Region (ERDC/EL TR 10-3}. Wetlands will be rated according to the Washington
State Wetland Rating System for Western Washington (Hruby 2014). Streams, if present, will be delineated in
accordance with the Washington State Department of Ecology Ordinary High Water Mark delineation manual
(Anderson, et al.,, 2016). The wetland and stream delineation will inform the CE Form and will also be used for
federal, state and local permitting (see Subtask 7 and 9).

Product(s):
e Wetland background information, and data and rating forms to be incorporated into a Critical Area
Report compliance with Orting Municipal Code—see Subtask S.
Assumption(s):

e Wetland flags will be instrument surveyed. Surveyors to provide wetland map in CADD format to
project biologists.

e The delineation work can be completed by up to 3 Parametrix biclogists, for up to 5 days
(10 hours/day).
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SCOPE OF WORK (continued)

e Wetlands on the eastern half of parcel number 0519304037 were previously delineated by
Parametrix staff in March 2019, in support of the Gratzer Park-Phase 2 project. This existing
delineation will be incorporated into the Critical Areas Report for the Project.

e The City will obtain written right of entry for private property where needed.

Noi

The noise subconsultant will perform a traffic noise analysis for widening, extension, and improvements to
Whitehawk Boulevard NW to the project match point at Kansas Street SW at Calistoga Street SW. A detailed
description of work to be performed is outlined below, including the required data for the analysis.

The sub-consultant will conduct a reconnaissance of the project study area to identify all the land uses and locate
noise sensitive properties within 500 feet of the project as described in 23 CFR Part 772. Physical and terrain
features that affect noise propagation and features that may be altered during construction shall be identified.

Noise measurements and traffic counts will be conducted at sites as needed to calibrate the traffic noise model
and to ensure complete description of existing noise levels that are representative of the land uses along the
proposed alignments. An estimate of 8 noise monitoring sites will be needed for this project. The task will include:

A reconnaissance of the project study area to identify all of the land uses and locate noise sensitive
properties within 500 feet of the project as described in 23 CFR Part 772. Physical and terrain features
that affect noise propagation and features that may be altered during construction shall be identified.

Conduct noise measurements and traffic count at sites as needed to calibrate the traffic noise model and
to ensure complete description of existing noise levels that are representative of the land uses along the
proposed alignments. An estimate of 8 noise monitoring sites will be needed for this project. Conduct
measurements near existing active roadways for a 15-minute sampling period during daytime off-peak
hours {10 AM to 4 PM) when traffic is moving freely. Traffic counts and classifications will be conducted
concurrently with the noise measurements. All noise sources will be noted and those that may interfere
with future determination of noise abatement will be identified. Due to the new roadway connection
between Whitehawk Boulevard NW and Kansas Street SW, thirty {30) minute background measurements
will be taken at sites along Groff Avenue NW, Orting Avenue NW, and Burnett Court NW. Measurements
in these areas will be used for comparison with the 10 dB substantial increase criteria. The measured data
and traffic counts will be used to help establish the existing noise levels in those areas with no existing
roadways or minimal existing traffic.

Predict traffic noise levels at each validation measurement site using the FHWA Traffic Noise Model
(TNM, version 2.5) using the existing roadway configurations and the traffic counts from the noise
measurement survey. The sound level predictions will be compared with the measured sound levels to
reach close agreement of +/- 2 dB.

Locate representative noise modeling sites throughout the project study area based on site visits, review
of aerial mapping, and land use inspection. Frequently, one modeling location will be used to represent
several nearby locations expected to have noise levels that are the same, ar slightly less, than the
modeling location. The number of modeling sites will be sufficient to accurately predict existing (2019),
future {year 2040) No-Build and future Build traffic noise levels, identify all potential traffic noise impacts,
and evaluate traffic noise abatement measures. It is estimated that 20 to 25 noise modeling sites may be
needed to provide representative noise levels along the project corridor. Using the validated model,
existing peak hour traffic volumes from project Traffic Engineers will be used with posted speed limit
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SCOPE OF WORK (continued)

speeds to calculate existing peak hour noise levels at each of the modeling sites from above. Inlocations
where there are no existing roadways or very low existing traffic volumes, noise measurements, along
with supporting noise levels from the noise mode! (where possible), will be used to represent the existing
noise levels. Traffic noise levels projections will also be performed for the same sites using the future
No-Build traffic volumes. These predicted noise level will be used for comparison with the future Build
noise levels and to aid in the understanding of the potential change in project area noise levels.

Model future Build noise levels during peak hour at the selected noise sensitive sites with the proposed

new and improved roadways and ancillary facilities included. The future Build traffic noise levels will be

compared to the approach or exceed and allowable increase noise criteria using the WSDOT policy. For

residences, noise impacts occur if future traffic noise levels approach or exceed 66 dBA Leq during peak
hours. The connection of Whitehawk Boulevard NW and Kansas Street SW could result in impacts under
the WSDOT Substantial Increase Criteria of 10 dB or more over the existing traffic noise levels.

Consider noise abatement measures at locations along the alignments where traffic noise impacts are
predicted in accordance with FHWA and WSDOT requirements. Due to limited right-of-way, it is assumed
that noise abatement measures considered will be limited to noise walls, as there is not sufficient right-
of-way to consider berms in most sections of the corridor. If noise walls are necessary, the subconsultant
shall provide location, length, height, profile, estimated cost (using WSDOT Policy) and number of
benefiting noise sensitive properties for each proposed barrier. This information will be used to show
compliance with WSDOT criteria for reasonable and feasibie noise abatement for any recommended
noise barriers. For those areas with noise impacts and no recommended noise abatement measures, the
analysis will provide a discussion for these impacts and specifically note reasons for not including any
noise abatement.

Qualitatively assess construction activities that may cause annoyance at nearby noise sensitive land uses
in accordance with WSDOT's procedures. The subconsultant will discuss local laws applying to
construction noise.

The contractor shall prepare a noise technical report summarizing the finding of the noise study. The
contents will include an introduction to acoustics, land use, methodology, existing noise levels, future
No-Build and Build noise levels, noise impacts, and recommended mitigation. The noise report will follow
the WSDOT policy for a traffic noise technical analysis. The report will inciude maps of existing and
proposed alignments on vicinity scale maps. Impacts, monitoring locations and sensitive receivers will be
shown on area maps at an appropriate scale. Tables, with comparisons, will be prepared to aid in the
understanding of project impacts and mitigation. A discussion of potential impacts to future land uses in
the context of existing and planned land uses will be provided. Construction noise impacts and local
regulations, as described above, will be discussed. The initial report will be submitted in MS Word for
review and comments from the City, project shareholders and WSDOT. After revisions based on the
comments are completed, a final report will be produced in PDF electronic format.

Product(s):

Noise Analysis Technical Report (draft and final)
Noise monitoring sheets and details
Noise wall locations and heights (where applicable)

TNM Files
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SCOPE OF WORK (continued)

Assumption(s):

o  Work will be performed by Michael Minor and Associates, Inc., as a subconsultant to Parametrix.
Noise analysis will be conducted from the proposed new signal at SR 162 to the project terminus at
Calistoga St W and Kansas St W.

e The study will be based on the current Federal Aid Policy Guide, Sub-chapter H, Part 772 Procedures for
Abatement of Highway Traffic Noise and Construction Noise, Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) and
the 2011 Traffic Noise Policy and Procedures, Washington State Department of Transportation (WSDQOT),
October 2012. FHWA's Traffic Noise Model (TNM) 2.5 will be used.

e The future with project conditions will consist of one build alternative.

e One future year {design year) will be analyzed.

¢ No quantitative noise modeling will be done for construction noise effects.

e The Traffic Noise Analysis Report will not require more than two review cycles.

e WSDOT comments on draft deliverables will be submitted to Parametrix in a consolidated Excel
spreadsheet comment form

Subizsk 4 — Seciion 4{f) -valuation

Parametrix will develop draft and final Section 4(f} de minimus documentation for WSDOT and FHWA approval if
impacts to either Gratzer Park or Whitehawk Park are unavoidable. Parametrix will obtain approval from City of
Orting Parks and Recreation and aid them with documentation and public notice requirements, as needed.
Product(s):
e Letter or similar for submission and presentation in City of Orting Parks and Recreation meeting.
e Draft and Final Section 4(f) de minimus use form (per WSDOT Local Programs CE guidebook and
23 CFR 774).
Assumption(s):
e The project will not result in significant impacts to Section 4(f) properties and a full Section 4(f} evaluation
will not be necessary.

Subtask 5 - Cuiltural Rescurces Assessmeant

This task will identify cultural and historical resources potentially occurring or documented in the area in order to
satisfy requirements of Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act and related regulations. Parametrix
will provide a draft APE (Area of Potential Effect) to WSDOT Local Programs for DAHP approval. Subseguent to
APE approval, a cultural resources subconsultant will complete the cultural resources field investigation and
compile a report for submission to WSDQT for consultation with DAHP.

Product(s):

e Cultural and Historical Resources Memorandum.
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SCOPE OF WORK (continued)

Assumption(s):

e The cultural and historical resources study and memorandum will update any prior investigations
conducted within the APE and include new areas not previously surveyed.

e  Work will be performed by Cultural Resources Consultants, as a subconsultant to Parametrix.
Subtask 8 — Environmental Permiis and Approvals

Under this task, Parametrix will prepare permit application materials needed to obtain necessary permits and
approvals subsequent to NEPA approval by WSDOT and FHWA. It is anticipated that the following environmental
permits will be needed.

e Individual Section 404 Permit from the US Army Corps of Engineers (Corps} and Individual 401 Water
Quality Certification from the Washington Department of Ecology (Ecology)

e C(ritical Area Permit for City of Orting for impacts to wetlands and floodplains
Subtask 7 — Section 404 Permit and Section 401 Water Quality Certification

A Joint Aquatic Resources Permit Application (JARPA) at 30% design level will be prepared for submission to the
Corps and to Ecology.

This task also includes ongoing coordination and support for the City during the preliminary design and
environmental permitting phase. The City is anticipated to submit for the permits and review identified above
using preliminary design information; therefore, Parametrix anticipates that ongoing coordination will be required
to provide the City and regulatory agencies additional project information to support the permit application
process, including the alternative analysis, as the design is advanced.

Product(s):

e Draft and Final Joint Aquatics Resources Permit Application (JARPA) for Section 404 permit and
Section 401 water guality certification.

e Corps pre-application meeting materials package and meeting minutes

Assumption(s):

e The estimate includes preparing and submitting a JARPA for a Section 404 Permit and a Section 401
Water Quality Certification. The cost estimate does not include fees that may be required to obtain these
permits.

e |tisassumed that an HPA from WDFW will not be required.

e This task assumes preparation and attendance for a formal Corps/Ecology Section 404/401 preapplication
meeting.

e This task includes preparation and attendance for a Carps Jurisdiction Determination (JD) field meeting at
the project site.

e This task assumes up to 80 hours of coordination time with the City, Corps, and WSDOT and other
applicable agencies.
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SCOPE OF WORK (continued)

0 (34 fte
Based on initial research of the project site, it is anticipated that the project will not be able to be constructed
without permanently impacting more than 0.5 acre of wetlands/waters of the US, which is typically the threshold
between a Section 404 Nationwide Permit (NWP) and a Section 404 Individual Permit (IP). This will be confirmed
with the wetland delineation. If more than 0.5 acre of wetlands/waters of the US will be impacted by the project,
an IP will be required by the Corps, which also requires the completion of a 404(b){1) Alternatives Analysis. In
addition, an IP will also require an Individual 401 Water Quality Certification, typically performed by Ecology.

If an IP is required, Parametrix will prepare a 404(b){1) Alternatives Analysis that will meet federal 404(b)(1)
applicable provisions as set out in 40 CFR Part 230 in the context of the purpose and need of the project. Projects
involving fill in waters of the U.S. that do not qualify for a general Nationwide Permit are required to evaluate
“practicable alternatives" that would have less impact on the aguatic ecosystem. Parametrix will evaluate the
Project following the Alternatives Analysis Guidelines developed by the Corps (2003).

The alternatives analysis will document the constraints that limited the project to the proposed design and
evaluate how the on-site project alternative minimizes wetland impacts while still achieving the project purpose
and need. Therefore, the alternatives analysis must be approved by the agencies prior to approval of the
mitigation plan.

The draft alternatives analysis will rely heavily on pre-existing documents prepared for design and regulatory
compliance, including, but not limited to, the JARPA, SEPA/NEPA documents, traffic study, and the critical areas
report.

To complete a comprehensive analysis up to 3 alternatives (including the preferred alternative) will be evaluated
for wetland impacts. This evaluation will be conducted primarily by a CADD designer, and the result will be
documented numerically and as a graphic for the alternatives analysis. It is presumed that the proposed project
will have less adverse impacts to aguatic resources, and as such is the least environmentally damaging practicable
{e.g., available and capable of being done considering cost, technology, and logistics) alternative.

Following submittal of the draft alternative analysis, Parametrix will meet with the primary agencies (Corps and
Ecology) to discuss the draft analysis and solicit comments. Parametrix will then review the comments and
respond to them in the final alternative analysis, as appropriate.

Product(s):
e Draft and Final 404 (b)(1) alternatives analysis for Corps Section 404 Individual Permit

e Corps pre-application meeting materials package and meeting minutes
Sub-task 9 - Critical Area Report and Conceptual Mitigation Plan

Parametrix will prepare a Critical Areas Report (CAR) based on the wetland and stream delineation and previous
studies, as applicable. The CAR will include wetland data sheets, categorization {according to Washington State
Department of Ecology and City of Orting requirements), classification, buffers, functional assessment, and impact

City of Orting 216-1711-020 {04/01)
Whitehawk Boulevard Extension 14 April 2019



SCOPE OF WORK (continued)

analysis for the project. The CAR will include a description of mapped floodplain in the project area. The CAR will
also include a conceptual wetlands mitigation plan.

e Mitigation Sequencing will follow the 404(b)(1} alternatives analysis.
e Developing a conceptual mitigation strategy for impacts associated with the preferred alignment.

e Coordinating and managing this task.

Product(s):

e Draft and Final Critical Areas Report, including conceptual mitigation plan (including electronic copy in
PDF format).

e PDF versions of all draft and final documents will be provided in addition to up to six printed hard copies.

Assumption(s):

e The project alignment will be located and designed to minimize impacts to wetlands, streams, and buffers
to the extent possible.

e Theimpacts analysis portion of the Critical Areas Report will be based on impacts identified per final
design and location of the proposed alignment.

e The Critical Areas Report will address wetlands, streams (if present) and frequently flooded areas
(floodplains). Geologic hazards will be addressed separately in the geotechnical report.

e The conceptual mitigation plan will consist of a chapter or section in the Critical Areas Report and will not
include or consist of a separate document or construction documents.

e Any required mitigation will occur onsite or within close proximity to the project area. If a mitigation site
is not easily identifiable, additional scope and budget may be needed to assist the City in finding a
suitable site. A final mitigation plan will be created as a separate document or as part of the final
engineering design construction documents.

e No onsite meetings with agencies will be required under this task.
Subtask 10 — Final Wetland Mitigation Plan

Parametrix will prepare a Final Wetland Mitigation Plan, based upon the conceptual mitigation plan. The
mitigation plan will comply with Part 332 of the Federal Rule on Compensatory Mitigation for Losses of Aquatic
Resources (33CFR Part 332, 2008) and the Washington State Wetland Mitigation Guidance (2006). The Final
Wetland Mitigation Plan will include both tandscape and grading drawings for the wetland mitigation site. The
landscape plan drawings will include approximate planting areas with a hatch pattern that denotes a particular
type of site preparation and planting regime. Notes and details will be included on plan sets showing typical ptant
size, spacing, layout, grading etc. The location of each individual plant will not be shown on the planting plans.
Grading plans will be developed for excavated wetland areas.

After agency review, a Final Wetland Mitigation Plan will be prepared that incorporates agency comments.

Product(s):
e Draft and final Wetland Mitigation Plan
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SCOPE OF WORK {continued)

Assumption(s):
e All mitigation for the Project can be accomplished at the site identified in the conceptual mitigation plan.

e All mitigation for the project can be accomplished within an area up to 5 acres. If additional mitigation is
needed, additional scope and budget may be needed to design the site.

e No additional studies will be required beyond those already specified in this scope of work.

e The Mitigation Design will comply with Part 332 of the Federal Rule on Compensatory Mitigation for
Losses of Aquatic Resources (33 CFR Part 332, 2008) to address the impacts to wetlands anticipated from
project construction.

PHASE 3 -~ CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
Future Subtasks ~ Construction Services

Construction services have not been included as part of this Scope of Work and Budget. Upon completion of final
design, a contract amendment will be prepared to cover this effort for your review.
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Exhibit B
DBE Participation

HWA Geosciences Inc. 4%
PH Consulting LLC  13%

Agreement Number:

Exhibit B - Local Agency A&E Professional Services Cost Plus Fixed Fee Consultant Agreement Revised 11/01/2017  Page 1 of 1



Exhibit C
Preparation and Delivery of Electronic Engineering and Other Data

In this Exhibit the agency, as applicable, is to provide a description of the format and standards the consultant is
to use in preparing electronic files for transmission to the agency. The format and standards to be provided may
include, but are not limited to, the following:

I. Surveying, Roadway Design & Plans Preparation Section
A. Survey Data

Raw data, collection files, text point files (comma delineated(

B. Roadway Design Files
AutoCAD, C3D

C. Computer Aided Drafting Files
AutoCAD, C3D

Agreement Number:
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D. Specify the Agency’s Right to Review Product with the Consultant

The Agency retains ownership of all electronic files created.

E. Specify the Electronic Deliverables to Be Provided to the Agency
AutoCAD, C3D drawings and signed and sealed PDFs

F. Specify What Agency Furnished Services and Information Is to Be Provided

Agreement Number:

Exhibit C - Local Agency A&E Professional Services Cost Plus Fixed Fee Consultant Agreement Revised 11/01/2017  Page 2 of 4



II. Any Other Electronic Files to Be Provided

As deemed necessary by agreement of the Agency and Consultant.

[I1. Methods to Electronically Exchange Data
FTP, Email, CD or DVD
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A. Agency Software Suite
N/A

B. Electronic Messaging System
N/A

C. File Transfers Format

N/A
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Exhibit D
Prime Consultant Cost Computations

See Attached

Agreement Number:
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Exhibit D

Prime Consultant Cost Computations

Project: Whitehawk Boulevard Extension

Direct Salary Cost (DSC):

Classification Man Hours = Rate Cost
Sr. Engineer 240 X $59.26 $14,222.40
Sr. Project Controls Specialist 106 X $39.44 $4,180.64
Sr. Consultant 16 X $87.67 $1,402.72
Engineer ll| 756 X $38.46 $29,075.76
Designer IV 638 X $43.58 $27,804.04
Survey Supervisor 52 X $56.65 $2,945.80
Technical Lead 40 X $37.26 $1,490.40
Surveyor 11| 88 X $36.20 $3,185.60
Surveyor |l 88 X $26.85 $2,362.80
Project Accountant 10 X $31.25 $312.50
Sr. Publications Specialist 126 X $32.26 $4,064.76
Sr. Planner 102 X $55.65 $5,676.30
Sr. Scientist/Biologist 100 X $56.93 $5,693.00
Scientist/Biologist IV 258 X $47.73 $12,314.34
Scientist/Biologist Il 132 X $32.09 $4,235.88
Scientist Il 174 X $41.83 $7,278.42
Scientist/Biologist IV 72 X $49.00 $3,528.00
Scientist/Biologist I 40 X $34.62 $1,384.80
Sr. Planner 112 X $52.83 $5,916.96
Technical Lead 78 X S44.74 $3,489.72
Sr. GIS Analyst 84 X $33.37 $2,803.08
Publications Supervisor 46 X $36.61 $1,684.06
Planner IV 128 X $36.76 $4,705.28
Total DSC $149,757.26
Overhead (OH Cost -- including Salary Additives):
OH Rate x DSC of 179.52 % xS $149,757.26 $268,844.23
Fixed Fee (FF):
FF Rate x DSC of 30 % xS $149,757.26 $44,927.18
Reimbursables:
Mileage ($0.58/mile) $800.00
Lodging $484,00
Survey Equipment (§155/Use) $1,240.00
Subconsultants:
Contract Land Services $64,078.49
Cultural Resource Consultants, LLC $6,050.00
HWA Geosciences Inc. $24,967.80

Michael Minor & Associates

$16,774.23




PH Consultings LLC
Grand Total

John Wright, PE

$90,594.62

$668,517.81

Date: 6/4/2019

Agreement Number:

WSDOT Form 140-089 EF Exhibit D
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Exhibit E
Sub-consultant Cost Computations

There isn’t any sub-consultant participation at this time. The CONSULTANT shall not sub-contract for
the performance of any work under this AGREEMENT without prior written permission of the AGENCY.
Refer to section VI “Sub-Contracting” of this AGREEMENT.

See Attached

Agreement Number:
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Exhibit E
Subconsultant Cost Computations

Project: Whitehawk Boulevard Extension

Direct Salary Cost (DSC):

Classification Man Hours = Rate = Cost
Sr Vice President 12 X $79.00 $948.00
Project Manager 35 $52.88 $1,850.80
Project Manager 20 X $43.27 $865.40
Sr Right of Way Agent 185 X $38.46 $7,115.10
Right of Way Agent 46 X $38.46 $1,769.16
Right of Way Technician 50 X $32.33 $1,616.50
X $0.00
X $0.00
X $0.00
X $0.00
X $0.00
X $0.00
X $0.00
X $0.00
X $0.00
Total DSC = $14,164.96
Overhead (OH Cost -- including Salary Additives):
OH Rate x DSC of 1.54 % xS $14,164.96 $21,814.04
Fixed Fee (FF):
FF Rate x DSC of 30 % xS $14,164.96 $4,249.49
Reimbursables:
Title Reports $3,300.00
Appraisal Reports $15,400.00
Appraisal Reviews $4,950.00
Mileage (0.545) $200.00
$23,850.00
Subconsultants:
Grand Total $64,078.49
Faith Roland Date: 6/7/2019
Agreement Number:
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Subconsultant Fee Determination - Summary Sheet

Project: Whitehawk Boulevard Extension
CRC #: 1904L - Parametrix, Inc.

Direct Labor Cost

Classifications Labor Hours x Rate = Cost
Principal Investigator 3.0 $ 54.64 $ 163.92
Projects Manager 2.0 $ 40.00 $ 80.00
Project Archaeologist I 24.0 $ 42.60 $ 1,022.40
Project Archaeologist II 0.0 $ 34.42 $ -
Project Archaeologist I11 0.0 $ 25.75 $ -
Field Archaeologist I 8.5 $ 22.66 $ 192.61
Field Archaeologist II 0.0 $ 21.12 $ -
Field Archaeologist III 0.0 $ 19.11 $ -
Historic Architect 20.0 $ 52.46 $ 1,049.20
Project Historian 0.0 $ 35.00 $ -
Office Manager 2.0 $ 39.25 $ 78.50
Office Assistant 0.0 $ 16.00 $ -
59.5 $ 2,586.63
Overhead (OH Cost - - including Salary Additives):
OH Rate x DLC of: 110.00% %x¢ $  2,586.63 $ 2,845.29
Fixed Fee (FF):
FF Rate x DLC of: 20.00% %x< $ 2,586.63 $ 517.33
Reimbursables:
Photo & Graphic Supplies $ 5.00
Lodging: $ -
Per Diem: $ -
Mileage: $ 95.75
$ 100.75
Grand Total: $ 6,050.00
Prepared by: Teresa Peterson, Office Manager Date: 22-Apr-19

DOT Form 140-089 EF Exhibit G-1



Exhibit E
Subconsultant Cost Computations

Project: Whitehawk Boulevard Extension

Direct Salary Cost (DSC):

Classification Man Hours = Rate = Cost
Geologist VI 4 X $67.50 $270.00
Engineer Vi 24 $63.00 $1,512.00
Engineer Il 22 X $38.50 $847.00
Geologist |l 44 X $30.25 $1,331.00
CAD 2 X $38.00 $76.00
Admin 2 X $24.00 $48.00
X $0.00
X $0.00
X $0.00
X $0.00
X $0.00
X $0.00
X $0.00
X $0.00
X $0.00
Total DSC = $4,084.00
Overhead (OH Cost -- including Salary Additives):
OH Rate x DSC of 197.81 % xS $4,084.00 $8,078.60
Fixed Fee (FF):
FF Rate x DSC of 30 % xS $4,084.00 $1,225.20
Reimbursables:
Lab Testing $2,180.00
Transducers $1,000.00
Mileage $400.00
Subconsultants:
Drilling Subcontractor $8,000.00
Grand Total $24,967.80

Bryan Hawkins Date: 6/6/2019

Agreement Number:
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Exhibit E
Subconsultant Cost Computations

Project: Whitehawk Boulevard Extension

Direct Salary Cost (DSC):

Classification Man Hours = Rate = Cost
Principal 94 X $62.22 $5,848.68
Field/Editor/CAD 32 $33.00 $1,056.00
X $0.00
X $0.00
X $0.00
X $0.00
X $0.00
X $0.00
X $0.00
X $0.00
X $0.00
X $0.00
X $0.00
X $0.00
X $0.00
Total DSC = $6,904.68
Overhead (OH Cost -- including Salary Additives):
OH Rate x DSC of 1.10 % XS $6,904.68 $7,595.15
Fixed Fee (FF):
FF Rate x DSC of 0.3 % xS $6,904.68 $2,071.40
Reimbursables:
Travel for monitoring $203.00
Subconsultants:
Grand Total $16,774.23

Michael Minor Date: 6/6/2019

Agreement Number:
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Exhibit E

Consultant Fee Determination - Fee Summary
Oorting - Whitehawk Blvd Extension

PH Consulting Staff Category Hours Rate Cost
Principal 14 S 75.00 S 1,050.00
Project Manager 220 S 55.00 $ 12,100.00
Project Engineer 349 S 50.00 S 17,450.00
CAD Designer 236 S 25.00 S 5,900.00
Office Administrator 18 S 35.00 S 630.00
Office Assistant 6 S 25.00 S 150.00
Total Hours 843 S 37,280.00

Direct Labor Cost S 37,280.00
Overhead Rate @ 110% of Direct Labor S 41,008.00
Fee @32% of Direct Labor S 11,929.60
Direct Salary Cost S 90,217.60
Direct Expenses Unit Cost Total
Traffic Counts S -
Reproduction Costs

Full Sized Copies (Bond) S -

Full Sized (PVC) S -

Reprographics 1 200 S 200.00
Parking/Tolls 0 S -
2019 Mileage Rates 324.8 $0.58/Mi  § 177.02

0
0

Sub-Total Direct Expenses S 377.02
Total Fee $ 90,594.62

PH CONSULTING LLC
4/18/2019 — Dalanced Transportation Solutions



Exhibit E
Consultant Fee Determination - Task Budget Detail
Oorting - Whitehawk Blvd Extension

Princioal Project Project CAD Designer Office Office
Task No. Task Description (Pablz) Manager Engineer (Am )g Administrator Assistant PH Total
(Maryanne) (Pablo) i (Sariah) (TBD)
ANTE Rates $ 75.00| % 55.00| $ 50.00| $ 25.00 | $ 35.00( $ 25.00
Full Burden $ 181.50| & 133.10| $ 121.00] $ 60.50 | $ 84.70| $ 60.50
1.0 PROJECT MANAGEMENT
. AND COORDINATION
Coordination with Prime
1.1 Consultant PMX 18 18 36
1.2 Kickoff Meeting 4 4 8
Project Monitoring and
1.3 Reporting 18 9 18 45
14 Sub-Consulting Coordination 0
Task 1.0 Total Hours 0 40 31 0 18 0 89
Subtotal Task 1.0 $ -1$ 532400 $ 3,751.00| $ -1% 1,524.60| $ -
2.0 DESIGN AND STUDIES
21 WSDOT Design Dpcumentat;on 4 32 24 12 72
and Approval Review
2.2 Field Review & Data Collection 10 16 8 4 38
Environmental Studies and
2.3 N 0
Permitting
2.4 Geotechnical 2 2 4
25 PIF Idgntlflcatlon and/or 4 8 4 16
Submittals
2.6 Traffic Engineering 2 8 40 24 74
Construction sequencing and
27 Temporary Traffic Control Plan
Task 2.0 Total Hours 6 56 90 48 0 4 204
Subtotal Task 2.0 | $ 1,089.00| $ 7,45360| $ 10,890.00| $ 2,904.00| $ -1 % 242,00
30 PREPARATION OF PS&E
. DOCUMENTS
3.1 30 Percent Design/Estimate 24 60 60 144
3.2 City Review of 60% PS&E 4 8 4 16
23 Prelmlnary Design Review 4 4 8
Meeting
3.4 90 Percent PS&E 4 60 120 80 264
3.5 WSDOT Review and Approval 4 4 4 12
3.6 City Review of 90% 4 4 4 12
3.7 Final Design Review Meeting 4 1 5
3.8 100 Percent PS&E 4 16 24 32 76
3.9 City Review of 100% 4 4 4 1 13
Task 3.0 Total Hours 8 124 228 188 0 2 550
Subtotal Task 4.0 | $ 1,452.00 $ 16,50440 $ 27,588.00 $ 1137400 $ - $ 121.00
PH TOTAL HOURS 14 220 349 236 18 6 843
TOTAL ALL TASKS [ $ 2,541.00| $ 29,282.00| $ 42,229.00| $ 14,278.00| $ 1,524.60| $ 363.00
PH CONSULTING LLC
4/18/2019 — Balanced Transportation Solutions
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Exhibit F
Title VI Assurances

During the performance of this AGREEMENT, the CONSULTANT, for itself, its assignees, and successors
in interest agrees as follows:

1.

Compliance with Regulations: The CONSULTANT shall comply with the Regulations relative to non-
discrimination in federally assisted programs of the AGENCY, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations,
Part 21, as they may be amended from time to time (hereinafter referred to as the “REGULATIONS”),
which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this AGREEMENT.

Non-discrimination: The CONSULTANT, with regard to the work performed during this AGREEMENT,
shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, sex, or national origin in the selection and retention
of sub-consultants, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment. The CONSULTANT
shall not participate either directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the
REGULATIONS, including employment practices when this AGREEMENT covers a program set forth
in Appendix B of the REGULATIONS.

Solicitations for Sub-consultants, Including Procurement of Materials and Equipment: In all solicitations
either by competitive bidding or negotiations made by the CONSULTANT for work to be performed
under a sub-contract, including procurement of materials or leases of equipment, each potential sub-
consultant or supplier shall be notified by the CONSULTANT of the CONSULTANT’s obligations under
this AGREEMENT and the REGULATIONS relative to non-discrimination on the grounds of race, color,
sex, or national origin.

Information and Reports: The CONSULTANT shall provide all information and reports required by the
REGULATIONS or directives issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records,
accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the AGENCY, the
STATE, or the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such
REGULATIONS, orders and instructions. Where any information required of a CONSULTANT is in the
exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the CONSULTANT shall
so certify to the AGENCY, the STATE, or the FHWA as appropriate, and shall set forth what efforts it has
made to obtain the information.

Sanctions for Non-compliance: In the event of the CONSULTANT’s non-compliance with the non-
discrimination provisions of this AGREEMENT, the AGENCY shall impose such AGREEMENT sanctions
as it, the STATE, or the FHWA may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to:
+ Withholding of payments to the CONSULTANT under this AGREEMENT until the CONSULTANT
complies, and/or;

 Cancellation, termination, or suspension of this AGREEMENT, in whole or in part.

Incorporation of Provisions: The CONSULTANT shall include the provisions of paragraphs (1) through

(5) in every subcontract, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the
REGULATIONS, or directives issued pursuant thereto. The CONSULTANT shall take such action with
respect to any sub-consultant or procurement as the STATE, the AGENCY, or FHWA may direct as a means
of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for non-compliance.

Provided, however, that in the event a CONSULTANT becomes involved in, or is threatened with,
litigation with a sub-consultant or supplier as a result of such direction, the CONSULTANT may request
the AGENCY enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the STATE and/or the AGENCY and, in
addition, the CONSULTANT may request the United States enter into such litigation to protect the interests
of the United States. Agreement Number:
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Exhibit G
Certification Documents

Exhibit G-1(a) Certification of Consultant
Exhibit G-1(b) Certification of __ City of Orting

Exhibit G-2 Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters -
Primary Covered Transactions

Exhibit G-3 Certification Regarding the Restrictions of the Use of Federal Funds for Lobbying

Exhibit G-4 Certificate of Current Cost or Pricing Data

Agreement Number:
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Exhibit G-1(a) Certification of Consultant

[ hereby certify that I am the and duly authorized representative of the firm of
Parametrix, Inc.

whose address is

1019 39th Ave SE, Ste. 100, Puyallup, WA 98374

and that neither the above firm nor I have:

a) Employed or retained for a commission, percentage, brokerage, contingent fee, or other consideration,
any firm or person (other than a bona fide employee working solely for me or the above CONSULTANT)
to solicit or secure this AGREEMENT:;

b) Agreed, as an express or implied condition for obtaining this contract, to employ or retain the services of
any firm or person in connection with carrying out this AGREEMENT; or

¢) Paid, or agreed to pay, to any firm, organization or person (other than a bona fide employee working solely
for me or the above CONSULTANT) any fee, contribution, donation, or consideration of any kind for, or in
connection with, procuring or carrying out this AGREEMENT; except as hereby expressly stated (if any);

I acknowledge that this certificate is to be furnished to the

and the Federal Highway Administration, U.S. Department of Transportation in connection with this
AGREEMENT involving participation of Federal-aid highway funds, and is subject to applicable State and
Federal laws, both criminal and civil.

Parametrix, Inc.

Consultant (Firm Name)

Signature (Authorized Official of Consultant) Date

Agreement Number:
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Exhibit G-1(b) Certification of City of Orting
I hereby certify that I am the:

Agency Official

|:| Other

of the Local Agency City of Orting , and Parametrix, Inc.
or its representative has not been required, directly or indirectly as an express or implied condition in connection
with obtaining or carrying out this AGREEMENT to:

a) Employ or retain, or agree to employ to retain, any firm or person; or

b) Pay, or agree to pay, to any firm, person, or organization, any fee, contribution, donation, or consideration
of any kind; except as hereby expressly stated (if any):

I acknowledge that this certificate is to be furnished to the Washington Department of Transportation

and the Federal Highway Administration, U.S. Department of Transportation, in connection with this
AGREEMENT involving participation of Federal-aid highway funds, and is subject to applicable State and
Federal laws, both criminal and civil.

Signature Date

Agreement Number:
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Exhibit G-2 Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other
Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions

[.  The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals:

A.

B.

D.

Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

Have not within a three (3) year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment
rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining,
attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or local) transaction or contract under

a public transaction; violation of Federal or State anti-trust statues or commission of embezzlement,
theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving

stolen property;

Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b)
of this certification; and

Have not within a three (3) year period preceding this application / proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State and local) terminated for cause or default.

II. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

Parametrix, Inc.

Consultant (Firm Name)

Signature (Authorized Official of Consultant) Date

Agreement Number:
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Exhibit G-3 Certification Regarding the Restrictions of the Use of Federal Funds
for Lobbying

The prospective participant certifies, by signing and submitting this bid or proposal, to the best of his or her
knowledge and belief, that:

1.

No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or any employee of a Member of Congress in connection
with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan,
the entering into of any cooperative AGREEMENT, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment,
or modification of Federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative AGREEMENT.

If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative AGREEMENT, the undersigned shall complete and submit
Standard Form - LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into
this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000.00, and not more than $100,000.00,
for each such failure.

The prospective participant also agrees by submitting his or her bid or proposal that he or she shall require
that the language of this certification be included in all lower tier sub-contracts, which exceed $100,000,
and that all such sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

Parametrix, Inc.

Consultant (Firm Name)

Signature (Authorized Official of Consultant) Date

Agreement Number:
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Exhibit G-4 Certificate of Current Cost or Pricing Data

This is to certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the cost or pricing data (as defined in section
2.101 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) and required under FAR subsection 15.403-4) submitted,
either actually or by specific identification in writing, to the Contracting Officer or to the Contracting Officer’s
representative in support of Whitehawk Boulevard Extension * are accurate, complete, and current
as of June 4, 2019 -

This certification includes the cost or pricing data supporting any advance AGREEMENT’s and forward pricing
rate AGREEMENT’s between the offer or and the Government that are part of the proposal.

Firm: Parametrix, Inc.

Senior Vice President

Signature Title

Date of Execution®**:

*Identify the proposal, quotation, request for pricing adjustment, or other submission involved, giving the appropriate identifying number (e.g. project title.)
**Insert the day, month, and year, when price negotiations were concluded and price AGREEMENT was reached.

***Insert the day, month, and year, of signing, which should be as close as practicable to the date when the price negotiations were concluded and the
contract price was agreed to.

Agreement Number:
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Exhibit H
Liability Insurance Increase

To Be Used Only If Insurance Requirements Are Increased

The professional liability limit of the CONSULTANT to the AGENCY identified in Section XII, Legal Relations
and Insurance of this Agreement is amended to $

The CONSULTANT shall provide Professional Liability insurance with minimum per occurrence limits in the
amount of $

Such insurance coverage shall be evidenced by one of the following methods:
¢ Certificate of Insurance.
+ Self-insurance through an irrevocable Letter of Credit from a qualified financial institution.

Self-insurance through documentation of a separate fund established exclusively for the payment of professional
liability claims, including claim amounts already reserved against the fund, safeguards established for payment
from the fund, a copy of the latest annual financial statements, and disclosure of the investment portfolio for
those funds.

Should the minimum Professional Liability insurance limit required by the AGENCY as specified above exceed
$1 million per occurrence or the value of the contract, whichever is greater, then justification shall be submitted
to the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) for approval to increase the minimum insurance limit.

If FHWA approval is obtained, the AGENCY may, at its own cost, reimburse the CONSULTANT for the additional
professional liability insurance required.

Notes: Cost of added insurance requirements: $
* Include all costs, fee increase, premiums.
 This cost shall not be billed against an FHWA funded project.
 For final contracts, include this exhibit.

Agreement Number:
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Exhibit |
Alleged Consultant Design Error Procedures

The purpose of this exhibit is to establish a procedure to determine if a consultant’s alleged design error is of a
nature that exceeds the accepted standard of care. In addition, it will establish a uniform method for the resolution
and/or cost recovery procedures in those instances where the agency believes it has suffered some material damage
due to the alleged error by the consultant.

Step 1 Potential Consultant Design Error(s) is Identified by Agency’s Project Manager
At the first indication of potential consultant design error(s), the first step in the process is for the Agency’s
project manager to notify the Director of Public Works or Agency Engineer regarding the potential design
error(s). For federally funded projects, the Region Local Programs Engineer should be informed and
involved in these procedures. (Note: The Director of Public Works or Agency Engineer may appoint an
agency staff person other than the project manager, who has not been as directly involved in the project,
to be responsible for the remaining steps in these procedures.)

Step 2 Project Manager Documents the Alleged Consultant Design Error(s)
After discussion of the alleged design error(s) and the magnitude of the alleged error(s), and with the
Director of Public Works or Agency Engineer’s concurrence, the project manager obtains more detailed
documentation than is normally required on the project. Examples include: all decisions and descriptions
of work; photographs, records of labor, materials and equipment.

Step 3 Contact the Consultant Regarding the Alleged Design Error(s)
If it is determined that there is a need to proceed further, the next step in the process is for the project
manager to contact the consultant regarding the alleged design error(s) and the magnitude of the alleged
error(s). The project manager and other appropriate agency staff should represent the agency and the
consultant should be represented by their project manager and any personnel (including sub-consultants)
deemed appropriate for the alleged design error(s) issue.

Step 4 Attempt to Resolve Alleged Design Error with Consultant
After the meeting(s) with the consultant have been completed regarding the consultant’s alleged design
error(s), there are three possible scenarios:

+ It is determined via mutual agreement that there is not a consultant design error(s). If this is the case,
then the process will not proceed beyond this point.

+ It is determined via mutual agreement that a consultant design error(s) occurred. If this is the case,
then the Director of Public Works or Agency Engineer, or their representatives, negotiate a settlement
with the consultant. The settlement would be paid to the agency or the amount would be reduced from
the consultant’s agreement with the agency for the services on the project in which the design error
took place. The agency is to provide LP, through the Region Local Programs Engineer, a summary
of the settlement for review and to make adjustments, if any, as to how the settlement affects federal
reimbursements. No further action is required.

 There is not a mutual agreement regarding the alleged consultant design error(s). The consultant may
request that the alleged design error(s) issue be forwarded to the Director of Public Works or Agency
Engineer for review. If the Director of Public Works or Agency Engineer, after review with their legal
counsel, is not able to reach mutual agreement with the consultant, proceed to Step 5.

Agreement Number:
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Step S Forward Documents to Local Programs
For federally funded projects all available information, including costs, should be forwarded through the
Region Local Programs Engineer to LP for their review and consultation with the FHWA. LP will meet
with representatives of the agency and the consultant to review the alleged design error(s), and attempt
to find a resolution to the issue. If necessary, LP will request assistance from the Attorney General’s Office
for legal interpretation. LP will also identify how the alleged error(s) affects eligibility of project costs
for federal reimbursement.

+ If mutual agreement is reached, the agency and consultant adjust the scope of work and costs
to reflect the agreed upon resolution. LP, in consultation with FHWA, will identify the amount
of federal participation in the agreed upon resolution of the issue.

+ If mutual agreement is not reached, the agency and consultant may seek settlement by arbitration
or by litigation.

Agreement Number:
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Exhibit J
Consultant Claim Procedures

The purpose of this exhibit is to describe a procedure regarding claim(s) on a consultant agreement. The following
procedures should only be utilized on consultant claims greater than $1,000. If the consultant’s claim(s) are a total
of $1,000 or less, it would not be cost effective to proceed through the outlined steps. It is suggested that the
Director of Public Works or Agency Engineer negotiate a fair and reasonable price for the consultant’s claim(s)
that total $1,000 or less.

This exhibit will outline the procedures to be followed by the consultant and the agency to consider a potential
claim by the consultant.

Step 1 Consultant Files a Claim with the Agency Project Manager

If the consultant determines that they were requested to perform additional services that were outside
of the agreement’s scope of work, they may be entitled to a claim. The first step that must be completed
is the request for consideration of the claim to the Agency’s project manager.

The consultant’s claim must outline the following:
» Summation of hours by classification for each firm that is included in the claim;
* Any correspondence that directed the consultant to perform the additional work;
« Timeframe of the additional work that was outside of the project scope;

« Summary of direct labor dollars, overhead costs, profit and reimbursable costs associated with
the additional work; and

» Explanation as to why the consultant believes the additional work was outside of the agreement
scope of work.

Step 2 Review by Agency Personnel Regarding the Consultant’s Claim for Additional Compensation

After the consultant has completed step 1, the next step in the process is to forward the request to the
Agency’s project manager. The project manager will review the consultant’s claim and will met with the
Director of Public Works or Agency Engineer to determine if the Agency agrees with the claim. If the
FHWA is participating in the project’s funding, forward a copy of the consultant’s claim and the Agency’s
recommendation for federal participation in the claim to the WSDOT Local Programs through the Region
Local Programs Engineer. If the claim is not eligible for federal participation, payment will need to be from
agency funds.

If the Agency project manager, Director of Public Works or Agency Engineer, WSDOT Local Programs

(if applicable), and FHWA (if applicable) agree with the consultant’s claim, send a request memo, including
backup documentation to the consultant to either supplement the agreement, or create a new agreement

for the claim. After the request has been approved, the Agency shall write the supplement and/or new
agreement and pay the consultant the amount of the claim. Inform the consultant that the final payment for
the agreement is subject to audit. No further action in needed regarding the claim procedures.

If the Agency does not agree with the consultant’s claim, proceed to step 3 of the procedures.

Agreement Number:
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Step 3 Preparation of Support Documentation Regarding Consultant’s Claim(s)

If the Agency does not agree with the consultant’s claim, the project manager shall prepare a summary
for the Director of Public Works or Agency Engineer that included the following:

» Copy of information supplied by the consultant regarding the claim;
» Agency’s summation of hours by classification for each firm that should be included in the claim;
* Any correspondence that directed the consultant to perform the additional work;

« Agency’s summary of direct labor dollars, overhead costs, profit and reimbursable costs associated
with the additional work;

+ Explanation regarding those areas in which the Agency does/does not agree with the consultant’s
claim(s);

* Explanation to describe what has been instituted to preclude future consultant claim(s); and

» Recommendations to resolve the claim.
Step 4 Director of Public Works or Agency Engineer Reviews Consultant Claim and Agency Documentation

The Director of Public Works or Agency Engineer shall review and administratively approve or disapprove
the claim, or portions thereof, which may include getting Agency Council or Commission approval (as
appropriate to agency dispute resolution procedures). If the project involves federal participation, obtain
concurrence from WSDOT Local Programs and FHWA regarding final settlement of the claim. If the claim
is not eligible for federal participation, payment will need to be from agency funds.

Step S Informing Consultant of Decision Regarding the Claim

The Director of Public Works or Agency Engineer shall notify (in writing) the consultant of their final
decision regarding the consultant’s claim(s). Include the final dollar amount of the accepted claim(s)
and rationale utilized for the decision.

Step 6 Preparation of Supplement or New Agreement for the Consultant’s Claim(s)

The agency shall write the supplement and/or new agreement and pay the consultant the amount
of the claim. Inform the consultant that the final payment for the agreement is subject to audit.

Agreement Number:
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/ Council Agenda Summary Sheet

. . Committee Study Session Council
Subject: Selection of
Deputy Mayor, 2020 Agenda ltem #: N/A AB19-64 AB19-64
For Agenda of: ' 9.18.19 9.25.19
Department: Council
Date Submitted: | 9.10.19
Cost of Item: S
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Bars #:
Timeline: Per Council Rule 8.5 process starts in September
and Concludes in October.
Submitted By: City Clerk
Fiscal Note:
Attachments: Council Rule 8.5 and 3.9.B
SUMMARY STATEMENT:

SUMMARY STATEMENT: Per the City Council Rules of Procedure:

Chapter 8 section 5 - Selecting Deputy Mayor: The Deputy Mayor will be selected by a majority of the
Councilmembers annually beginning in September and concluding in October. Outgoing Deputy Mayor
will solicit two other councilmembers to nominate a candidate for his/her replacement for a full
Council vote. (see 3.9B)

Chapter 3 section 9 (B) - Deputy Mayor--Duties: Annually, in September, the outgoing Deputy Mayor,
with the help of two councilmembers, will solicit and recommend a candidate for Deputy Mayor with
confirmation from the entire council for his/her replacement in January.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Deputy Mayor Solicit two councilmembers for nomination
committee.

FUTURE MOTION: To appoint as Deputy Mayor for the year
2020 effective January 1, 2020.




ATTACHMENT /EXERPTS FROM COUNCIL RULES

3.9 Deputy Mayor -- Duties:

(A)  Term of the Deputy Mayor shall be one year.
(January 01 through December 31st).

(B)  Annually, in September, the outgoing Deputy Mayor, with the
help of two councilmembers, will solicit and recommend a
candidate for Deputy Mayor with confirmation from the entire
council for his/her replacement in January.

8.5 Selecting Deputy Mayor:

The Deputy Mayor will be selected by a majority of the Councilmembers annually
beginning in September and concluding in October. Outgoing Deputy Mayor will
solicit two other councilmembers to nominate a candidate for his/her replacement
for a full council vote.—See 3.9 B.





